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Our Managed Services businesses
are enabled by tatent-focused
Specialist Staffing brands with deep
heritages, vertical sector expertise
and loyal candidate networks. Clients
acress the world trust us to deliver
Managed Services and Specialist
Staffing in the UK, Narth America,
Asia Pacific and Europe.

Working with them are 2,500
Impellam people, bringing a

wealth of expertise through our 13
market-leading brands across 70
tocations. Every year, we connect
carefully chosen candidates with
good work at all levels. They include
technology and digital specialists,
scientists, clinical experts, engineers,
nurses, doctors, lawyers, teachers,
receptionists, drivers, chefs,
administrators, wareheouse and call
centre operatives.

OUR VISION

Underpinning everything we do

is our Virtuoso strategy which
recognises it is our people who make
the difference. Virtuosos make and
deliver on promises, and grow with
their customers through sector,
service or international expansion
which ensures there is never a
need for a customer or candidate
to leave Impellam. Impellam is the
largest Glabal Talent Acquisition
and Managed Warkforce Sclutions
providerin the UK, and 8th in

the world.

To be the world's most trusted staffing company
- trusted by our people, our customers and our investors in

equal measure.

OUR MISSION

To provide fulfilment and a sense of purpose for our
people, and help our customers build better businesses

in a changing world.

ot mota SToi TG g

www.impellam.com
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Progress and performance

Headlines

Impellam delivered or its pramise for the year with a strong return <o growth
coupled with conversion improvement and further strateqic progress, Croup
revenue was up 13.1% 114.7%*1 on the prior year at £2 3hn (202C: £2.06n) and
1.8%* up un 2019 Adjusted operating orefits up 61.0% {7C.5%*) to £29.3m
{2020: £18.2m).

OPERATIONAL

Cur new, regional orgarisation rmodel, supported by our four key operating
segments - STEM, Clobai Managed Services {{CMS™, Regional Specialist
Staffing ('RSS') and Healthcare - enabied us to innovate and respond quickly
ro rapidly changing custorrer reeds and candidate availability whilst
enjoying the economic benefits of increased demand.

Strorg operational gearing ir the UK region following strategic delayenng
initiatives with conversion of gross profit to adjusted ocerating profit
reaching 14.2% (2019: 10%, .

vYear one of our Customer Office exceeded our expectations, dedvering
100% account retention and a 2 1% increase in Lite Tirme valse (TV

Our key strategic investrments were in pesple and techrology with both
irvestrrent cases undersirmirg our core principle that virtuosicy makes the
difference. The core systems road map moved into the delivery phase with
on premises servers meved fo tre ¢cloud ard 3 staged delivery of new
systems and upgrades cantiruirg through 2022,

In North America, Following a strategic review of the scale and limited
geographic footprint of Corestaff, cur light incustrial business, and a
subsequent expression of interest resulted in :ts post year-end divestment
of Corestaff to swipejebs Inc, a US private digital staffing company fara
cash consideration of approximately £14m ($15m).

FINANCIAL
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Cross profit increase of 17.1% (19.5%*), with H2 2021 up 6.5%* on H2 219.

Strong rebound in the Uk and NA with gross profit growth on the prior year
of 22.6%* and 16 7%~ respectively. In APAC. which experienced orowenged
lockdowns in 2027 gross profit increased by 4.9%*.

The GMS and the STEM portfolios, recreserting over 80% of the Croup s
gross profit. were up 14.8%* and 29.0%* respectively on 202C and up 4.3%*
and 8.C%* on 2019 gross orofik.

Strong rebound in RSS with gross profit up 26.9%* year on year though still
12.1%* below 2C19 levels.

Investrment in headcount to suppart growtkh with 44C net joiners during
2027, although Feadcaurt remairs 77 nelow the 2019 year end position.
Gross profit per FTE (productivity) was 12 8% above 2019 levels.

Adjusted operacing profitt growth of 61.0% to £29.3m (2020: £18.2my.

Net debit- increased by £5.2mto £31.5m 2020 £25.3m) Following £38.9m
of deferred UK VAT and S federal taxes repayment with the final vAT
repayrrent mace ir Q1 2022, Pre- IFRS '6 net debe- of £15.0m (2020
£4.1m} with covenant leverage ratio tess than * x throughout 2021,

Following strong operagional cash gereration of 147 6%, excluding deferred
tax repaymen:s Banking facilities replaced at £182 5m, representing a

£57 5mreduction on the previous Facility, Net debt before IFRS 16" Fas
reduced by £57.3m since 2073

me s alue JTw s defired as average Tas 3ot < ave zge .ergrn Tfoonrract
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GROUP REVENUE_£m

£2,262.4m

GROUP GROSS
PROFIT_£m

£267.0m

GROUP ADJUSTED
OPERATING
PROFIT_£m

£29.3m

GROUP OPERATING
PROFIT_Em

£19.5m

GROUP NET DEBT
(BEFORE IFRS 16)*_£m

£(15.0)m

GROUP NET CASH
GENERATED FROM
OPERATIONS_£m

£10.2m

SIoTiL T oATmanae

Glossary: page_122
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At a glance

Our operating segments

We organise our portfolio of Global Managed
Services and Specialist Staffing businesses regionally

and by specialist operating segments.
GLOBAL MANAGED SERVICES
We take care of the whole staffing
process, sc that our customers car
focus or building better busiresses.
We do this by providing robust
mulkidisciplinary and bierded
talent solstions to epterprise-level
organisations, inclyding partial ard
complete odisourcirg.

Qur CGlobal Managed Services brands
are Guidart Clohal, Comensura
and Flexy.

KEY METRICS
Revenue_£m Gross profit_£m
£456.3m £76.5m
NORTH 2020: £401.5m 2020: £70.5m
AMERICA 2019 £413.8m 201%: £73.9m

£1,741 .4m £172 5m

UK & 2020 5m 2020 £14C.7m
EUROPE 2019 m 2015 £179.5m
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£64.7m £18.0m

2020 £59.9m 20200 £15.9m

APAC 2015 £735m 2019 £20.6m
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REGIONAL 5PECIALIST SIAFFING

Our Regional Specialist Staffing
{'RSS" busiresses i the UK leverage
our deep heritage, sector expertise
and extensive network of specialist
candidates, to provide expert
recruitment services and fulfitled,
engaged workers For our customers.

QOur dedicated teams build better
busiresses by providirg people for
permanent, temoorary, contract ard
Fixed-price work: from the supply of
warehodse workers to secretaries, catl
certre operatives, lawyers. drivers,
teachers, chefs, HR and marketirg
professiorals,

Qur RSS brards are Blue Arrow, Tate,
Career Teachers and Chadwick Nott

S5TEM

Our portfolio of global STEM brards
brirgs together a wealth of specialist
recruitment expertise under one
armbreila. Our STEM brands work
collaboratively o orovide specialist
contrack and permarent recruitment
services and statement of waork
across the STEM secters. By attractirg
the very best of STEM talert, our
businesses combire the unique and
complemertary skitl sets of sciertists,
climcians, engineers, IT and digital
specialists to collaborate, irrovaze
and co-create a better futura for Js
all, by solving some of the world's
tougrest orobiems.

Qur STEM brards are Carborel,
SRC ard Loner ir the UK & Europe
ard Bartech, SRC and Lorien ir
North Arrerica.

HEALTHCARE

Medacs Clobal Croup 'MCC) is a leadirg
‘nternatioral bealthcare workforce
solutions provider operating under 3
variety of brands, ircluding Medacs
Healthcare, Clobal Medics, and Litimus
Worklorce Solutions, MCG provides
healthcare staffing, managed services,
staff bank, occupatioral ealth, insourcng.
social care and horme care senvices,

Withir its healthcare brargs, MCC

delivers locum, temporary ard permarert
doctors, rurses, allied healt~ professionrals
ard care workers. it is the largest provider
of locurr doctors to the NHS in the UK
ard to the HSE ir irelard ard is the

largest supplier of specialist Pealthcare
rraraged services outsice of the US.

with operations across the UK. iretard.
tre Miacle East, india, Australia and Mew
Zealarg, MCC erables Customers to
deliver outstarding care globally,

Bronere T At gl

www.impellam.com
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At a glance continued

Awards

Here are just some of the awards we have been recognised for...
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Chairman’s statement

A strong return
to growth

Despite disruption to car busiresses across the world from or-
going Covid-" 9 restrictiors, we have delivered ar outstanding
perfarmance in 2027, with a sticng return to growth ard
robust recovery :n our adiusted operating profits®. This s
testament to our resilient, collaborat.ve busiress model and
comrmitmert of our Virtuosos.

The year 202" begar with a returm to lockdownr in the JK ard
our experience in 2020 enabled us to respond quickly, moving
toremote working arce agair. From this cnallenging start Lo
the vear, demard increased rapidly across ail our regions 3s
restrictions have eased, customer confidence has returned and
candidate shortages have intensified. Revenue s ncw ahead of
2019 and we are sesing the benefits of the decisive moves we
made Lo ~eshape our busiress in 2020 delivering resdits.

We have continged 1o rarsror™ our business, strergiherirg
our key brands, simoiifyirg o.r organisational stracture ard
irvesting ir oar technclogy ard our people to erable themr
to perform o their .pmost potential. Cur move to 3 regiconal
reportirg stracture s part of “his pracess, urderpinred by
our four key operating segrmerts aligned to our primary
Lord Ashcroft KCMG PC business activities.
Chairman
We have focused or keepirg our pecple safe and supported.
Their resilierce ard teracity im the face of an uncertaip
environment has been exermplary and on behalf of the
Board | would like to thark them all for ther dedication

" W E HAV E and hard work.

DELIVERED AN et 55 e vt sl e e e ancatsiate
OUTSTANDING eanelto o0l or a5 we 5691 ot sLatainabilly loumey.
P E R FO R MAN C E st we learn ro live with Covid-" %, our custorners ard

" candidates expect us to help them navigate the new waorld
I N 2021 . of work. We will cortinue tonvest e our people ard our
tachnology to ensure we car deliver irnovative solutions
for our custorrers and attract high-quality candidates in
atightening labour market ard whilst facing an urcertair
political lardscape.

Bans
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CEOQ review

Julia Robertson
Group Chief Executive Officer

Delivering on
our Promise

OVERVIEW
We made erormous strides as a Croup in 2027,

The promise we made to oar customers, our people ard our
investars dunrg the pandemic was that we wouid accelerate
our strateqy and emerge as a fighting fit Virtuose organisation.

Qur strategic and financial results for 2021 demonstrate that
we delivered on that promise. We eptered 2027 0 our new
formatior: an agiie Virtuoso operating model with fewer
layers, enabling us to mrovate and respord quickly to rapidly
charging custorrer needs and cardidate availability whilst
enjoying the economic benefits of a iean cost base.

Farly ir the year we were able tg demorstrate our rew
arganisatioral agility and the Q" lockdowr in the UK gave

Js the opporturity t¢ out it —o the test, we relied or the
Flexibility and resilience of our pecole as they ,uggled
competirg responsibilities, we cotaborated with our
customrers to help them ~avigate the issues they “aced while
we supported cur communities by finding them geod work.
supportirg many to crarsfer their skills to buoyart sectors.
when the schools closed in Jancary 2027, we immediately
secorded our talerted education recruiters to support the
national effort in cur healthcare and scientific busiresses who
were husy Fuifilling gemands for Cowid-19 testing and then
vacchat:on programmes, This is one example of cur virtuoso
agility which cortinued through the year as we respended Lo
the higher-than-expected bounce back in demand across all
aur markets ard territeries.

With the wind in our sails, we focused hard on adaptirg Quickly
to aswift and urprecedented charge ir market dynamics,
whilst preserving the efficiency and cerversion gains made
durirg our transformation programme in 2020, whilsg

the challenges of the pardemic and resicltant lockdowrs
ACTHSS QUF MAajor termitories continued, we soon saw the
upside opportunity from the major pressure on empleyers
globally due to the great resigration’, high attritior and 3
booming post-Covid-19 jobs market. In carticular, we saw an
immediate impact or demrard for tech, digital ard aralytical
skills following rapid globai digitisatior ard, of course, for
our scientisks ard bealthcare professiorals for testing ard
vacciratior work.
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we entered 2021 in our new formation: ar

OUR STRATEGIC AN D ) - rlaagyiée;s\/irtuoso operating model with fewer
FINANCIAL RESULTS FOR

2021 DEMONSTRATE " Gwitand arprecsdentag charbs i maret
THAT WE HAVE S comerson aans made domgour
DELIVERED ON OUR Fransformatior programme i 2026
PROM'SE + Ourkey strategic investmertsin 2021

were ir people ard technolagy

We nvested i UK leadership to create 3
compelling STEM offering and drive better
collaboratior

GLOBAL UK AND NORTH ASIA
EUROPE AMERICA PACIFIC

OPERATING SEGMENTS

MANAGED STEM REGIONAL HEALTHCARE
SERVICES SPECIALIST
STAFFING
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CEO review continued

KEY STRATEGIC MOVES AND DEVELOPING OUR
HIGH GROWTH MARKETS

Qur key strategicinvestmenrts in 202" were ir people and
techrology, with both investrment cases underpinning our core
prirciple that Virtgosity 1s odr strateqic advartage.

This year, more than ever, it was critical to understand what
colieagues were experiencing day to day and how it smpacted
therr so that we could provide support as and where reeded.
Across two cohorts 27 Virtuesos contributed significantly

to the developrrert of our pecple strategy, our approach Lo

i biended working, wellbeing and morale, automation, shifting

OUR PEOPLE MAKE THE DIFFERENCE
we were pleased to welcome 440 (net increase) rew purpeseful
coileagues irto our Croup during the vear who are all now
engaged i providing goad work for peopie and peosie for
gaod work. Our investments in people focused on expanding
our teams .n our high-growth markets with a 45% beadcount
increase for STEM pusinesses Inthe UK and 3 24% increase

ir North America. Our Clobal Managed Services ('GMS'
portfolio also invested in headcount but this was offset by the
efficiencies achieved through the collaboration of cur Managed
Services brands and the “ormation of our Centre of Excellence.
The structural efficiencies made in 2020 were maintained

ard .mproved r our shared services tear where headcourt
remained 16% below 2079 ard ir our Regional Specialist
Staffing {'RSS’} portfolic where headcount remained 15%
below 207 9. Despite the overail increase in gur Peadcounrt, we
increased our croductvity by 18.7%,

© candidate market dyrarmics and learring and developrrent,

plarning.

Our Virtaoso colture ercodrages our people to bring their
authentic selves to work ard our goal is to provide them with
challenging and fulfilling work, supportive colleagues and a
career without Hmrits.

. TECHNOLOGY FREES UP QUR VIRTUOSOS
COurinvestmenrts in inpovation, digikat and core systerms have

touched most brands, teams ard colleagues across the world.
We are 100% focused on freeing sp our Virtuosos to add value
to our castomers ard candidates, whilst aiso delivering ar
enhanced digital experience We have a strategic target to be
653% digital” by the end of 2022 and we made solid progress
towards this during 2027

U A the global pardermic cortinaes to disrapt the world of

Our focas or our peopte nas rever beep stronger, startirg
Firsc amc Foremost with their health and welltbeing, swiftly
Foltowed by aredoubling of cur efforts to make sure every
single persor was ergaged with our puracse and able (o work
effectively in a blended model from heme. aur offices and our
Zhiert sites,

We rarped Jp support for our people while plarring for a
post-parderic world, contiraing recryitrrent gctivity and
irvesting in che workforce of the Future, Daring the year,
we rvested in our falented pecple services team making
sigrificant leadership appointments -n the areas cf culture,
equty, diversity ard irclusion (ED&IY, talent acquisitior and
developmenrt, and reward and recognition whilst further
refining our virtuoso model to make *t accessible and
mearingful for all 2,9G0 Impetam people.

Ir recognition of aur colleagues hard work amidst the
ceallerges preserted by the pandermic and ar urprecederted
ircrease n demanrd from CUstomers, we gave our peaple

twao extra days off to focus on their wellbeing. We were

also careful —o pause 3rd recogrise our successes whilst
encauraging cellaboratior ard irrovatior slong the way, i
with towrbalis, awards carfererces, socials - both in person
wher we coutd ard virtual whep we cogid ~ot - which were
designec to Lift morale ard reipvigorate cur cyitare after
lergthy ockdowrs.

We cortir_ed o lister closaly to the Virraosa Alllance, oar j
shadaw board. The role of the Virtuoss Athance s Lo widen

and geeper the leadership team’s urdersstardirg of the
charging world of work and the challerges and opportunities
Faced oy gur customers and cand.dates an tha frort lire, They
tell it now st is.

T oigital=2ats 3nd 2iGItai TeCns Chy

Jage o

I.BBOTIsd oy moretssb .2 gaza aLtorate

work, accelerating our irvestmert in technology remairs key.
The 'Digital Core is a substantive relling replacerrert forall
our sales, operacional and finance systems. This supports

our ambitious growth plans forimpellarm North Amescain
acaitior to supporting orgaric growtr in other geographes.
We cormplered the first phase of "his programme dur ng 2021
with imtial deployrment to business ysers in 34 to e followed
by a roll-out pregramre leading to comoletior by the end

of 2022. We also moved many of our existing systems to

the cloud and exited a iarge cn-premises data centre saving
praperty and techrology costs.

“"AS THE GLOBAL
PANDEMIC CONTINUES
TO DISRUPT THE
WORLD OF WORK,
ACCELERATING OUR
INVESTMENT IN
TECHNOLOGY
REMAINS KEY."

o process L oud-2858d 54502 20¢ flex pa, meole chanhes
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As these new systerms come on stream, we plar to add a i
range of additicnal madern, ptug-ir digital components |
to meet the needs of inrdividual reqiors, brards, markets, |
categories and clients. ‘
These additional systems will be rapicly deployed. on 3 cloud
sabscription basis, and in a cormbination that adds comrpetitive
advantage to the individual business units. Qur existing
integration platform will give us the Aexibulity to change, as
better and newer plug-in producks become available. Exampies
of irvestrrents ir plug-r digizal corrponents include erkanced
candidate attraction and database searching, recruitrmert task
dutomatior and a range of analytics and inteiligence tools,

Ourinvestrrert ir technology will erabie our peoole to work
more efficiently using self-service solutions and data analytics.
supported by digital process automation and irtegration tools.

Collectively, these new system combinatiors will allow
Impeliam to operate in the nascent Platform Recruitment
Market Far high-velume demand and supply matchirg and wilt
enrtance deal volume and profit per colleague.

Inrovation ard entreprereurship are core bekaviours of
Yirtoosity, Cngin, cur inrovatior hub, works clesely aith

the Virtuese Alliance 1T, the Customer Office and across
regicrs through a virtual irrovatior commurity ard actively
maonritors emrerging technologies. in 2027, we irvested i
ourideation tool and DIY quides to crowg-source deas

from across the business. Gur Virtuose medel ersures we

are close ro cur customers ard ‘nrovate cortinuousty. Our
clients trust aur pecple to provide access to the latest tools,
insighes and frends to support fast effective and informed
workforce decision-raking. For example, curinnovation
retwork helped to create a full end-te-erd turrkey solution
that inrcluded a chathot and sideo rterviews Lo speed up an
ambitious hiring campaigr. As the reed for digital solutiars
grows, odr cortfolio of proprietary digitat soluniors and our
globai retwork of digitat partrers provides our custemers ard
cardidates with access to a wide array »F stard-slore or fully
integrated services Lo support them throughout their journey.

Qur offering now spans zero touch transactional services
through proprietary and hybrid proprietary digital staffing
platforms through to pavroil solutiors as well as stand-

alone, third party solutions. For example. Flexy. acguired in
2079, uses leadirg recrrology to streamlire the tempaorary
recruitment procass far companies looking for Flex.ble

labour and individuals looking For Flexible work. Flexy 1s ~ow
embedded with custorrers in coth APAC 3rd tre UK & Europe.

FACING VOLATILE MARKETS IN

PARTNERSHIP WITH OUR CUSTOMERS

Ir suppert of our strategic goal that there should never be
3 reason for a custorrer to leave Impellarr, we contirued
ko optimise our organisatior desigr to make sure that gur

| customers have access to the very best of Impellam’s
cotlectve expertise. :

I'tus ted to the creation of the Customer Cffice and the TMS
Centre of Excellence Together, these teams leverage our
organisational Virtuosity, customer ipsight and combired
capability to ensare custorrer delight, growth and retertior,

Cur Customer Office is led by a newly appointed Chief Customer

. CFficer. This strategic funchion s designed to drive customer
. engagement with the right experts at the right fime, anabiing
- our brands to deliver in the snort, medium and long term; deliver

advisory, irnovative corsultancy, best practice ard benchmarkirg
ard ersure a lorg-term strategy is ie place for egch custorrer
Like ail argarisations, qur customers are embracirg charge
as they adapt to a volatile and extremety challenging taient
market. They are turrirg to truskted partrers tike irpellarm to
help drive innovatior and offar umique perspechives on how
to build better businesses. The Customer OFf ce plays a key
role in Jrderstanding aur customers’ reeds ard tailoring our
services For them. In the first year of operaticn the Customer
OFffice exceeded expectations, deliverirg 100% aczcunt
retertion and a 21% ncrease in Life Time value LTV,

Catlaberation remained 3 key theme and together wito the
creation of our Customer Office. the introduct.on of cur
GMS Centre of Excellence has played a vitacrele r raducing
duplication of effort and ensurirg that our cussomers access
the best chat Impellam has to offer. This dedicated expert

© global furcticr provides services to cur Maraged Services
+ and STEM customers and expertise to our brands ncluding

access to techrology. data management, reportinrg and
implementation expertise, sharing managed services pest
practice. In shars, our Centre of Excellence has enabled us Lo
deliver a higher gquaity, more corsistert service giooally whiist
improving our operatioral efficiency.

FLooteTn Do malat L s

www.impellam.com
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CEO review continued

DRIVING SUSTAINABLE GROWTH

QOur new organisation desigr underpinned a strorg strategic
focus on odr key growth markets, geographically and
segmentally. We exited 2021 with over 70% of our revenue in
aur digitaily enabled GMS and STEM segments and are excited
by the growth opportunities we bave seen and cortirue to see
ir these rmarkets i each of our ternitories. We will contince

ko mrake strateqic investmenrts to support further growth ir
these markets.

We saw strorg performarce from our GMS operating
segment, with robust growth i both revenue and gross profit
reflecting the positive results from increasing collaboration
acrass the portfoiio, With 20 rew customer wins, 3 96%
rerewal rate ard cver sever years average terure, the
partfolic made significant progress. in the {ast 12 months
alone, GMS has expanded the scope of services delivered to
20% of our clierts.

The imelementation of our new Customer Office helped
us expand our service offering and support Group-fill
apporcarities, alongside access to gur CMS Ciopal Ceptre
of Excellence

Both the life scierces ard techrology sectors rave played
prvotal roles amid e Covid-" 9 pandemic. Tigitisation

and transformation have taken a significant leap at both

ar organisation ard indJstry level To cope with the crisis,
companries have ~ad to stard up digitatl, fech-enabled solutiors
to meet rew demard vore quickly tharm thought possible
befare the panderric. With the irtrod ctior of this new-
normal’, digitisation is 2lso broadering the horizon of

new possibilities 0 the life sciences sector. Redefired
workplace environments; the shift in heslth care delivery:
and irnovative collaboratiors betweer traditioral comrpanies
and entrepreneurial start-ups are a faw examples that

are ieading to rhis urprecedented charge supported by
techrotogical advancements.

A5 g resdlt of pharmaceurticat Inposy atiors savirg the world
and with techrology transformation widespread, customer
demand increased exponentaily through the pandemic. In
resporse, irpellamr created 3 focused STEM portfolio with
irvestments ir specialist STEM {eadership in both the Uk ard
North America yielding cositive results in its first Full year

of operatior. Tne collaboratior across our brands bas beep
cribical inwinning and Fulfiling some of our largest healthcare
coreracts to date, where we rave been proud te play our part
in the Fight against Covid-15 1n *he US, Uk & Europe. With
significant global capability in this high-growth, future-facirg
market, revenues grew oy £.7% 18.6%~) to £759.6m, and gross
profit reached £81.8m, uD 25.7% {29.0%™) year on year,

Both our RSS ard Heatthcare Susinesses bourced back after
fFacing tough market cenditions in 2020 with significant
ircreases it Covid-" 3 related demand and despite ongoirg
zardidare shortages ard chalienges created by sorder
closures ir our APAC regior,

i We are particularly proud of the ircreased collaboratior

between our healthcare businesses and our staffing and
managed services busiresses which delivered outstanding
services and people to hospitals, testing laboratories and
vaccnation centres across all our terncories, playing their
part in the fight against Covid-19. whilst also delivering to our

castomers a5 demand increased,

FINANCUIAL REVIEW

~ Revenue grew 13.1% (14.7%*) to £2.3bn n 2021 and has now

recoverad to a pre-pandemic {2C19) level. Gross profit grew by
17.1% (19 5%*} over 2020 only C.8%* behind 2015,

With significant ingreases -n customer dermand we made
investments ir headcourt ard our People Strategy ard
contirged enrarcing gur fechnology through our Digital Core
IT Systems Programme wrilst delivering a strong adjusted
operating orofit- performance of £29.3m, up 51.0% (70 5%} on
2020 and wust 2.0%* berind 2073

QuJrsirorg focds or cash ersured we maraged our cash ard
net debe® position very affectvely and reduced Days Sales

© Qubstandirg (D3SO by .7 days. Net debr increased by £5.2m

to £31.5m as we repard £38.6m of the £48.0m cash support
received from both the UK ard US governments ip 2028 with
the remrairing batarce due to se repaid n 2022, The ongoirg
strorg cash positior has allowed us to reduce 2ur revolvirg
credit facility by £57 5mwhilst continuing to invest in our key
pricrit-es of pecpie arg techrolegy.

96%

Giobal Managed Services
customer renewal rate,

Dhe 20T SEar SUTLOIDNG: DT ANy & TOLNE O, The SulTeNT JEar FTegn Tarrenny Saltaryge it
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GLOBAL MANAGED SERVICES

with increasing talent shortages globally, organisatiors are
focused on comprehensive talert managemert, innovative
ways 16 engage staff wikh a focus on hiring teams rather
thar rdividaas, alt of which is driving derrand for GMS
across the world, As basiresses corsider cortirgent or
axtended workForces as the next Frontier of innovatian
managed service providers that car advise or and deliver
agile and flexibie workforce strategies are in demand.

CMS delivered a strong performrarce in each of our regionsir
2021 with revenues of £838.7mand gross profit at £75 2m
ue " 2.5% (14.1%*) and 10.9% (14.8%*) respectively on 2020,

Cur digitaily enabled service offering secured 26 new
customers in the year representing £700m annualised
Sperd Under Maragemenrt USUM L. Impartartly, this sirong
rew Hdsiress performarce is coupled with the retertion of
96% of our client sase thereby ircreasirg our resilierce ard
Jnderpinnirg our revenue for this year.

Orgoirg investmert in our technology is drnivieg Jp
productivity 3nd freeing up our Virtuosos to focus on
our clients ard cardidates. This includes the complete
overhaul of our approach o the deployrrent ard
managernent of our proprietary Vendor Management
Systermn (WMS ) whick has erabled us to deliver against
an ambiticus development readmap while improvieg
efficiency. The role of advanced analytics to generate
marketirsights arourd talert soppiy and demard for
different skitls and roles across multiple disciplines and
iccations has rever Deer more imperiart Lo our chents.
To deliver analytics seamlessly an uninterrupted data “low
across muttiple tools via sutcmated lirkages 1s prowided.

The ipwestrrert IF Jur penple —In Zarhicalar, Juf partresshig
with the Cper Qata Institdte —has peen essential to

ensure oJr people are equipped witr the knowledge and
expertise to improve the experierce of our customers UsINg
technology. Our 2igitally enabied service allows us to zetter
suppoft our clierts as they focus or errployver brardirg,
recraitment marketirg and direct scurcing in a comperitive
marketplace. where equity, diversity and irciasior “ED&IT s
increasirgly rmporzart ko buldirg a diverse workforce.

Revenue_£m

+12.5%
£838.7/m

TLoeenomales

Glossary: page_122

CCawnaed oy Tl

Gross profit_£Em

+10.9%
£79.2m

olyirg he ot of year Furchiorsl correroy 3 M0 LN oy The CurtetIyaar farelgn Cor S0y 2Xcharge taks
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CEO review continued

UK & EUROPE {65% OF GROSS PROFIT)

Our businesses in the UK & Europe saw an unexpectedly rapid
bodrce back from their Covid-*9-driven reverye dip ir 2020
ard our dedicated teams were delighted to have a sarplus of
rcles to offer our falented candidates. As the year progressed
It became clear that we needed to become increasingly
resgurceful ta hetp our customers manage their reguiremerts
ard engage the right people to meet their growing needs.

Talent shortages across most sectors were exacerbated in the
UK due te Brexit and CFf Payroll Working. Driver availability hit
the headlines resulting in Fuel shortages at petrol statiors and
arrpty supermarket shelves, A scarcity of rurses, residential
care warkers and iT specialists drove ar increase in demand
ard pay rates for our candidates, and ir resporse we rapidly
2p-skilled cur people to deglwith these Fast-charging

rrarket dyramics.

The UK & Zarope segmert recovered strongly across all cur
markets with overall gross profit growth of 22.6% (27.6%~)
which resulted in an excellent adjusted operating profit
perforrmance up 202.5% (223 3%*; on 2020 During Q4 2079,
through 2026 ard continuirg into 2027 we focesed on rght
sizing our cost base and this, tagether with record-breaking
producovity led to the region ending the year 45.8%~ ahead
of 2019 adjusced operating aroht= even though gross srofit
was 4 1%* lower.

Our CMS businesses n the UK increased gross profits oy
B.7%~, with growth comirg maialy from Comensura and
sapport for Covid-" $-related work. A number of our Cuidant

castomers, particularly ir the marufacturirg ard aviatior sector,

experienced reduced demand due to the pandemic, and we
expect to see those volumes nise as confiderce returns, The
new ontracts secured e 2020 and 2021 will reap significant
Fimancial benefits in 2022,

Cur STEM portfolic inthe UK deliverad impressive gross
profit growth of 43 4%* spread across all brands and vertical
markets, with our ife scierce brard (SRC) alsc delivering
nereased gross profit on 2019, The 2021 growtn has been
achieved through a mixture of ‘mproved tradirg conditions in
the UK 3fter the 2020 tackdowrs, ircreased dermand For tech,
digitat and aralytical skills at scale, collaborator and cross
selling across the portfolio ard new cortract wins

i our STEM Brands, In additior, market leader SRC has been
very active providing scientists and clinical staff to support
Covid-19-related requirerrents for poth goverrmert ard
private companries.

The recovery © our RSS brards ir the UK was part cularly
strorg as Covid- "9 restrictiors 2ased ard pert up dermard
led to a gross profit ‘ncrease of 26 3% compared to 2025,
Despite this, tre lockdownsip Q1 2020 cortirued toimpact
hospitalicy ard catering (Biue Arrowt, ard also led o schoo
closdres, impacting our education busiress iCareer Teackersi
where gross profit remained lower than 2019

Spay TG INE 30 Gryear fLrchona, Lot

. Across our RSS portfolio, permanenrt recruitment fees were
9C% up on 2620 as market confidence returned, with positive
impact in office {Tate) and legal {Chadwick Nott). However.
in aggregate, the portfolio still lagged 2015 gross profit
by 17 4%*,

Our Healthcare busiress ir the UK (MCL) made good progress
ir 2027 put with less pronourced growrn Against 2070 with
- Anancial performance conbinuing to be affected by the
pandemic. The virus had a significant impact on avalability
of front-line staff and resulted in the cancellation of elective
surgery and other nop-urgent redical procedures. Durirg
the year we are proud that MCG was Feaviiy irvolved I the
maragemert of testing and vaccinatior services as part of
" the national effort against Covid-19 and. as a conseguence
facilitated good work for pecple in our ife sciences (SRG) and
general sraffing (Biue Arrow) businesses who report gross
profit separately. Gross profit in Heatthcare UK and ireland was
S up8.C%*on2C2Cand 2.7%* upon 2079,

* NORTH AMERICA (29% OF GROSS PROFIT)

In North Arerica, ocur nvestimertsie STEM and CMS paid
dividends with strorg momentum building For GMS ard new
STEM leadership appoirted to drive accelerated growth.

The regicn delwered strong gross prefit growth of 3.5%
116.7%*) on 202C and was also 11.5%* higher thar 201 &

This was driven by strong gross profit grawth i GMS of
17 3%~ reflecung a good level of new business secured across
a broad range of market sectors ard pesitive resulis Fromr

increased coilaboratior 3¢r0ss the ortfolio.

|
STEM gross orofit was steady at 8.7%~, with a supstanuval
vncrease of 21.8%F in our iT business. Lorien offset py declines
. irfife sciences and engireerirg.

Our light incdustriai business. Corestaff benefited “rom

Fewer cestrictiors ard an ircrease o demand, ard grew

gross profit by 38.3%. A sarticular Feature of thus growth

was the supply of workers into Cowid-"S-retated activities

with our maraged services cusiomers. Fodowirg a strategic
review whicr considered the scale and lirmited gecgraphic
footprint of Corestaff n North Amerca, and a subseguent
expression of interest, we decided that our cuscemers and
people would benefit from enhanced geographic reach far
their lght industrnial staffing requiraments. As a result, in earty
2022, Impellam scld the business and assets of Zorestaff to
swipejobs Inc.. a US private digital staffing company, for a cash
consideration of approximately £74m :$13m;. The proceeds of
the sale witl pay dowr ret debt- to furd additioral :nvesktmert
to further accelerate the Groun's scrategy. This zransaction
will erable the leadership team im North America to focus our
STEM apd CMS portfoios ard accelerate our nvestmerts i
Vietaosity, technology ard digital ard innovatior.

BRIy AT LN DYy ThE LUITert et farsign Tarrent, excnange fage
> x rl E
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APAC (6% OF GROSS PROFIT)

In Asia Pacific (APAC). border closures and extended
lockdowns were more severe in 2021 than in 2020 and
continued to frustrate performance in our healthcare
business despite some encouraging financial and aperational
improvements in seqdential quarters towards the end of the
year. Despite this, overall gross profit was up 6.5% {4.9%~) n
2027 with more resilient trading ir CMS mitigatirg the declire
in Healthcare.

Our GMS business achieved gross profit growth of 15.4%*
cn 2020 and a 7.2% :ncrease on 2019, whilst the Healtncare
Business gross profit declined by 5 8%* due to the cross-
border iockdowrs.

We cortirued o ouild resilience in our maraged services
business n APAC when we estatlished cur first foothold

ir the private sector, secuning ore of our .argest globat
Maraged Services Prograrmmes "MSP7) with a glabal mining
arganrisation. Led by our APAC region this well provide over
1,000 beads gicbatlly, across rmultiple fFanctiens from blue
callar skills to miring spedialists.

Ir Australia, Clobal Medics focused on trarsformatior [ 2guin
the business with the resources and tools o thrive in the next
evolutior of the Australiar mecical recraitmert market,

In 2020 we launched our digitat platform Flexy .nto the
Austranan market Lo support ouf maraged services busiress
Flexy now has 37 iocal counciis connected directly to good
gualicy cardicates in a digizal marketplace, scpplemerted oy 3
digitat payroll service that has already been extended into four
MSP clients in the region. in its first Fuil year of trading, =lexy
detivered £0.4m of gross profit.

LOOKING FORWARD

The global pardemic has Jperded the world of work and
created huge societal charge. Cur vision ard missior have
rever beer more importart as we continue to focus or
Virtuosity as our strategic advartaqe to further crarsform our
propositior ard portfolio. We believe we are well placed for
Further success m 2022 ard beyora, sithough we 3re mindful
of the potentizl global economic impact of the current conflick
ir Ukraine,

A Bold Promise

QOUR STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE
virtuosity makes the difference and will drive market-
beating vatuse credtion.

QUR STRATEGIC ADVANTAGE

we believe we retain castorrers, peaple and investors
for longer trhar our corrpetitors becaJse we're trusted
to do what we say we are going to do. we work
collaboratively across our diverse portfoliowith a
shared visicr, missior styte and larguage we call "The
virtuoso Way . This enabies s to deliver differentiated,
integrated solutions o our customers and to find good
wark for our people.

OQURSTRATEGIC SCOPE

Customers

we work with customers who value 2ngaged, fulfilled
ard purposeful pecple, and who allow us to fake our
share of tre ecoromic salue we create as we help them
build 3 berter busiress,

Offering

We are 3 ieading Clobal Talent Acguisition and
Managed Workfarce Solutions provider erabled
by talent-focused Specialist Scaffing brands with
deep heritages verticai sector expertise and loyal
cardigate retworks,

Geography

we offer nultiple brands anc services across Nerth
Arrerica, the UK & Earope and APAC. To further
support our mussion, and co find exciting opportunities
for our people, we also invest i, and operate with,
specific clients in other regions

integration

we have a unique, differentiated 2nd collaborative
model. This integrates Maraged Services ard Specialist
Staffing into a ful workforce solutions management
platform for our Zastorrers’ permarert, cortingert
ard Staterrert of Work I'SOwW' spend. Our work s
irmportart, ard we get .t done.

TN 2 TTITTAr L L

www.impellam.com
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Our integrated, collaborative business model

OUR MISSION

TO PROVIDE FULFILMENT
AND A SENSE OF PURPOSE
FOR OUR PEOPLE AND HELP
OUR CUSTOMERS BUILD
BETTER BUSINESSES iN A
CHANGING WORLD.

OURKEY
DIFFERENTIATORS

QUR CULTURE OF VIRTUOSITY
Yirtucsity 1s 3 mindset shat medns 'mpeltar
oenple see 2pporturities xhere ol ers

40 N0 YirmJesos tock ahead Lo see Now
castomers and ca~didates reods are
hanging anc are always “2ady Lo acant
ardinnova.g, Svetyore ar ' moeila™
ZONCTIDLISs o oof coltire of Virtuosiy oy
Taxirg & Jirfarence ard doing the comran,
sreommosly wall AL Lhe ~eart of our
irragraiad, collasorative ousiress ~ocel
isa 4cuous arcle of making and weeoirg
2rOTISES, 2ngenderirg st anc loyaily. Sy
LERIINY Sul OTOTISES, AC TELaIN DL Zierts
ca~cidates and our pesble "o lorge” 2ng
seap thae nepe” s of har worgenty

THE BEAUTIFUL BASICS
M2 Taee surz than e Bedu il 34s1cs 272
i olece 3rd ceeply emneccedin all of our

Susitesses 32 455 o follaboracve portralio.

Jeadful 3asics’ arz cancg for she smalles
dezals, as well as -me bigger ores, Thay

3 = re differerce Impellar ceaole Take
IWOLGE Our Zay-no-day achions 1o coliver or
SLTDPOMmises,

TAKING THE HIGH ROAD

WE TS0LS DT 2arihenng with organisalicns
chat satue orgaged "ufled pecole anc we
call This Zmo migr soad” which serves £o diive
dear mar«et segmencalien ard a compelling
crice 30Nt

ENTREPRENEURIAL

VIRTUOSO LEADERS

Adl our DLsimesses work ™ The v aso wWay
whicn 2m3eds 3 JaNSISe T,
Grovo-wice fuliore nases on oastedd
seravial s delive 2d by 2alenre~eunal
virtteose leaders who 2an dive aur
“omipenilae advartage ard Celner 20 aur
siorises toall our stacencloe s,

~ace_'4

OUR VISION

TO BE THE WORLD'S MOST
TRUSTED STAFFING COMPANY —
TRUSTED BY OUR PEOPLE, OUR
CUSTOMERS AND OUR INVESTORS
IN EQUAL MEASURE,

TO DELIVER EXCEPTIONAL SERVICE
TO OUR CUSTOMERS THROUGH:

OUR REGIONS
NORTH
AMERICA
UK &
APAC EUROPE
OUR OPERATING SEGMENTS
O\G\TAL PLATFORMS
REGIONAL GLOBAL
SPECIALIST MANAGED
STAFFING SERVICES
COLLABORATION
HEALTHCARE STEM

DIGITAL pLATFORM®
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TO CREATE VALUE FOR
OUR STAKEHOLDERS

CLIENTS
CUR CULTURE: AETUNE 1N 70 Dl Tustamers and work
OUR VIRTUOSO MODEL cicsely arth ~mer o ® ~2 22002 For good
work tohely e wudd sethor husiresses
We retair fhes, Corbruing Lo sten and
DATTNET &'70 The br exte~d the soape ard
torare of sursgcsices a0C N 200G 50 GRE T
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Key performance indicators

We monitor our performance against our strategic
priorities by using key performance indicators ('KPIs’).
Our KPls include a set of financial and non-financial
measures and are discussed further in the CEQ

and CFO reviews.

Financial KPlIs

GROUP REVENUE

_Em
£2,262.4m

MEASUREMENT EXPLAINED
Reyenge geteraigs rom sales

O CONTACCWOrL™S e Tare t
olacerent “ees 3 Lnerircome |
Je~er3ted from oo iwon 27
BERTT I

RATIONALE
ncicazes the volume a1 susiness

genealoT T L he vear

CONVERSION RATIO ~ |
ADJUSTED OPERATING |
PROFIT* %

11.0%

MEASUREMENT EXPLAINED

ACLsTEC 22eT3LNg orofik

SxLTEsse as 3 perlatiage of
gross ooahic
|
|
|
!
RATIONALE i
e cghes the art g

ers r e
& 0.

semitdl oosia, |

236 s

£267.0m

" fomteolacement of nermatent
©ratdidates, less -

' (PRE-IFRS 16)

C_Em
£(15.0)m

GROUP GROSS PROFIT

MEASUREMENT EXPLAINED |

eveue less cost of saies,

I orecorminazely ne sure of

ZooIract gross oooft and fees

aboncurab.e ass
renatas.

RATIONALE
|~dicates e 3727 tapiny of

|
|

|

|

|

I

: N . |

Teyen.e DRfOTe dperatng costs |
|

|

|

I

GROUP NET DEBT*

MEASUREMENT EXPLAINED

Tora Dooun dantexcuding ease
liaoi ;735 and £asn
2oL zapirahisce

FrarCng ool

RATIONALE |

MeTdebltisa ey 2eTert T Lne

OroLn's capial serocure,

' GROUP ADJUSTED

MEASUREMENT EXPLAINED

CLngetyirg arof -

| RATIONALE

" MEASUREMENT EXPLAINED

L Temprsttaces Sow 2N arsone

1 GIou2 13 In Conyey

OPERATING PROFIT* _€m

£29.3m

kg of The
Grodz Je e rue 8st anc
taxes It sgjusents for
IMpaIrmerts ard ame tsatioTs

of accurred ircargioles ard !
TparTert of ight of Sse eased
as5e7s,

Temgrsitates re xafitanihiey

GROUP NET CASH
GENERATED FROM

" OPERATIONS_£m

£10.2m

=g grrount of Zash gereraiad
STALING 30T ILES 37T

' GROUP OPERATING
. PROFIT_£m

£19.5m
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J
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Operational KPIs

INTERNATIONAL
MIX %

38.1%

MEASUREMENT EXPLAINED
Tocal gross profrirom ys.ress
oLeT3Lons SLEsICe of The LK,
esp-essed 33 a nefcentage of

JTELD 3f0Ss BIoT

RATIONALE
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or any 7R 203N0My

GROUP FILL
%

16%

MEASUREMENT EXPLAINED
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Maraged Serices arogrammes

RATIONALE

=vabies ourspec s
2rEN0s o sUDa0
SET RS rogrars T
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GROSS PROFIT
MIX %

29.7%

MEASUREMENT EXPLAINED
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oL Globat Maraged Services
bosnesses expressed as a
cercectage of Graup gross arot e

| RATIONALE
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AVERAGE GROSS
PROFIT PER FTE
£'000

£98.7

MEASUREMENT EXPLAINED
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" CLIENT RETENTION -

TOP 50 CLIENTS %

100%

MEASUREMENT EXPLAINED
e »ercentage of ohe fop 50

GROUP ADJUSTED
EBITDA®_£m

- £37.0m
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" RATIONALE
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£1.53
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STRATEGIC REPORT

Performance reviews

North America

North America accounts for 29% of our

gross profit and is primarily focused on our
Global Managed Services ({GMS') and STEM
operating segments through the Guidant
Global brand for GMS and the SRG, Lorien and
Bartech Staffing brands for STEM,

OVERVIEW

The regior delivered a strong growth in reverue ard gross
proft curing the year making good progress against Its
arrbitious three-year plan. we rave focused or diversifyirg
our chient portfolic to increase cur resilience ard invested

in building the foundations for expansion. Targeting our
STEM business on specific sectors, supported by specialist
teams is already yielding results and we have benefited from
the significant recovery in the permanent recruitrment ard
maraged services markets. The robust performanrce of our
GMS segment :n Nerth America reflected nine new customer
wins and over USS3C0m anncal SUMIn 2021 as customers
soagirt Full talert raragement soldtiors ir the face of
significant talent shortages across most sectors. 4s 3 "esult of
astrategic review and to enable increased focus or CMS ard
STEM, Corestaff our light ~dustrial business, was sold

ro swipejobs Inc, a US private digita: staffing platform in
sarty 2022,
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FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

Aropust revenue increase of 13.6% (25.4%* to £456.3m
followed a stabie year (202G, £407 .5my. demonstrating
positive gngerlying growth, ratber than purely a Covid-*9
bounce back Cross profit rose by 8.3% [156.7%%) 0 £76.5m
(202G £75.5m) This was driven by strong performance by our
OMS segment with a 17.3%* nise reflecting the good level

of new busiress secured ard oositive results fromarcreasirg
collaboration across the portfslio Crowth in STEM gress profit
was steady at B.7%™ with a substanual increase of 21.8%~
our I7 business, Larien, offset by declines in life sciences and
ergreerrq.

Adjusted operat.ng profit- was £1£.1m 120200 £13 4} due
to the impact of investrert 'nzeople and infrascructure ko
support ambitigus growth plars. Headcourt neressed Dy 136
in response to this expansion of the susiness «n the region.

Reported adjusted sperateng profit: for the North America
region in 2021 was impacted by £1.9m increase i Zrovisions
for historical legal cases and £1m af provisicn against ore-
202 receivables. The rescrted results are aiso impacted

i by the strengtheming of £ Sterling against the USS through

2¢21. Excluding these items, and on a constant exchange
rate basis, operating profit is higher when compared to beth
2020 and 2019,

North America m

Revenye 456.3
Gross profit 76.5 70.3 65.7%
Admin expenses (66.4} 157 24.8%
Ad;ulsted cperating 104 15.4 16.41%
profit-
Cross profit % 16.8% 176%
Ads oper

d}uAstled operating ; 13.2% 19.0%
profite corversior ratio %
Permarent ‘ees % 3.9% 2.2%
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“INVESTMENT IN
SYSTEMS AND
TECHNOLOQY
SPECIFICALLY TO
SUPPORT QUR
REGIONAL BUSINESS
WILL HELP FREE UP
OUR VIRTUOSOS AND
IMPROVE CANDIDATE
EXPERIENCE."

*£456.3m

Revenue for North
America in 2021.

MARKET DYNAMICS
The candidate shortfall in the US continues to be a major
chalienge Far our clierts and our recruiting aperations,

. Cardidate sourarg, attractior and ergagenert remairs 3 top
" prierity, The STEM sector expanded at an unprecedented rate.

maxing market insight and specialist knowledge essentiai to
comrpebibive advantage.

SUPPORTING CUR VIRTUOQSO CULTURE

Invastmentin systems and technology speafically to support
our regioral busiress will help free up curVirtuosos and
improve candidate expenence. The appointment of a Group
Head of Culture and Fulfilment based in the US has alrzady
sccelerated the pace of cur ED&I .ritiatives. Qur Urity Coural
has been relaurched, supportad by rew busipess rescurce
aroups 10 develop our pelicies ard raise awareress,

" PORTFOLIO REVIEW

GM5

. The robust oerformarce of our CMS segmenrt in North Amerca
« reflected a3 good level of new business secured across a bread

rarge of market sectors and positive 1esults from ircreasirg
collaboration across che portfolio. Qur new Customer OFfice

+ provided both our key strategic clierts and Virtuosos with
" insight and expertise, heiping us expand our service offering.
. Alongside access to our GMS Global Centre of Excelience

which provides Functonal experts across all our brands, we
are now oroviding 8 broader perspective to help deveiop our

" cherts ard greater career opportunities for our people.

As demand recovered. the significant crogramme sigred at
the erd of 2020 with Travelport bas row bedded in and is
delivering streng growth, white demaonstrating the benefits
of zollaboration betweer Croup brands placing iT spedialists
from Lorier 3lorgside the aursourced recraitment services
cortract won by Cuidart. Revende from a new c.stoimer, a
leadirg environmental ser.1ces compary, 1s already abead of

expectations for the initial scope.

Orgoirg Covid-" 9 retgted requirements saw Js cortinuing
to provide track and trace and bealth check sersices in both
federal and State Covernmerts, where aur ability to respord
quickly to rapid surges in demand was key.
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STRATEGIC REPORT

Performance reviews continued

STEM

This was a transitional year as we diversified and refocused
our portfolio by building or our existing specialisms and
rmoving into new vertical markets to broaden aur expertise.
Lonen benefited significantly from early investment in 2021
ard was able to take advartage of st-org post-Covid-19
trading corditions. Over the course of 2027, Lonien doubied
headcount and expanded their Specialist Markets tearm to
adaress the bugyant mobile developmenrt and Salesforce

ta world-leadirg CRM solution) segrrents ir the techrology
space ard the renewabie erergy and electric vebicie segments
in the ergireering market, deven by demard from the US
automotive gowerhouse. The Lorien leadership team has alse
been exparded strengthening the expertise and knowledge
readed to Jrderpin oJr rapid growth. Irvesting ir these
sectors inrcluded binng rew teams to work virtugily in key
strategic growtn locations: Denver, Sar Diego and Austin,
ensdring we remain close to zardidates and clients.

The notable increase .n gross profit generatad by Lorien
reflected the Focus on more complex recruitment solutions

as demard for STEM skills contirued to outstrip supoly ard
tre well-docarrented cardidate shortage ras resuleed in
ircreased appetite from cdstomers to autsource their STEM
resource needs to specialist staffing providers. The demand
for mere complex STEM recruitment solutions underpinred
by tre zreation of a new Solutions Divisior resulted ir three
rew “ech-focused Recruitment Process Cutsourcirg "RPO™
contracts; the first of these with Epsilon as a single source
supplier for this leacirg US marketing orgarisatior. As 3 result
of this investment strateqy, Lorier deliverad strorg results,
growing gross profit by 21.8% year over year with gross orofit
from direct hure solutiors alse ap aver 200% o pr.or yeasr.

The overall performance withie our STEM oortfalio was
rmixed, delivering a gross prafit growth of 7.5%. Collaboration
3Cross the STEM portfolio of brands was oarticularly strong,
leveraging exisung customer relationships acress the portfelio
te deliver over $1m (£0.7m) of additionat gross profit in the
year. Collaboration betweer the STEM brands and our CMS
busiress, Cuidart Clobal, also cortirued to gain pace, with
specialistiT Life Scences and Engireering staffing provisior
into Sroup Managed Service customers up 43% year-on-year.

Crowth withir our Life Scierces business was below
expectations given the strong performance of this sector. SRG
was restructured during 2021 to reduce gver-retjance or the
CRA vertical fwhich was ‘mpacted due to Covid-* 3 restrictionrs
reducing in-person clinical trials). The team was excanded

to support the diversification of the SR business inta the
Quality, Regulatory ard Compliarce {QRC) segrrert of the
life sccences market, to extend its ~each from its established
base in climcal research ang move frem supcorting short-term
clinicat trials to longer-terr projects This renewed focus,
corrbined with a change in leadersrip. is already celiverirg
sarly and significant iImprovements.

QOur Engineenng business, Bartech, was slower o jecover from
the impact of Cowd-"9 within our core Automotive castomer

. base Customer activity -mproved significantly .n the second

< Zaloulatec oy o niply g the DG gear fLocrenal TUTFERCY AMSLrT Oy e Curt

Page 20

haif of the year, but headcount challenges in an extremely
competitive market digd not allow Js to grow the team quickly
erough te capitalise apor this rebound. In continuatior of
cur diversification strategy, we expanded intc the renewable
energy ang electrnc vebicle segments in the eng neerirg
sector. driven by demand from existing customers.

LOOKING FORWARD

The underlying nfrastructure we need to drive forward our
expansion plans ;s now in place with experienced hires on
board 'n strategic leadership reles ard specialist tearrs fulby
staffed to support the robust demand we see across the
market. Whilst the new Cowvid-* 9 variart had sorre T pact or
candidate gvailanility earty 1in 2022, custormer demard remains
high, ard we are seeirg a drop 1n absences due to Covid-19,
sowe anticpate continued growth throughout the year. 0
response to increasing demand for STEM candidaces, we
willievest in building diverse STEM candidate comrmunities

to address the talert shortages ir these arkets. Equally,
significant custamer demand For innovative CMS solutions will
conbinue through 2€27 and we will reap the benefits of wins
in 202",

27 Ear f3Ua1gn Tur ency 2Xchange “ate
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UK & Europe

Our largest region, UK & Europe, accounts
for 65% of our gross profit generated by ail
Four of our operating segments — Guidant
Global, Comensura and Flexy in GMS, Lorien,
Carbon60 and SRG in STEM, Blue Arrow,
Tate, Career Teachers and Chadwick Nott

in Regional Specialist Staffing ('RSS’) and
Medacs Global Group in Healthcare.

OVERVIEW

With a strorg boynce back in cliert demmand alorg amth bigh
leveis of Covid-13-relaled bysiness, "suenws and adjuste]
operating profits+in the regior delivered an irrpressive
recavery. We saw growth in all brands, significant new
busiress wirs ard were very proud of gur cortributicr fo

tre ~ational zesting prograrmme ard to the delivery cf the
wacciration programme in mary UK courties. The UK lockdown
it Q71 irrpacted our educatior and catering busiresses but
with restrictions lifting throughout the year, demanrd gracually
returred over the secord half. Trarsportanar of goods
remaired cuoyant ard we resporded well (o the growirg
opporfturities ir the healthcare sector.

by

< Zaco ate by

1 FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
" Revenuerose 13.1% {13.6%") to £1.741.4m (2020: £1 533.5m)
' reflecting higher volumes in both tempaerary and permanent

recruitmmenrt ard cortributing to 3 substartial ircrease ir
gross profit of 22 6% (22.6%* to £172.5m (2020: £140 7m)
Combired with productivity increases drvirg Migher gross

. profit per FTE this delivered a sigrificant recovery in adjusted
" operabing profit® to £24.5m {2020 £8.1m), well ahead of

2013 ievels. Headcount was increased by 15% wikth 145 FTEs
recrJited to meet the rise in demard across both natioral ard
local clients.

UK & Europe
Revyenue 1,741.4 339.5 13.6%
Gross profit 172.5 1407 22.5%
Admin expenses (148.0) 1326 A%
. r3t

Adjusted operating 245 20| 2233%
profit*
Gross profit % 9.9%, 3.1%
Adjusted cperating

profit™ conversion 14.2% 5.8%

ration %
Perrrarert fees % 16.4% E%

»£1,741.4m

Revente for UK & Europe
in2021.

TLITIRy g The 3P 6 year Funciicra turrercy aMount by the corencyear Foraign cumoengy axcpange tale
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STRATEGIC REPORT

Performance reviews continued

MARKET DYNAMICS

As rarkets emerged From Covid-" 9 restrictions, we saw

a significant rebound in demand for both permanent and
temporary staff across all our brands. This reflected major
pressires or employers facirg “the great resignation’ as
empicyee EUrNover rose in g bocming post-Covid-19 jobs
market. This led to 3 shortage of candidates with supply
autstripping dermand | several sectors. Mary candidates i
the rospitaiity sector charged careers dunrg lockdown
periods with 8rexit and driver shoriages impacting the
logistics sector In the {T sector. the ‘niroduction of OFff Payroil
Working changed the taxat;cn reguirements for contractors
leadirg mary to leave the freelarce market, where talert

15 already in short supply. Nursing conbinues to suffer a
sabstartial shortfalt .m cardidates with over 110,000 vacarcies
3cross the nealthcare market, As aresult, pay rates are rising
ard clients are ircreasing neentives to attrace cardidates,
focusirg on developing distirctive empioyee srands, their
ED&I strategies and their approach to clirmate change.

SUPPORTING CUR VIRTUQOSO CULTURE

Wwe continued to Invest in erabling our Virtuosos, focusing or
their wellbeing, persoral developmert and ways of working.
Career paths were introduced o provide our pecple with
advice and guidance an the skills and experience required to
progress their careers,

we offered Blerded working to retain the benefits of working
frem home and bring back tre collaboration thar we enjoy
working togetherin the office. Tate in particular moved o

3 more virtual way of workirg broadening their geogranhic
zoverage from a smaller number of offices bulding on ther
existing service detivery hub model.

“AS MARKETS EMERGED
FROM COVID-19
RESTRICTIONS, WE
SAW A SIGNIFICANT
REBOUND IN
DEMAND FOR BOTH
PERMANENT AND
TEMPORARY STAFF
ACROSS ALL OUR
BRANDS."
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PORTFOLIO REVIEW

GMS

Our managed services Business delivered an 8 7%~ increass
In gross profit, benefiting from the upsalling opportunities
created by the breadth of customers acrass the .mpellam
portfolic in the Uk and winning new contracts with existing
chients of cther Srands. For example extensive collaboration
with our STEM busiresses delivered rew cortract wins: Blue
Arrow increduced Guidant Global to Capita snd Zomensura
and Cuidart Clobal worked ir partrership to deliver a large-
scale intake ard screering drograrme For The British Council
ard secured the maragement of Bristol Coaral's Statement

of Work ['SOWwW') requirement which will eap benefits in 2022

ir the UK & Sarope, 2027 was 3 pivotal year for our SOW

¢ net module and offering. We now have circa 120 projects
maraged rhrough 20 customers globally. Comensura
celebrated its 20tk arriversary by breaxing all reverue ard
retertior records. with curteams retaining 26 custorers ard
protecting over £3min 3ross profit.

The strong recouvery of revenge ir Irelard was dnver by an
iIrrovative turnkey solutior For a starz Jp business, srowdirg
people, property ard techralogy, underpirned by several
rew cortracts.

clala

STEM
To take advartage of the attractive potertial for STEM ip
the Uk & Europe we brought our scientific, technology and
engineerirg brards - 3RC, Lorien and Carbor6d together
. Jrder sirgle ieadership to deliver STEM Lalert at scale.
" Combining cur market-leading scientific, technelogy and
: ergineering brands into ore operating segment (STEM
" Portfalio) has yielded strong results in :ts First Full year
of cperatiors. It was pleasing to see record reverae and
gross orofit growth in our STEM brands with cross-seil and
. collaboration with the Croup driving £55.8m 0 gross profit.

This Focus has already yielded fruit with sigmficant wins sueh

as our engineering experience leading to a techrical MSP

with Tiibury Douglas, a leadirg UK buitdirg, ergineering

and infrastructure compary, and Lorien s financial serv.cas

cedigree securing a new coptract wir™ ore of the UK's largest

long-term savirgs and retrement pusiresses. Loner also

secured sever specalist MSP wins and 78 rew custorrers

across their Speciabist Markets tearr. A focus or RPO soldtions,

as custormers surred their mirds 1o permanent hirng, resulted

. ir Lonen winring Apsco RPG of The Year, the Client Services

- award at the Tiaras ard the RPO 'p-bouse Recruitmert Team
il the In-house Recruitmenrt Awards

SRG s market-leading scientific division supported many private
and pubtic sector orgarisatiors with the rapid recrditmert

of PCR scientists, recraiting over *, 200 scientists (o support
Covid-' 39 testing in less than 12 months and urdertaking ail the
compliance and regulatory requiremenrts. The demard for SCw
cortracts cortinues bo grow, particalarly for SRC's laboratony,
services divisior (Synergy) who partrered with Cignpost, a
diagrostic testing company to mobilise 330 scieprtists.

_Inorder to respord with speed ard agibity to large shifts im

© custommer demand, we irvested in developing our people
and building on our specalist sector capability fy setting

4D 3 Trairing Academy to gpskill our recraiters with the
specific skills and knowledge they need to serve tugh-growth,
specialist markets.

sed oy WUlDDIYNG TIE ST O yedr TLhCUSra Ll Ters, araunt Dy the forrenc year foregr Surrercy excnange tate
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STRATEGIC REPORT

Performance reviews continued

RSS

Our portfolio evolved Further as we focused or creating
strorger brards and a more strearnlicred orgarisation. We
strergthered our Education business, drirging Celsian under
the Career Teachers brand, with irtegrated vettirg ard
corrpliarce Functiors ard a rew updated CRM system, A
significant new contract with the Harris Federation saw Career
Teachers become one of three lead suppliers o 50 schools

in the South East, secunng a three-yesr contract. In addition.
we secJared a maraged service cartract with the dpiversity of
Southampton For all contingent staffing.

Covid-13 staffng for our pubuc sector clients was a key Focus
for Biue Arrow in 2027 with strong growth across our ScetCovy
and CCS frameworks for supperting 84 government and NHS
orgamsatiors across Ergland, Scetlard ard Wales. Supoly of
staf® to our seven UK University clients was alsc a xey focus
throughout 2027, ahere we saw a 13% incregse i feverdes
through cur Higher Sducatior frameworks for caterirg,
adrministration and facilities support staff.

we moved into Phase bwo of the Blue Arrow transformation
pragramme, with a Focus on <reating efficiencies by operating
physical and virtual offices and centralising support for key
aceourts through the Costomer Success Hub. Setupir 2020,
this iribiative enrarcad our delivery te key naticnal accounts,

reducing duplicatior acrgss brarches and erabling our Virtuosos

to corcertrate or their iccal markets ard Righer margie clients.
It Phase tbwo we noved more cients into the hub, addirg to

the 20 .rdustrar and warehousirg clierts transferred in 2020,
New customers included Hovis and Tesco where the orovision of
pre-Christmas resources has already extended into warehousing
and Zistrbubior in some (egions.

Risirg demard for the services provided under our Take brand
meluding our new marketing HR and finance staffing, meant
that adjusted operazing profit: more thar dounted year on
year as a result,

i
i
]
i
i
1
|
\

HEALTHCARE

Our ability to coliaborate across our brards erabled ssto

fulfl requirernents at pace as we supported the natcnal
testing ard vaccinatiop prograrere. This erabled MCC to
provide over 2,000 staff to Fulfil our exclusive managed service
contract awarded by the Departrent of Health ard Social Care
ir December 2020 to support the natioral Covid-"9 restirg
programme. We also sepperted the NHS via the vacdinatior
srogramme for Buckinghamshire, Oxfordshire and Berkshire
healt~ authonties, where we have delivered three millior
vaccirations To date.

Our climical expertise 's underminning the provision of an
innovative msourcing service for Uriversity Hospital Leicester,
where we are supplying ar erd-to-erd service, delivered or
tre hospital prermises, to help the NHS reduce 1ts lerg wait'rg
lists For esective procedures. & second similar cortrack has
already beer sigred ard s now live and rhis irsourairg sefvice
offering will be a key driver of growth far 2022 for MGG,

Dactors on Cail was merged into our Clobal Medics UK
business, simplifying cur operating structure. We are already
the biggest s.pplier of locum doctors to the NHS ard HSE and
with dermard for healthcare professiorals sutstripping supply

i inthe UK our .rternatiorai placemerts divisior recruited over
D00 overseas rurses ir 2027 ard have a pipetine in place to

deliver more in 2022. We alsc added significant Staff Bank/MS?
contracts to our portfolic ar Cardiff & Vale, Cenkral Londen
Community Healthcare, Bristol & weston and Chesrire & Wirral.

LOOKING FORWARD

whilst we apticipate Covid-" 9-retated revenue witt reddce
going forward, the extension of our major vaccination
programme combired with the shertage of healthcare
professiorals, articularly the ~uge rurmber of nursirg
vacarcies, and the return of the caterirg market, will cortinue
to drive Cemand :r the UK. We axpect our STEM and CMS
businesses to go from skrergth to strergth as we respord

to talent scarcity across these disciplines and benefit from
customer wins and expansion through 2022, Collaboration
3¢ross our brands has yielded positive results this year and we
see this as key to buildirg cur customer base in the year ahead.
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Asia Pacific

The Asia Pacific region currently generates
6% of Impellam'’s global gross profit, largely
from the Healthcare market in Australia and
New Zealand through Medacs Global Group
{'MCG") and the Guidant Global, Comensura
and Flexy brands (‘{GMS’).

OVERVIEW

Cowid-19 continued to have a material impact on our staffing
busiresses across APAC due to frequert ard arciorged
Iockdownrs im states ard tarritories across Adstralia ard 'n New
Zealarnd. Border restrictiors limted cardidate avadabilicy as
doctors were unabie w0 travel etther inbourd from cverseas
arinterrally as domestic norders closed. Demrard fram
healthcare oroviders across Austratia returned strongty in Q4
202" orce lockdown rescrictions lifsed in New Soutr wales
ardvictorna. Public sector reverue also began 2o recover. Onre
of 'mpeilam’s targest global MSP contracts was sigred with }
a global mirirg orgarisation, creating an important faothoid |
ir the private sector alengside two additioral rew maraged ‘
SErACEs wins. ‘

IIHHHHIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

The regron recorded a solic performance with reverue of
£64.7m and gross profit of £18.0r both ahead of the previous
year, with the declire r bealtbcare revenues mitigated Dy
more resilient fradirg in managed services including the
orovisior of Covid-"9 tracers ard waccire admiristrators.

This contricuted to an 22.2% {19.9%*} increase in adjustec
operating profit- to £2.2m. Positive trading for the first 12
months of the Flexy digital marketpiace the recovery of

. heatthcare demand ard imtial revenues from the rew prvate
sector cortractks Hode wel for a return fo growth ir the rew

financial year.

Reverue

Cross orofit 18.0 &3 4.5%
Admin expenses (15.8) 115,73 TG
AdjliSLTed operating 2.2 ‘g 19 a9,
profits

Cross profit % 21.8% 28.2%

Adjusteq opergtmg orofire 12.2% 10.7%

corversion raticr %

Permanert fees % 8.2% 5.0%

»£64.7m

Revenue for APACin 2021.
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STRATEGIC REPORT

Performance reviews continued

MARKET DYNAMICS

Border controls ard fzlling net migration inta Austraba bave
led to 3 Fall in worker sopuiation, creating cardidate shortages
that are being exacertated as customer demand recovers.
This s putting pressure or chert badgets requirirg rew

ways of workirg enabled via techrology and greater appetite

For digitalisation,

Cardidates are row demrardirg more and some of Gur
Zdstomers are increasing sapplier margin to attract supptiers
to work with them. The talent crarch s most prorounced in
the rredical professior with derard outstripsirg supply.

SUPPORTING OQUR VIRTUOSO CULTURE

Investmertip techrolegy is key 1o freeing up our Virtuosos

to spend more tirme on client retationships. Qur proprietary
systems such as ¢.ret ard Evo provide enbarced digital
olatforms to erabie chis. We cortirue to focus on trairirg and

developmenrt, introducing feedback and coaching sessions for

our Comensura tearrs and perfermance enbarcerment trairing
for our Clobai Medics team eaders.

“ONE OF IMPELLAM'S
LARGEST GLOBAL
MSP CONTRACTS
WAS SIGNED WITH
A GLOBAL MINING
ORGANISATION,
CREATING AN
IMPORTANT
FOOTHOLD IN THE
PRIVATE SECTOR
ALONGSIDE TWO
ADDITIONAL NEW
MANAGED SERVICES
WINS."
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PORTFOLIO REVIEW

GMS

By diversifying into the private sector, we ~ave started to
expand our portfolio which in turn will increase our resilience
gaing Torward. This was spearheaded by the substantial
gtopal MSP contract with a mining orgarisation ta provide

1 00C staff across all Functions internationally, with a further
maraged services rew business wir with aiarge Austcralian
chemical cormpanry.

This builds on aur traditioral, wetl-established public sector
business where we bave retaired ard developed our clients,
For example, retaining 100% of cur customer base at
Comensurs, includirg addirg a returning client fost.n 2020, n
November 2021, we went lve with zhe expanded New South
wales "NSw Commurities and Justice Cluscer which saw

our revenue from this existing customer double to cover the
supoey of 850 staff, and an extension of our services to include
our First SOW contract.

Sigrificant contract extensions include a four-year managed
services cortract with the Australiar Capitat Territory ACTY
Government which now has che scope to expand into 3 SOW
agreemant during the extension period and a similar four-year
extersion with icare for alISW, the largest public sectorinsurer
in Austratia, ahich has row corre ander the umbrella of our
NSW framework agreement.

Extending our digital ptatferm includea the successful launch
of Flexy in 2020 Ints first full year of trading in 2£21 1t closed
the year with 37 local courcls corrected directly to good
guality cardidates in a digital marketplace, supplemented by a
digital payroll service that has already been extended into four
MSP clierts ir the regior and the UK.

< Zalcoated oy

SUEEY G the Snof 4237 Tancnnal urrentry amouri by the .

- HEALTHCARE

e Austratia, Clobal Medics is focused on transformatior Lo
eqJip the busiress with the ~esodrces ard tools to prepare for
Future developmerts in the Austraiiar medical recrditmrent
market. Durirg the year we brought together Medacs Mursirg
and Medacs allied Health to create Medacs Australia. This has
provided MCC with greater syrergies and remowed barriers £o
providing cur customers with access to the skills and taierts
they need to deliver crifical services,

Qur rost recert sigring, Gidgee Healing - ar Asgrigiral
Medical Service .o Queenslard - provides an 2pporturity
for Js to work with she lecalindigerods commuarity for the
. First sime. Collaberation between our Clobai Medics ard

. Medacs Healthcare brands will supply doctors, rurses, ard
healtrcare professionals for rermote commumties e North
Wwest Queersland.

LOQKING FORWARD

We 3rticipate a retarn to growth in our heaithcare busiresses
35 Mew Zealard cpers up after a prelonged penod of
. lockdewr ard agstralian travel restrictiors dirmirisn. The
_ strong drive to automate and deliver efficiency will iIncrease
demand for cortirgert laboar ir the public sector and we
axpect our ravenue in NSW to increase. The private contracts
secured in 2021 H2 will provide a springboard into expandirg
our presence e this sector. buillding a more resilient business
inthe regior.

Trenlyesr fDI’E\gI" ToTTENCy 2RLNSNGE rale
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STRATEGIC REPORT

Chief Financial Officer’s review

A strong
recovery

Tim Briant
Chief Financial Officer

Financial

INTRODUCTION

Revenue for tne year was up 13.1% (14.7%*) and gross

orofit increased by 17.1% (19.5%%), reflecting the improved
econorric corditions that Followed the irrpact of the Covid-"9
pandemic in 2020 ard the risirg demand for terrperary ard
permanent staff across our regions and segments :n 2321,
The recovery has been strong and improved throughoat 2027,
with gross profit in the second haif of 2021 € 5%~ above the
same peniod in 2019, and the final quarter of 2021 17 3%~
above tne final quarter of 2019,

To support the growth, we ‘nvested \n customer-facing staff
adding 282 to our headcourt 'mthe second nalf of 2627
Despite this, headcourt at the erd of 2027 remaired 77 ower
thar at the end of 20719. Cur staff productivity igross profiz
divided by FTE heads; was ~igher than in previous years ard
this, together with cost reductions in osher aress, incluging
travel, sroperty and facilities, meant thac agjusted cperating
profit® increased by 51.0% to £29.3m {202C: £78.2m1. CTn

a constant exchange rate basis the adjusrec operating
profits was 2.0% below 2079, With ng requirec irfangible
asset imparmenrt charges this year, the Croup recorded an
operating profit of £19.5m (2028 loss £15.0my which atso
exceeded the £13 8m reported in 2019

The difference netween adjusted operating profit® and
operating profit s reconciled an page 120 and relates to the
arornsab:on of acquired intangibles,

GOVERNMENT SUPPORT

The Group received £0 4m cf rates elief in the final guarter

of 2020/21 and continued to administer the Job Retenbion
Scheme (JRS) for a small number of temporary staff we
provide to clients. The net effect of these programmes on

our gross orofit and cost of sales was not material as thesa
programmes were Jsed tg compensate the remporary

staff affected. It allowed us —a maintamn these temoorary
colleagaes or our payroll withodt chargirg these to clients ard
preventing the erding of their cortracts.

T Calcaarac oy mUbBlyirg The prieryear UMD 3MaL ILrTen0y ITOLPE Sy the aftert jeatforeign correndy exeranrge fate
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From a cash Flow perspective. the Group repaid £33.1m of the
JAT payments deferred from 2020, leaving £3.3m to be repaid
in the first quarter of 2022 In the US, the first instalment of

$8m {£5.8m) of federal tax deferred under the CARES initiative
was repaid, with the secord instaimert due in December 2022,

FOREIGN EXCHANGE

Currercy movements against Sterling adversely impacted our
~eporzed serformance, largely due to the strergthering of
Sterling against the US Doilar. Over the course of the yearto
December 2021 the total impact of exchange movements
on gross profit and adjusted operating profit® were £4.9m
adverse and £1.3m adverse, respectively. Fluctuations in

the rates of the Crodp's key operating CJurrencies versJs
Sterling cortirue to represent a sensitivity for the reported
perfarmanrce of our husiress. By way of illustration, each
cent movement :n annual exchange ratas of the US Dollar
impacts gross profit oy £0.6m per annum and adjusted
operating profit’ by £0.1m per annum. The rate of exchange
betweer the US Dollar and Sterling over the year erded 3°
December 2021 averaged LSS1 3757 (2020 USS" 2840;

and closed at USS1.3535 (2020: USS 1.3494) Asthe Group
expands Further in overseas taritories the .mpact of changes
in exchange rates will be greater.

CAPITAL INVESTMENT

Capital expenditure on tangible and intangible fixed assets
inthe period was £5.8m (2020 £3.5m) as we reccmmenced
irvestrrent in our core systerms to further diqitalise the
business following a freeze on non- essenciat capital
expenditure in 202C in 2021 our core systems project -nveived
moYIrg away (rom on-premises servers te ine cloud, which
also allowed us to exit an on-premises back up site. In addition.
we began our digital programmes to deliver new front office,
oill and pay systems. as well as global finance and HR systems,
scheduled For Full implementatior in 2022, we 3lso cortirued
‘ryestrentin ool propretary verdor maragemenrt systems
{WMS') and the development of our digital platform, Flexy,
which was deployedin Australia The net repayment of finance
weases amounted to £7.2m (2020 £8.2my)

< lacularec oy muibizlyrg the orer year fungo ohal sartenc, arours
by the currers year orergn currarcy 8xe arge mate

NET CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

£10.2m

(2020: £94.5m)

n Calguiated oy Tut plying the o1 ot year tunct eRal LLTrency 3oLt

Ty TMe CUrTerD year forsign CurTe oy 24INENYE Tate

NET DEBT BEFORE IFRS 164

£15.0m

(2020 £4.1m)

F3TToe tar

Glossary: page_122

TancT
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STRATEGIC REPORT

Chief Financial Officer’s review continued

INTEREST AND DEBT

Net cash gererated from operations durirg the pericd

was £10.2m (2020: £94.5m). In 2020, cash generated from
operations benefited from £48.0m of deferred tax payments
and £38.9m of these were repaid in 202 1. Excluding the
Impact of these tax deferrals, cash generated from operations
was £49.1m (2020: £46.5m). Excluding deferred taxes, the
conversion of adjusted operating profits to ret cash gererated
15 167.6% (2020: 256%;. Cash gereration from cperatiuig

~as further supported by an mprovemertir Days Sales
Qutstanding {'DSO ) which stoed at 35.4 days (2020: 37.1 days)
atthe end of 2027,

Finance expenses were ower than the prior year af £4.3m
(20320: £5.7m) Leaseinterest was lower at £G.6m (2020:
£0.8m; and interest cost on financing facilities fell to £3.5m
i2020: £4.6m; as a result of reduced borrowings through

the year. At the nalance shest date ret debt | excluding the
adjustments foi IFRS 16, was £15.0m compared to £4.1mn
20290, an ‘necrease of £10.9m. From the end of 2019, net debt®
has reduced by £57.3m (3 £49.7m reduction when exciuding
the remalning deferred tax repayments). Including IFRS 18
adjustments net debi was £31.5m {2020: £25.3m). In addition
to the positive operatirg cask gereration reducirg the
snderlyirg net debt®, we bave cortinued to actively marage
aur property portfolio with 3 net reductior in our lease aability
af £7 2m From 2020. The net cash Flow from operations was
arirrarily utilised 3s foliows.

+  Invescment in Fixed assets and software develepment: £5.8m
+  Netlease repayment: £7.2m

Share buyoacks. £1.9m

Net interest paid on borrowings and leases: £3.9m.

The Group's operations are financed by retained earnings and
bank borrowings. With the benefits of the strong operational
cash flow the Group replaced the existing £240m global
revolving credit Facility URCF) witr a new Facility agreement in
Decemper 2027, This £732.5m RCF has an accardion element
of am additional £40m which is available For three years with
spticns to extend or a "urther two years. The new facility also
includes the appropriate replacemerts required followng the
end of LIBOR. This provides the Group with the flexibility to
fard its workirg capitas as well as “uture potential acquisitiors.
Ratas of interest for the RCF are based on SOFRA/SONIA plus
a margir calcatated or the ret debt - to adjusted EBITDA-
leverage. The RCF aiso ircludes a etter of credit faclity which
amounted to £3.0m (2020: £3 2m}at the end of 2021

The Croup takes advantage of a ~urmber of norrecourse
supplier finance arrangements orgarsad by chients of the
Croup to allow for the acceleration of payment of the Croup's
receivables. At the end of 2C27% tnese amounted to £8.2m
received For invoices not yet due for payment (2C20: £6.3m).

These agreerments accrae irterest af between 0.65% ard
1.75% over SONIA applied to the number of days the
drawdown takes place before the due date. During 2021,
the Group paid less than £0.1min other interest (2020: less

than £0.1m}.

A significart priority For the Group remains the focus on the

conversion of operating profit into susrained potitive cash

- Flow by contrelling working capital. The Group measures
" three covenarts as required by the Facility — interest cover,
. adjusted ieverage ratio (defined as net debt* less loan notes

and restricted cash to adjusted EBITDAS and debtor cover,
All coverants were met durirg the year. Borrowing levels are
controlled by the Croup Firarce cepartment, which manages
treasury risk ir accordance with policies set by the Board.

The Croup's financial iabilities are demorminated primarily in
Sterling. Exposure to currency risk at a transactienal levet s
generally mimmal, with most transactions bewrg carried ot in
local currency.

TAXATION

The tax charge n the period of £7.1m (2020: £1.0m)
represents an effective tax rate of 45.8% (2C20: -4.9%) and
arises or the Croup's activities i the JK and overseas. The
higher effective tax rate s drven sy non-deductible expenses

~and remeasuning and recogmising defarred tax in the UK at
© 25%. Finance Act 2021 increases the Uk corporation fax rate
: from 19% tc 25% effective 1 Aprl 2023 For companies with

profits «p excess of £C.23m. Under IAS 12, deferred tax assets

. and liabilities should he measured at the tax rates that are

expected o apply to the pericd when the asset srealised or
the liability is sertled.

The Croup's cortributior to the UK Treasary in the seriod
amounted to £33 9m {2C20: £212.3m) and consistea of
VAT incame tax. national insurance and corporatior tax. OF

©this arrourt, emcployer's patioraiinsurance, apprerticeship

levy. irrecoverable VAT and corporation tax totailing £37.7m
(2020; £24.5m) was a cost to the business.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

Cortircirg basic earnings per share ircreased to "8.3p 12020,
Loss (46.2)p) as undertying profit after tax from conbinuing
operations nereased by £29.7m.

The weignted average numeper of sharesin 2021 was 45 S
0.7 lower thar 202C due to the ongoirng share buyback
programme Continuing adjusted earnings per share
increased to 35 3¢ /2020: 18.20) and reflects the underlying
performance of the business excluding impairment and
armorssatior of acquired intargibles ard their respective
taxation ‘mesach
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CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group's capital base {note 27) is primarily used to finance
its working capital requirement, the key componert of which is
trade receivables. Trade recelvables in the staffing and support
services sectors are maraged according o a rarge of DSO
targets. Terms of trade are moritored, ard the approval of
extended payment terms requires semor finance involvement.
In some of the Croup's Managed Services businesses, tie
amounts pavable to rhird party suppliers are rol Jue Lntit
shortly after the receipt of the cliert receivable. As roted
above. the Croup has committed facilities that epsJare there

15 sufficient liquidity t¢ meet ongoing business requirements.
The primary objectives of the Group s capital management

are ro ensure that it mairtairs a good credit rating in crder

to support its business, maximise shareholder value and to
safequard the Croup's ability ko contirue as a goirg concerr.

GOING CONCERN

After makirg appropriate erquiries, the Directors »ave 3
reasonable expectation that the Company and the Group
have adequate rescurces o continue in operational existence
for the foreseeable FLtare. r comirg o their corclusian,
the Directors have considerad the Group's profit and cash
flow plars for the coming perod The ameunt of borrewing
required to furd the Croup’s activities is determired based
on these orojections, togetner with expected returns to
shareholders and planned capital expenditure. This s then
compared to the bark lerding Facilities carrertly committed
and expected to be avallacle to the Sroup.

Also considered is the projection of compliance with the
financial covenants implied by these plans. In addition, these
Figures are tested For sensitivity to ossible changes te the
2conomic envirgrments in which the Croup operates. The
Croup bas ro operatigrs in Ukraire or surrounding regions
ard therefore there s ne direct imrpact or the Croup's trading.
However, ary indirect impact, such as 3 warsening @ econcmic
corditions, wauld represent such a sersitvity.

The impact or Croup ligdidity and covenants of each of these
sersitities is ther evaluated together with the likelibood of
gach of these cccarrirg zither individually or ir cormbiration,
O arequiar basis, and at least quarterly, the Board reviews
updated projections of future borrowing requirements facility
usage and resuiting headroom, together with projected
covenant compliance :hese are based upon the latest actuat
results and borrowirg position supplemerted by requiarly
updated piofit Forecasts. Based on the above, the Directors

DIVIDENDS AND SHARE BUYBACK

ir January 2027, the Board arnounced a reduced share
buyback programme, to purchase Ordirary Shares in the
Company ud to an aggregate market value of £C.5m per
calendar month until the next AGM which was held in June
2027, Under this programme 466,753 shares were purchased
at a total value of £1.3m.

" Ar updated programme was approved at the AGM authorising
* the Board to purchase up to a maximum of 4,580,363 shares,
_represerting 10% of the issued Ordinary share capital of the

consider 1L appropriate to cortinge to adopt the goirg concern

basis .n areparing the financal statements.

Compary (as 3t 17 May 202" urti the earliest of the 2022
AGM or 30 June 2022 Under this programme 141,845 shares
were purchasad during the period at a toral vawe of £6.5m. No
dividend has been paid or is propesed for the year (2020: £nil).

INSURANCE

The Croup rrairtains 3 comprefensive irserance pragramrme
with several reputable third party crderwriters. Insarance

is brokered at a Group levew. The Group's insurance policies
are reviewed and spdated anndJally tc ersure that thers s
adequate cover forirsurable nsks ard that the termms of those
poticies are optirnised.

OUTLOOK

2021 has seen a significant recavery in trading 1In our regions
and segments from the sharp declines experienced in 2020
We maintaired our focus on cost Taragemert whiist makirg
irvestments in reverug-generatirg Feadcowrt o Jrive further
growth in 2022, Operaticral cash Flow was strong witn
further improvemrerts in OSO whick erabled ar arderlyirg
reductior ir borrowirgs anc facility levels. This provides 3

_strorg liguidity pesition for 2022, The strateqic disgosal of

Corestaff in February 2022 and the cash received will furtrer
balster this position. Trading as we exited 2021 was above pre-
pandemic levels and this has continued in the first few months
of 2022. Investments Ip our Core systems and the subseguert
deployment will also enable our teams to deliver further
productivity gaips.

We started 2022 nositively, whilst beirg ringf sl of possicle
economic headwmds government fiscal easirg, tax increases,
inflatiorary pressure, potential interest rises, as weil as acute
talent shortages, these have row been overshadowed by the
events in Ukraire and the resultirg potitical ang ecoromic
instability. Though we do net trade within the affected regicn
the global economicimpacts and knock-on effect to cur
rmarkets at this time is uncertain,

S3ge 3
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STRATEGIC REPORT
Principal risks

We recognise that effective risk management is fundamental to delivery of the Croup’s strategic objectives, Each business
sagment considers strategic, operational and financial risks on a regular basis, evaluates existing controls andidentifies Further
actions required to mitigate risks. Risks that are considerad significant at Group level are set out below.

THREAT MITIGATION STATUS

STRATEGIC RISKS

ECONOMIC ENVIRONMENT
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Risk trend

H: High risk

M: Mediurm risk

| Low risk
Increased compared to 2020
Stable compared Lo 2020

Decreased caompares Zo 2020

THREAT MITIGATION STATUS
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STRATEGIC REPORT

Principal risks continued

THREAT MITIGATION STATUS

OPERATIONAL RISKS
TECHNGLOGY SYSTEMS Tihe Group has astabie systersinfrasiruciure and as 4
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Risk trend

H: High risk

M: Medium risk

L: Low risk
nereased compared to 2020
Stasle compared Lo 2020
Decregsed comparec to 2020

THREAT MITIGATION STATUS

REGULATORY, COMPLIANCE AND FINANCIAL RISKS
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STRATEGIC REPORT

Stakeholder engagement and our S172 statement

INTRODUCTION

Sectior 72 of the Companies Act 2006 requires Directors

ko take into consideration the interests of stakeholders ard
other matters ir their decision-makirg. We believe we have a
history of collaborative, informative stakehcider ergagement,

makirg decisiors based or long-term success, ard we maintair |

governance structures ard processes that support gocd
decisior-makirg.

This section articalates how the Directors have acted to
promote the success of the Group for the benefit of its
stakeholders. Ir meeting this responsibility, the Cirectors have
had regard, armongst other matters, to;

the iikely consequences of ary decisions in the long term;

the interests of the Group s colleagues:

the reed to foster the Group's busiress relationships with

suppliers customers and others: ’

d. cheimpace of the Croup's operations on the communify
and environment;

g he Croup's reputation for high stendards of busiress

conduct: and

the need to act fairly as betwesr members of the Croup.

N ow

)

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

Irpellam's stakerolders are clients, candidates, colleagues,
sappliers, investors ard lerders ard the Board recognises the
need to regularly ergage with its stakeholders as st makes
decisiors. we develop ard encourage laorg-term relatiorships
with our stakerolders based upor irpellam’s visior 'to be
the world's most trusted staffing company - trusted by our
people. cur clients and ourinvestors ir egual measure .

As part of this visior, our stakeholders’ interests are at the
forefront whenr the Board of Directors set the strategic
prionties of the Croup. Tre strategic priorities: Enabling
aur Virtuesos; Transformming cur Portfolios and Improving
Resilience - irclude consideration of the key stakebolder
groups ard bow we engage with them.

ir adaition to regular stakeholder ergagement, as tre

Board of Directors, our intertior s to take into accourt our
operatioral impacts on the community and envirorment,
and ourwider societal resporsibilities, i particular, bow we
impact the regions we serve. We support our communites
by finding them good work supporting iocal corporate soc.al
resporsibility initigcives ard ersuring oar impact on the
environment s myrmmal, as demensirated by our 1ISO 4007
accreditation,

PRINCIPAL DECISIONS IN 2021

The Board corsidered the rterests of, and the impact or, all
stakeholders wrer mraking a number of key decisiors durirg
the year as demonstrared by the following examples

REGIONAL COVID-19 LOCKDOWNS

During 202 7, regional lockdowns continued in the UK {Q1]
and APAC and we maintained operational capacity throughout
these periods of remote workirg before reocpering our
offices safely.

Stakeholder considerations:

Colleagues

We continued the processes implerrerted across the Croup
in 2020 to ensure our colteagues had the equipmert ard
infrastructure ~equired ro work from home or in our offices.

We committed to supportirg cur colleagues where they need
access to an office environment to work from, or the ability
to irteractir persor with colleagues safely, As local guidarce
was released regarding opening of offices, we reviewed this
in detail and assessed each office against these requirements
ard gndertook the recessary steos to make them 'Covid-"4
safe’. We then prioritised which offices could reopen and
identified the colleagues who could use them.

whenever the local guidarce charged, immediate action
was taken to ersure we were operating withir the upaated

- rules. We offerad continued support to our colleagues who
cortirued to work remotely.

Suppliers
ur property Zearm worked with cur lardioras where recessary

to ersare each property was Covid-19 safe prior ro recpenirg.

Clients, candidates, investors and lenders

By keeping aur people safe ir their workirg environment, we
cortinue to meet cliert requirenenrts, support our cardidates
and deliver effective business rasults zhroughout the pandemic.

Qutcome

Sur offices have opened safely where possible, enabling
suitable working envirormerts far those who canrot work
rerotely. We continue [o review Qur property requirements
ard are actively redacing the rumber of oroperties ir our
portfaolic.

BLENDED WORKING

Followirg the regional lockdowrs due to Cowid-"9, the Croup
reviewed its policy an work locations and the positive ‘mmpact
of workirg from Fome.

Stakeholder considerations:

Colleagues

There have undoubtedly been operational, financial and
environmentai benefits From enabling our workforce o work
remctely durirg the pandemic. However, cur pecole also
thrive or face-to-face interaction, buldirg collaberatior ard
rapport. a addition, some individuals have struggled from a
wellbeirg perspective througrout this time,
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we undertook a rumber of collzague surveys to understand
how people were copirg as well as equipment and
infrastructure requirements, This helped to understand how
we could support our colieagues and develop longer-term plars
ir the interests of our colleagues, costomers and cardidates.

Clients and candidates
We bave ensured that by allowirg blended aorking we
cortinue to meer nur chierts’ and candidates regquitenients.

Investors and lenders

By ersuring ouJf Colieagues have the nght bierd, we

have ‘rcreased productivity and reviewed our property
requirements delivering both cost savings and gross profit
growth. This will drive ircreased sharebolder value ard erable
us to ontinue to meet our cash flow targets and manage our
lerder requiremerts accordirgly.

Outcome

we have offered all colleagues the opportunity to adopt
biended working, allowing them the flaxibility of working from
home, at clients’ sites and in our offices.

CORE SYSTEMS

Followirg the decisicr in 2020 to accelerate the
trarsformatior waork, the Board agreed to irvest ir [T core
systerrs. This ‘rvestrent will update systems ac oss the Group
in both front anc sack-office applications.

Stakeholder considerations:

Colleagues

The main driver to improve the core systemsis to free up
ourVirtuosos so they can sperd more tirme with clients ard
candidates ard deliver the Virtuoso operatirg rmodel.

Clients, candidates and suppliers

The investrment in core systems will ersare the Croup is easier
and quicker to deal with, generating efficiencies across the
supply chain, candidate journey and ensuring our clients never
have a reasen to leave.

Investors and lenders

The investmentin core systems willimprove our digital
imfrastructare, enharce our security ard improve our
efficiency

Qutcome

The IT Core Systems oroject was launched in 2021 across the
Sroup. Key go live dates start n Q1 2022, with a new pay/bill
sysiem for the Uk STEM hrands and the global finance system
N APAL,

SALE OF CORESTAFF

Onthe 24 january 2022 we announced the saie of Corestaff,
our US-based Light Industnal brand to swipejobs Inc., a US
private digital staffing business.

Stakeholder considerations:

Colleagques

By combining rmarket-leading technolony with the decp
heritage and staffing know-how of the Corestaff teams the
transacticn allows Corestaff to expand Jts service offerirg and
reach in 3 highly Competitive market.

Clients, candidates and suppliers

The transaction will give erbanced geographic reach o our
ciierts, candidates and suppliers ard cortinue to deiiver
effective services and results.

Investors and lenders

The proceeds of the sale will be used to pay dowr fet debt Lo
furd additional irsestrrerts, therefore reterning valee o our
shareholders and rmaragirg our lerder requirarencs.

Qutcome

. Due to the scale and limited geogranhic foctprint of Carestaff

in North America, we corsider our colleagues and lierts
wiil benefit From enbanced geographic reach For therr light
industriat staffing requirements coupled with an acceleraced
digital transformat:on brougnt about oy Zhe sale.
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Stakeholder engagement and our $172 statement continued

STAKEHOLDER GROUP

WHY THEY ARE IMPORTANT

HOW WE ENGAGE

Clients

W mIrCwin aut Zlients to firs arop e Tor
good wotk to ~elo the suiba seirer
JuSINesIEg. We tetain Ihem™m, Iornreln g Lo

aneriiargtrer evelviog tesaiinmenis,

we review client sans“acion and our
persosmance 2it-er quartetly, pannually =7
arnastly, TS5 sLpoa tad by 'radback J1a
Face-to-face Teetings Met Sromocar Scares
3rd Sl .eys.

Colleagues

Cur :otleagues are “y~dame-ual e e
Zelivey of su asion, missor, sctataqic ar d
Snaroat pravos2s to our sizkeholgers.

Dur mecha~isms ‘g engaging wicr colleagues
moluder 2 shadow noars the Yirtuoso Ailignce
slleague coumls aorsss che Gooun, surveys,
Neo Promorer Scores grd 3est Campanies

S, v@Yys. ATd L™ Lo
“otfasoranior 2laktform Aor<plase Lowr ~all
gsand 0.7 gl

AL LGS

Tenrs

Candidates

Com TUSSION 35 4 DUSITESS 15 3 2ovide 3 satse
¥ zorzose arg LT forouroeane o
2lpaur fuslorets Juild oerier 2usn2ssesin
aimargirg aorg’ whicmindLdes ihe
CandiCaros MR IrDVIDe 10 JuT CushI T oTs.

Suppliers

i
mes, e w"CQ therigres,

e’s elrsd it anice :y‘:u”
SopnliesCoge o Corzocr 22020,
mricdeced audiss 3 ey sLepliets har iy 1o
“edslLi iteit oo Lunelode ol
Conduot e I0alning 3T a

N 3TNt e

Investors and lenders

Aczess Tz canibal ooouge
anc ourlenders s1mpoTlari o 1Ne.In
3uCzes5 2 our susimess,

e TRty 5 S
arg Lo snars Tow g
mallo-ges. Due
maue CoNUNLES TN oL

thanic perLone

Ul

narenols
33000 w“Dell’*l"na 8. 0.5 sechior of

oellar cor

Jgew elevasgoafarmaticn
i




STRATEGIC REPORT TCRPIZRATE COUERMANMCE F NAMC AL STATIMINTS

Responsible business report

Responsible
Business

QOur commitment to sustainability underlines
our responsibility to build long-term value

for all our stakeholders, supported by sound
policies, good governance and positive actions.

PEOPLE AND CULTURE

Colleague engagement and communications

Al 2,900 impeldam people across the world are corrected
by Workplace, aninterral commuenicatior ard collaboratior
retwork. Workplace combines tre structure of a traditicnal
intraret with the capabilities of Enterprise-wide Social
Netwarking software: a place to organise ard disserminate
information securey,, ard also 3 place for cur Deopie to
conFect, commuricate ard collaborate. The Croup CEQ
Foids quarterly town hall meetirgs across the Croup and
conrects with all 2.300 peosie or a reguiar basis througr
waorcslace, asing sideg and wrtter updates, wellbeing
check-irs, g mortsly newsletze-, Hve Q&A sessions, ard other
muttimedia to provide strategicinfermation and Fnancial
updates. Covid-" 9 ras cnarqed the way we wark, and as 3
corsequerce we have increased the frequercy ard media
Wwe Jse o communicate with colleagues. Gur maragers Rold
regular *" mestings with their people, team meenirgs, and
wider business-area corfererces ard Town hall meetirgs ko
facilitate sharirg of information, consultation and two-way
cammufication, supperted by togls like OpenBlerad.

The virtaoso Alliarce rour shadow Board; operates alcngsice
the Leadershin Teamr o provide opiriors, ideas, Insight

ard abservatiors or the world im which we operate. its
purpose is to make sure the Croup CEG and the Leadership
Tear remair conpected to our colleagues and ir turm our
customers ard cardidates. The Irrpellarm commuricatiors
rmodel ard associatec technology mears we car corpect with
our colleagues quickey. wherever they are, The platform ard
commanicationr straregy Faclitates Faster krowledge-sharing,
commaricatior and caollaboratior. This dyrarmic approach to
COMTJMC3nIOns Is key to our strategy arg cultdre of erabiing
our Virtaescs to achieve our wsion of becormirg the world's
most rrusted staffing company.

Covid-19 and our people

Ourresporse to Covid-19:n 2026 provided a robast and
Flexible way of workirg which continued througn 2521,

we adopted a blended workirg maodel which eratled our
pecple to work :n the offce at home and on our client sites
as and wher ~eeded. We were careful te gather feedback
throughout the year to ersure our people were supported.
we've contirued to invest i rmertal pealth ard welibe:ng

. support by makirg avalabie the Calm app, and in recogrition

of aur colieaques’ bard work amidst the zhallenges preserted
by the pardemic ard ar urprecederted incraase v dermard
from customers we gave our seople bwo extra days off

! Equity, Diversity and Inclusion {'ED&I")
. e actively encourage diversity in tne workplace ard nave 3
wide ard varied colleag e base, with a vanery of soc al ard

athric groups recreserted at ali tevels of tre husiress. Wwe
believe that breaking down the barriers that bave tradstioraily
restricted access to the (abour markel will encourage ob
spportarities for ail. Qur global impedam Group =D&l tesr
includes representation from our key regiors: Nereh America,
Australia and New Fealand, and the UK & Eurape. Lirder

i the directior ard teadership of the Croup CEO and rewly

appointed Head of Culture and Fulfilment, it brings togethar

< leadership ard governance baiarcad with Croup-wide,

regional and brand-specific actions. Our strategy s based on
data, gualitative ‘rtelligerce from a global survey alorg with
participatior from regioral corrmittees, 3nd aims Lo make
impeliam a3 more diverse ard nclusive pusiress wherever

L owe pperate,

Qur progress received several accoladesir 202 7. For the
second year running, Everest Peak Matsix recognised Guidant
Clebal ard Lonier for Diversity ard irclosior ir the 2027
TALINT Inter~ational Awards. £0&11s firmly on our agenda
Guidant s award-wirning Influence prograrme i helping
clierts with treir £D&I strateqgies and to drive positive charge.
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Responsible business report continued

Training ‘
We provide our people wet® a multifaceted ard agile ,‘
development pathway to erable high performance and '
ircresse fetention of our people and customers alike. we
forus on freeing cur pecple from old habits, urlockirg their
porential ard 2rabling them ra thrive through change. we
rainvigorated our Mertal Health ard wellbeirg network with
mental health First aiders supporting our people glabally,
along with carrpaigns nircing throvgh Workplawe every week
Lo SiIgrpost advice, helplires ard the cortact details of traired
colleagues whao are well placed to relp ard lister. Qur peonle
also ~ad access to Cladis, cur orlire trairing placform as well
as live virzazl and physical sessiors.

Our culture of Virtuosity

At tre Peart of gurirtegrated, collaborative business Todel s
g virtucus Zircie of making ard keepirg promises, engerdering
rust a~d loyalty. By keepirg our promises, we retain <ients,
cardidates, Coieagues and irvestors for lorger, and reap the
berefits of that langewity. Cur culture of Virtueosity is created
by passionate people who are commutted and driven to find
“hetter ways te deiner the right solutiors. We make sare that
‘the neaatifai pasics are ' place and deeply emzedaed i all
of our busiresses ali of ke tire.

Modern slavery

As oart of the Sroup s nission to Find pecple “ulfilling work,
we strorgly appose modern stavery in all its fermrs and will

try to prevent it by any means that we can. We axpect anyonea
who has ary sussicions of moderr slavery In our busiress or
Jdr sucply <hair Lo raise their concerns without delay. In tine
with the Modern Slavery At 2075, we arrually review interral
and external measures to ensure we are doing what we can o
orevert slavery and hueman trafficking in our busimesses and
noour supply crains, Our policy is ausilanie on ous website ac
wwsarpellar . corm.

Community
Impellam people work extensively with their local

" communities. This irctades supporting rational and local

charties through volurteer work and raising funds.

+ ENVIRONMENT

. Although we are a service-based orgarisatior with no
. marafactoring facilities and timited trarsportation

" requiremerts, we are still zomrritted to followirg

envirormental best practices ir toe day-to-day condack of cur
business. This ncludes the use of sustainable and/or recyclable
materials wher available. A regular review of the potential
Impacts or the various businesses is undertaken ard parts of
the Group have achieved accreditation o ISO 14007 in relation
to their epviroprrent maragemert systems.

2021 energy and carbon reporting.

This year we fave Zatcoiated cur ervirermencal impact across

Scope ", 2 ard 3 iselected categeories) emmissior sources for the
UK aply, Cur ermissiors are preserted on 3 locaticr basis using

the UK grid emissiors -nrensity}, and our emissiors sre 963,995
' kgCO e (2020;
D of 582 «gCO e per £ revenue {2020: 715 kgCO 2 ner £m
" revenue;. We bave calculared the emission ‘rtensity metnics on

£82 778 kgCO. &), which s ar average iMpact

3rever.e hasis, which ve wil Toritor to track performance e
sur subsequert ervirormercal disciosares, The rmethodology
ased to calculate the Creerrouse Cas JCHC emissiors is in
gecordance with tre UK Covernment CHC Zorversicn Factiors
For Corpany Reporting 12072 7.

. Energy and carbon action

Car focus in the cask vear Pas peen 1o bath racioraise our
property Footprint and to extend and ancourage working

' beraviours which aere acceleraced at the start of the
©pardermic i 2020,

. Ouroverall property footorirt cortirues to decrease as ieases

Health and safety !
we are cormitted to meetirg all the requiremerts of relevant
bealth arg safety leqislatior. Formal solices are in place
throsghcac the Group ard trey ara reviewed regularly ard
updates o reflect changes n legislation and best practice. The
Croup reqaires all colleagues to comply with these

Anti-bribery

We have 3 commiomert 10 2army g out Basiness Fairly,
honestly and apenly. We aise have zero rolerance towards
bribery. Our Brbery Policy 1510 2lace o provide reievart
gquidarce ard rformatior (o all our peaple 'r corrpliarce wmith
the aw celating zo bribery and torrupt.or. ir particalar the
Bribe-y Act 2070 we are deferimireg o mamtam

our repulkation as a business that wili ~ot tolerate fra_dulent
ar Zorrapt 2eaargs - ahether they sre attempted agairst us
From outside, from within cur owr yvarkforce, or towards cur
clherts or sdppllers,

“age_4¢

expire where the need for a physical location remains, we
bave looked to shared spaces which 2ar be Jsed across the

" business. relocate to more modern ard energy-efficent sites

and utilise flexible werking spaces where .Lis more practicable
to do so.

Our strategy of ingreasing resierce by rvesting ir technology
has erabled Js to embed rew ways of working within the
buasiness mhich has seer our S5Cape © ravel 2missiors "educe
by 35%, desoibe ar easing of fravel restrcaions from the
orevious year. Similar or graater redactions are alsc seen ir our
other mor-reportable Scope 3 emissions.

whilst not directly effecting the 5cope 2 reporting, the
L busiresses corrpleted their switch to purchasirg " 0C%
rerewable exectricity generared orly through wird, sotar ang

" hydro for ail of its UK gperaticrs.

Work will cortirue in certifyrg aur carbonm reutrat strategy
te PASZ06C to achisve our omective of achieving carson
reutrality for our ertire UK business by the erd of 2022,
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»969,569kg CO,e

Our 2021 emissions which is
an average impact of
582 kgCO e per £m revenue.

in tanderr, the busiress will also cormmence the develcement
and delivery of a formal Carbor Net Zero strategy. Ir support
of both inibiatives, we shall be faurchirg a new Electric
ehicle Salary Sacrifice Scheme ir early 2822, avallable to all
UK employees, which by atilisicrg governmert ircertives and
achieving ecoromies of scale through Croup purchasing will
provide access to electric vehicles at 3 uch-recuced cost for
alt colleagues. The additional benefit of this scheme wil be to
accelerate the reductior of both Scope * ard Scepe 3 vehicle
£rmissions over the coming years. we shall continue to refine
cur property portfolio in line with cur existing strategy and

in comuncnion with aur developing nybrid working nitiatives,
as well as launching a formal engagerment project with ait Ux
colleagues on our ervironmental ptars and actively seek therr
contributions as to how we achieve cur objectives.

Emissions and energy usage

Emission Source

»35%

Reduction in Scope 1
travel emissions.

' Task Force on Climate-related

' Financial Disclosures (TCFD'}

. TCFD reporting is important to effective £5G and climate

© risk maragemert. It will alse belp Js to meet the growing
stakeholder derrard o Lnderstard how climate change could
affect Impellam, 3s well as the effects our aperations have
on the climate. In 2027 we have taken initial steps or the
rgadmap to TCFD repordirg ard this activity will be cortinged
rhroughout 2022, The Croup well cortinue te monitor the
significance of climate-related risks {including e2xisting and
errerging reguiatory reguiremenrts,, ‘mplemeart mitigatirg
actwities, ard disclose ip lire with Tatenality to the Crouc.

© AL present, these risks are rot cors,dered to have 3 ~ateal

-~ pact for the Croup,

Natural gas 99,556 154 488
Scope "t kgCQ .2l Corpary and leased vehicles 23626 306 146

meatirg ol 3 5
Total Scope 1 (kgCO,e) 335,917 466,158
Scope 2 tkgCl e} Electncity 376,976 337,263
Scope 37kgCO &) Colleague cars 55702 59,357
Total kgCO,e 969,569 1,082,778
Total energy usage (kwh) 4,631,709 4,904,605
NorTaliser KgCS e per £mrevenue 5382 s

This Strategic Report from pages 1 fo 41 was approved by the Board on 5 Apnl 2022 ard signed an its beraif by:

Rebecca Watson
Company Secretary
800 The Beoulevard,
Capabilicy CTreer,
LJEan,

Bedforgshire

Lt 384
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The primary responsibility of
the Chairis to lead the Board
effectively and this includes
overseeing the adoption,
delivery and communication
of the Company'’s corporate
governance model.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

43  Coweriance recort
- 44 Hoadof Dieninns
-

www.impellam.com
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Governance report

Corporate governance

The Chair ens.res that the Board as a whole plays a full and
i~ the development ard determiratior of
the Company s strateay and nuerall commercial objectives.

constructive part

The Board bas overall resgonsipility For corporate goverrarce
within the Crodp ard thisis Jnderpirned o
sigred to the reguiremerts orf the business, The full Board

retains certair rratters For s owr review ard decsion-

v a frammework

reaking while other resconsibilities are delegatec to sub-

comreiirees of the Board

the Remrureration Comrmittee.

.ramely the Audit Committee ard

impeilam.com/corporate-governance/

AUDIT COMMITTEE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

= Oneorsees oe Gran 2z sariernal ss + MOPRLors and foviews the strategy
ard zorlrols sem2iegy, ioduding ang ymers tre firanc.al
risdentowing a7 gomens 3T 0t a*’rO“aJ Serformgce af Tre

« Rayiows the aneual Resorsatg Corpany ard rsk managemers,
Aran o fnans @ snatements onor > » Voritars arg Teviews inmeral ara <

asubmissicn

eidi 3oara,
Tt the aqrarma, COTPRETY.

sxiacoal Taciors Thar aftelr e

© ReyensTernss

E{ilsHxe] = Sersstandarcs, Jawes el
o Rewews e Group s TIsk register. ooIsuTRS e DOMmLaty 15 e
© AppTDLes T Tangial poic es 5 ob,ecoves anc mas the
¢ S0 and Tenews (Ng ackiviies of tesouroes it olere

e al audic, + AD[Eroves T aarc & 2C.ces

o Diayices The
-

.+ App-

Ques

thosa alans

Molaz

SLTA

SENIOR LEADERSHIP TEAM

. erb o

5 bo sharerolders

3
tral
ate

REMUNERATION

COMMITTEE

SECL Sy
Soarc remwr

CINETIET 0T 2L UIVEeS

werall = cneration sty

S0, F0T :‘e Croun
Borr,catzzas Do
page_52

DEVELOPMENT TEAM (VUCA)

s Dverseesintenal o
SR . —@SJJPJDFQ For zorans;
Soverpange
A4
STRATEGY AND
ouLb strategy 30d T harc al z.en For aborowat by the 3carz.
2307at@g!c 300 TPanc al olans of the sLp-bran

csand divis grs 3N oM

Jncerain J3mEeany Ambige oy, fecusas o0 Impe lam s
lamg e ™ acc oo Chgllenges 2na cpperiLtities DT foam saes L0 3chiev e I D0rIses.

(WAR ROOM)

- Resporsihie Tor ihe day-ro-Tay .

MnarageTert of tre Grou 2nd s

zoeralizTs

v molerenianor of the sirats

Sman

Sld

A4

VIRTUOSO TEAM

ovar-d ~gstrare

(THE VIRTUOSO ALLIANCE)

~da frese

iD Dudr

2am 3ard 30370 o0 our
TACeZIC I0NNES 3°C INErm ImSact
or The Dosmess oo™ Castome 5 the

rdisLy ard e andor wortd oF wote

the mgler

-

SICans Cratg B TrnsEs ToT he -

3rQ TRCoMTEnds T
erapon Tor Jirecoon

entagn ard delisery of

INVESTMENT COMMITTEE
Reytews 3°¢ ToONILeas strategic
e ment; 373 Manes inyestmeany
ZeIsIons

STe
3 a'*d

As a company whose shares are traded an the AIM market of
the Londen Stock Exchange, the Company complies witr the
Quoted Corrpanies Alliance ('QCAS
Code (the Code’) ard s Statement of Compliarce witn the
sare car be fourd or the Company website www.investars

Corporate Coverrarce
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Board of Directors

LORD ASHCROFT KCMG PC
Non-Executive Chairman
Appointed: Crecember 2014

Lo':.‘ As~eroffis anirle matioral ousinessman shilepthrooise,
Lbhorz-a aoJiAer HIs Many, «37ec Lsiress irlarasisnclice
srrertvard pati o pabicn nobein oubidc ang
rledte compaties it e WK LS g the Caripcear. He va
apsom:ec NOr-gxsc .

s\gwf-m

Lowe Zog tman of me Lrmpary p Zecemipar
FOCA D01 ke was ADDOINTRC 2 Member of The Pry Touto!
ard was Tace Lhe Prime Ministe s Special Reorasentalive Tor
yarargrs Tramsiicr, workirg wrh all 2enartmen s o ersure
Tilicary personnel "eceive the sup2ort they neces Ahgr Mdking
rhe rmatsition B2 civilian ife. e stenoed zown Ttam Lhis tole e
2018, ord Asherofl supports 3 sde ra~ge o chanties, (el cing
rese gealing sith Cnme preserpion ard ecucation He s the

w~aer and Chairmar of T-ustoes of udtﬁ Crmestonpers and
tre Astorart Teghesiogy Acadery, a formes2aton of The Sarces
e Trust Researsm Carlo2, Vice Patmon o7 the ncatligence
Coras Museur and a | mestee o7 ne Cieelard Chaicin the LS.
He resignec Trem tme Masse of Lardsin 2015 Lo Zoncenirats on
aurer areas of ~iswork Helsa Torrer ftustee and Presider:
3" newest noa Committes a “ormes Trustee of -mpenal War
Moseures and Torees Charcellor o Angha Ruser wrivarsity

meh awarzed mirean Horocas, Joctorate im 19990 £ 2018
_OT ASTOODRT vas ade KNGt Cranc U085 27 The Mest Sactes
Order 2l e Holy Tty (Zthiooig) ard ¢ Fellow of Lhe Royal
Ca~acier Geograp™ical Sonety. » 2017 he aas Tade 3 Set1a”
-ellow of tho rmtes~anonal skrateqic stodies Associabior 4o
hEaIme yRAD Re I8CaMe an ororary Beza Rotanan, in 2021 ne
M35 ,| amotes 2o Grand Collor of Tne Most Sactec Orager or Toe
Dy EIPICTIA He ~as wnilion 25 DooKs vaml‘f coooolitics
~d oraveny, ard s widely sesoected Tor mis dcunical solim

Y

TIM BRIANT
Chief Financial Officer
Appointed: February 2020

Jired the TroLl o

cBoard or 3 -en.dry
T aChacteres ACIouriant and mas tyver el
SLENCE ACTORG MINIT IR TRCT, ITEN ISRt MItTr

Srvale eGuily packed clopal ecuitire~t Zomoparies.
soeTr pyer ien ;ears at Adeccs nanumbes of flnance “o.es
AL IS Tast Jhere Deing tre CF0 o7 Adecca UK 3me relanad Boor

e T'my warked ror Spaing Groon ole, alistes ectunmen:
oompany, whotere aas Sroub Tingroal Cororoller ang Co™masry
Sertelgty and payed 3 key role i ils goquisitian oy Adecco Prine
tooris Tier worked an P0G N auct and frarsacnion serdces. Tim
"d5 350720G DETAGIOLN T Terges 300 arguisicions ard ousirass
MIRSTALNNS Nau g aeen irwolved in Lre dispasal 202 supseguett
mtegration 2F Sonrg Srocp olg to Adecco and The accuIsiiicr 3T
1mz2gtaben of Perra phony AZeCo

<

Fage 44

“atgatizane

JULIA ROBERTSON
Group Chief Executive Officer
Appointed: April 2073

sulia Repertson was aspo:mted 35 Lo up Chief Sxecoiye
Cffcer maprl 2013 maving 2rev ously been tesponsitie
Group's LK ope-atiors setwee~ 2008 ard 2013, Julia's tarser
IN TECTUCTENT 32375 $0Me ToLr Jecanes, abways drven oy the
ourninyg Lelief 2mat hare ras 1o oe 3 ‘pefter way | 1his neliel ~ag
gulded ner Z~rowg™ ner entive Zereer #hich basincluded fou-cirg
neTOWnN FeCrLITMEnT DLSIFESS in 1986 which was ol 1o Lhe
Srecp slengstds Tare in 2000 anc alss seruing 3s Chief —xecy e
af tre Institure of —T\DlO)[F"PI"[rOWS.JI[En"[S SDW KNown as the
=SEC the orofessiomal 20dy For tre cK recruii nest e ausoy

MIKE ETTLING
Independent Non-Executive Director
Appointed: Septermber 2073

= =7,
mee Mige 435 Fresicert OFSA —Suc
ar axfersive axaculve 24”7
resLes mdl_dmg 20 NCA HR, Lnlsys Syost
~erly a Ne~-Exesunve [iragiat of 3ack
JS “E bac«ad daca bumess and aiss
|

a
FTatkom 304000 4 South ATTLs

ragy

_a

TOT 3
3P0 I8.RCOM NLTICITIC TS DU Tess \Axa
a wo r\a eade i erleranse applications |
5.0 SIS0 3 NDT-Exe,

T TUDEI3RCLIL, JLAm e
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Key to Committee membership

Agdic Cammitiee Chair of Audic Camrrittee

Jemu-eration Commiciee

ANGELA ENTWISTLE
Non-Executive Director
Appointed: Septermber 2072

ANge.d tntd s0e 438 3ppoIntes a Nor-Execut ve Directo”
ar cre Compaty in Septemaer 2012, Angels s a Cozorate
Carrorications Szeqalist worng with 2ompanies 't
secrer nclodimg Deacon Stroet Parkners Jr 1Lec 5"r fm“se- y
~gme _irred Sne 5 ahos-Exac.ove Drertar of
Sericas, ooe al the leading supplies of val.e- 3dd0;‘ solulicrs
acrass the ounlic 22 povate seccars in e oK ang rela~e, a
?Jf’*nixe{ut'ue Z-egzo sf Ment Crolp pie 3 dataandg mieligenc
LS 7RSS and aNCeT-ExellIve Timelion o nac< Publbsntg

_‘rr.w_edJ Srikaim > .2ading aubsherof pol 2o, and zor-ent affairs
stles. angela was Corpatzie Comm™uanicaliors Jirsctor oF A1
_imited, 37 IrEe GLonal JusiNess services CoMmpary 202 The
warld's leader 1~ alectromic secanty soluions, from 1988 10 1657,
Apgela s significanoly ~wowves o acarrber of channes noudieg
actirg as Trustze of bot~ Crirestonoers, the anly JK Zharity
dedicaec Lo solvieg Lies a~c Prospect 2ducation (Tach~ology,
Trust Limiteg. cre srorella cratity of tme Asherolt Tech nology
Academy A-gelza s nolconsicered 1o Jeindepe-gent due to te”
Grks g th the regpor shareng ter

toate
arpe

[47]

BARONESS TINASTOWELL OF BEESTON MBE PC
Independent Non-Executive Director
Appointed: Octaber 2077

g Stow el mes meld g numoen of senicT $0sIN0Ns i Tedg 30¢

gove nrtenc imoughoct nercateer Sirc2 20171 she nas peen

& memper o —+cn seaf L0715 3arc was Loader of The -ouse

fram 2014 1z 20 Zarz e e~rarrg the House of Loros she
yorkegatche B3C oonween 2201 and 20710 anc was Heac o7
ﬁ\f\ora‘=x-‘~"a|r\ She s aNoen-Execabve Zirecintof 4874 and
was Crarr™an of the Thatiny Zomemissic” For ooglarc 372 wales

St

ool Foz Tealy Lo

Chair of Remunerguon Commistee

MICHAEL LAURIE
independent Non-Executive Director
Appointed: July 2014

Michael Lau-e was appowr-ad 3 Non-Sxecutve Direcrar of ohe
Zompany in uuly 224 ~e s alss Mon-Sxecutive Zhairman of
SLSD Jmited. 3 Jrapeyy developmend Commoary [Tal promates
sustaimable areh tachars, Michae w4 as an army offcer for 3dyears
re neld the role oF Maor Zeretal 3t the Ministy 37 Teferce
arok 2063 wher ~eopecame the CE0 of Vhe Ci~egioppers Trost
renrirg from that sosition n 2013

REBECCA WATSON

Group Company Secretary and
General Counsel and Portfolio CEO
Appairted: May 2008

Reheria Watsos was aoocirled as Grous Compary Selrelary
2rd Gererzilounsel o7 tre Zarpary in May 2008, She spent Tme
srev ous Twe years as Comzary Secterar, and Jeneral Counsat
Sor The Toroprams Sen, cas Traun 2 caweng oaedite Droos

~ 19498 a5 Company Sohct aoition 0 ouly 2018 sme was
_,DDC|F‘U‘d Porfolio CED feliiale Qegionat Soecalis
sraf rg z-ancs wthio tne p Sncrio this she was na
DrvETe Drachice, acing ol @ arge of (o porate J{e k5. She nas
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CORPORATE COVERNANCE

Corporate governance statement continued

QCA Code Compliance

QCA PRINCIPLE

Deliver growth

Establish a strategy and
business model which promote
long-term value for
shareholders.

Seek to understand and meet
shareholder needs and
expectations.

Take into account wider
stakeholder and social
responsibilities and their
implications For long-term
success.

Embed effective risk
management, considering both
opportunities and threats,
throughout the organisation.

Maintain a dynamic management framework

w

Maintain the Board as a
well-functioning, balanced
team led by the Chair.

EXPLANATION

By £rowiG g sEaTTIRG SCHUTLIG TS And

=1
[ReRmiple

clients ang ca-dicarss 3¢
KILR SRECLILM OF Par<ens, ve Srovite
5GOC A0rk “or SUF e Qictales ans Deadia
“or yur thets,

[~e CEC ara JF0 comimicare egulacly
NLh srgreralzess mvesio s ard analvsis.

T-crull Bea-dis avalaple a7 the Anral
Gerergl Meetimg ' ACMT, o cormuricats

wtr sraranoloery,

gasiacn Lo our sharerolders, our Charls,

candicates, conlractors, seoohers ing
colleagees 37e oL NosL Imiparia~t
stakanolders, wo angage wmiL " Lrese
SOMIMGNILes Biad tegaulat zommiunicalions
IN DUl Say-to-Lay ACtMITIeS, ard L1a Tar T &l

feedbart reguesii

Jlbeace responsibiflity fo i<

Tanagement fesss wiln Ihe Boats,
out Ccay-to-day Marage™eni or 115~ .S
delivered throu gt Eon mdy A8 D0 JUSINEsS

a~d war caloee.

Zoard.s euiewed tegularly

FURTHER READING
P e e

For mere information
page_14

For more nformation
https://investors,
impeltam.com/
corporate-governance/

=“or mare pformation

page_38

For more nformation
pages_321035

For more nformatcion
pages_50to 53
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QCA PRINCIPLE

-

LG

Build trust

fev]

Ensure that between them the
Directors have the necessary
up-to-date experience, skills
and capabilities.

Evaluate board performance
based on clear and relevant
objectives, seeking continuous
improvement.

Promote a corporate culture
that is based on ethical values
and behaviours.

Maintain governance structures
and processes that are Fit

for purpose and support good
decision-making by the board.

Communicate how the company
is governed and is performing
by maintaining a dialogue with
shareholders and other relevant
stakeholders.

EXPLANATION FURTHER READING

Tr

Tre Anard s sansfed thar s our-an:
comroositicr ircludes an aoprosniate
Sawnce of salls a4pernance arc

“anabilities.

For mare nformation
pages_44 and 45

ihe 3oard regulatly corsicers ooe
sffaczyeress ard "elavarce 7 I3
ootrbotions, any lear~irg 2~

zevelopmen: needs and the level o

Sormore nfarmation
page_48and 49

O

drirte et soal ~onwonc AT
SELS UL OV COrS0rEle JalLes 30
aemaviours, ahict 372 zicforzed s1a

ARG ArC IO ancs manage mert,

Far mere nfarmation
page 55
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> 25canhshren:

rarework of

rLes ang oL ols Lo
Ffoenfarc affert ye
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rormare :nfermation
page_43
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Formare nformation
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CORPCRATE GOVERNANCE

Corporate governance statement continued

The Board of Directors currently comprises the Non-Executive
Chairman, two Executive Directors and four other Non-
Execubtive Directors. The Board s responsible for overseeing
the management of the Croup's strategy ard its basinesses,
reviewing frading performance, ensurirg adequate Funding,
maintamring a system of irternal cortrols ard risk assessment,
ensuring good corporate governarce and regorting to
shareholders. The Board meets wher required ard at least
oight birmes per arpurm, eitherim persap or virtaly,

The arrual miripam fime cormmitmrent is rine days for tre
Nen-Executive Directors based on eight Board meetings
per annum ard the ACM. They are also required to spend
appropriate preparation tire ahead of each meeting. The
Executive Directors are Full-time ¢olleagues.

During the period erded 37 December 2021 the Board

met or aight accasicns. Relevant high-guality informatior,
corsisting of detaled reports ard presentatiors, is circutated
Lo =he Directors i advarce of meetings by the Comeany
Secretary. The rumrber of scheduled Board meetirgs and
Committee meetirgs attended as a memrber by each Cirector
during the ceriod are set out betow:

Lord Asheroft 31{8)

Julia Robertsor N _ _8 )

Tim 3riart e

ArGeiaEntwistie 59 n/a

Mike Etting 78 3y oA
MicraelLacrie 8 30 i
Bargress stowell _ 7818: n/a n/a
s mrcsn g e e Ch i eien i s s

The Non-Executive Chairman and Angela Entwistle are nat
corsidered ta be indeperdert due to their lirks with the
Company s major sharehoider. Al the cther Non-Exacutive
Directors are considered to be irdeperdent.

The role of the Chairrran 1s to tead the Board anc ersdre

its effective aperation. In chairing the Board, the Chairman

is respoirsible for setuing the agenda, style and tore of the
Beard discussions ard ensunirg that ail Directors ceceive clear,
3cosrate and tirely 'oformatior. The Chairmar s respersible
for ensuring effective communications with sharehciders.

Or apacintmert, the Directors recewe relevant rformatior
about the Crour: the role of the Board ard the matters
reserved Far ks cec.sion-making; membership of the principai
Beard Committees and the powess delegated ta those
Commustees; the Croup's corperate governance policies and
procedures arc the latest financial information. Throughaut
thetr period in office, the Directors are reqularly spdated on

All Directors receive regular and timely information or the
Group's operational and financial performance and any legal or
governance requirements of the Group and those which affect
therr as Directors.

. The Directors have direct access to the advice and services of

the Company Secretary and Chief Financial Cfficer and are

+ able to take professioral advice ir the furtherance of their

duties at the Company’s expense where required. The Board
is satisfied that. between the Directors, 1t has an executive and
appropriate balance of skills and experence. including in the
areas of HR, rachnology finance communications, madia

ard government.

The Board seeks advice from external scurces on matgers

as they arise ir tre busiress, including legal and accourtirg
advice. There is an appropriate gerder balarce with the Board
corsisting of Four male ard three female members,

The bicgrapties of ail Directors appear or the Compary
irvestar website: www.irvestorsampeillam.corr. The
Company Secretary acts as the secretary to the Beard ard
its Committees, orovides legal and goverrarce support to
the Board as a whole and Directars individaatly, ard ersares
the Croup zomplies with 3l relevart legal requiatoy and
goverrance requirements, The Chairran assesses tne

"andividual cortribution of each of the rmembers of the Board
to ersure 3 weli-batarced ard cormitted team.

. The Board has carried out ar arruyal assessment of 165

performanrce to ersure s mempers collectively furctiom ir ar
efficient and productive manner.

Sect.or 172 of the Corrparies Act 2006 fequires irectors

© totake into corsideratior the interests of staxeholders arg

other matters ir their decisior-rrakinrg. Withir our Section

© 72 repart we set out how the Directors bave addressed key
decisicns that are consistent with the Company s objectives
strategy and the overall culture. Wwe believe we bave 3 bistory
of collaborative, irformative stakerclder engagerment and

. decisicr-rmakirg basea on lorg-term success, and we mairtain
 goverrarce structures ard processes that support good
© decisior-rmmak;rg. This Section * 72 report articulates how the

Girectors have acted o promote the success of the Group for
the Henefit of its stakeholders. In meeting this responsibiliny.
the Directors bave bad regard, armorgst other matters. £o:

+  che likely consequences of ary decisions in the long term-

-+ thenterests of the Group s colleagues:

+  the reed zo foster the Croup’s busiress “elationshigs with
suppiiers customers and otners;

« therpact of the Croup's oparations on the commonity

the Croup’s Busiress and Ehe enviropment 1n which it operates. |

Page_43%

and environment;

L tre Croug'srepdtacior “o7 nigh standards of busiress

conduct; and
- thereedioact fairly as between mermbers of the Croup.
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Results af the ACM appear on the Company irvestor website:
wwwinvestorsampetlam .com with between 99.67% and *00%
of votes cast beirg for the resolutions,

BOARD TENURE A5 AT MARCH 2022

Lord Ashcroft KEMC PC

7 years, 3 months

8years, 1! monthg

Julia Rehertson

Tir Briart

Angela Erbwistle

4

2 years, 1 month

G years, 6 morths

8 years, 6 months

Mike Ettling

Michael Laurie

7 years, § morths

4 years, 5 menths

Baroness Tira Stowell

Rebecca watsor “3yegrs, " rmonths

RE-ELECTICON OF DIRECTORS AT THE 2022 AGM

Ir accordarce with tre Caompary's Articles of Association and
the prirciples of the Code, all Directors of the Campary will
offer themselves for re-election by shareholders at the 2022
ACM. The Board is satisFed that each Director is quaiif ed

for re-election by the quality of their skills 2xperience and
cormitmert to the Board.

THE BOARD AND ITS COMMITTEES

Board evaluation

The perfarmarce of the Board, its Committees and individual
Directors wers reviewed at the Board mestings v April 2027,
The Board recogrises the impartarce of the evaluation to
help tre Board cortiruousiy improve its and the Compary's
performarce and to address any areas where necessary. in 1ts
evaluation the Board corsiders a rumber of areas includirg
the balance of the membership. its effectiveness as a team.
strategy and ourpose and stakeholder engagement. Objectives
qoing Forward are agreed ard a review of successior plarnirg
undertaken. The rcles of che Chairman and Chief Executive
are separate, with a clear division of responsibilities betweenr
thern. This separatien of roles enhances the indeperdent
oversight of executive management by the Board and mere
closely aligns the Board with sharebolders. It also mears that
nrg ore rdividual within the Company bas urfetrered powers
of decisior-making.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Corporate governance statement continued

Audit Committee

The Board has an Audit Committee whose
resporsibitities inclide oversight of the Croup’s internal
risk ard cortrols strateqgy, ircludirg establishirg
whistleplowing arrargerments, reviewing intenm and
Annual Reports and financial statements prinr to their
subbmission te the full Board and reviewirg repaorts
from the external auditor and internal audit. The Acdit
Committee makes whatever recommerdatiors to the

Board 't deems appropriate, or any area withir its remit,

includirg where action or improvement is reeded.

COMMITTEE MEMBERS
Mike Ettling (Chair)
Michael Laurie

MEETINGS ATTENDED
Mike Ettirg 33
Michael _aure 3/3

MEETINGS

The Committee operates Jnderwritter Terms of Reference,
and durirg the period ended 3 Decermrber 232" it met

on three occasions. The Audit Committee invites the

Chief Financial Officer to all of its meetings and senior
representatives of the external auditor are routinely invited to
Camrrrittee rreetings, althougr ik reserves the right to request
ary of these ingividuals to withdraw from the meeting, The
Audit Committee comprises bwo Non-Executive Directors:
Mike cttling (Chair} and Michael Laurie.

FINANCIAL AND BUSINESS REPORTING

During the year, the Asdit Corrmittee bas reviewed the 2020
and 2021 financial statements, the 2021 interim staterment
fanaudited) anc carried out a going concerr “eview, Reviews
of the financial statements included the accounting palicies,
significant financial reporting 1ssues and key ,udgements and
astirrates underpinning the financial statements. For the areas
chscussed, the Zommittee was satisfied with the assumptions
made ard the sccourting treatmeants adopted.

Risk management and internal controt

Risk maragement is the responsibility of the Board. Further
details about the process followed and prircipal risks ard
urcertainties that could affect business operations zar

be found in the Strategic Repert on oages 1:c 45, Tre
Audit Committee keeps arder review the adequacy and

. effectiveness of the Cornpany's internal controls and risk

maragemenrt syskems. A surrmary of the internal cortrols

for Croup corrpanies is greserted to rhe Augit Committee,
ircisding wpgates or tre resoratior 2F 4y cortrol weakresses
dentifiad, The internal controls are “eviewed by the Sroup
Firarce function.

Every year the Agdit Commmittee reviews the Croup s nsk
Framework reports, te be preserted 1o ard discussed by
the Board. The Croup’s whistleblowing policy contains
arrangements For the Companry Secretary 1o receive. ©
confidence complaints on accounting, risk :ssues, internal
centrols, aaditirg issues ard related matters.

The Group has a mardatory Code of Conduct, which sefs aut
the minimum expected behaviours for all zolleagues.
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External audit

The Audit Committee is responsible for the development,
impiementation and moritoring of the Group's policy on
external audit. The Terms of Reference assign responsibility
to the Audit Committee for gverseeing the relationship with
the external auditor During 2621, the Audit Committee
managed the relationship with the external auditor, reviewed
and monitored their:ndependence and objectivity and the
effectiveness of the andit process. The Group s poidcy on non-
3udit related services prescribes the types of engagements
For which the exterral auditor can be used and those
engagemerts which are prohibited. For engagerrent for
services which are ~or-recarring in ~ature, prior approval
must be sought from the Audit Comrrittee. Note 4 to the
consclidatad Financial statements includes disclosure of the
sudizor s remurer3tior for the year.

Financial Reporting Council

During the year the Finanaial Reportirg Courcil {'FRCY
corducted a review of the 2020 Arrual Report and Accounrts,
The review car be fourd here https://www.fro org.uk/
accocuntants/corporate-reporting-review,/ crr-reviews-of-
corperate-reporting/company-names-pubished-in-march-2022
ard did rot give rise o any substantive gquestions. The review
recommenced a rumper of erbarced disclosdres i relatior
to non-recourse financing agreements mparrment festing
periads ard lease terres to oe ipcivded within the 2027 Anrual
Report and Accounts which we have duly adopted.

Assessment of the Audit Committee

The Board conducted ar assessment of the Audit Committee’s
perforrrance at tre Apnl 2021 meetirg. The Chair of the
Audic Corrrittee wll be avaiable at the 2022 Anrual Cenerat
Meetimg Lo arswer any guestiors about the work of the

Agdit Corrmittee.

S

J
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Corporate governance statement continued

Remuneration
Committee

The Board bas a Remuneration Committee thatis
resporsible For makirg recommendatiors to the
Board on Directors remureration. it also reviews
recommendations from the Croup Chief Executive
OFficer on ather senior executives’ remuneration
ircluding perforvarce-reiated remynerationr.

The Corrrmrittee aperates under written Terms of
Refererce. ard durrg the period ended 37 Decerrper
2027 it met op ore occasion. The Remuneration
Committee comprisas two Non-Executive Directors:
Argela Ertwistle («Chain and Michael Laurie.

COMMITTEE MEMBERS
rgela Ertwistle (Chair;
Michaet Ladrie

MEETINGS ATTENDED

Angela Eptwistle 171

Michael Laurie 141

REMUNERATION PRACTICES

The Remunerauor Cormrmittee recommends and monitors the
level ard structura of remuneratior for senior managemenrt
as well 35 moritoring remmuneration trerds across the Croup,
ard periodically reviews the orgoirg appropriateness

and relevance of the remuneration pobcy: no review was
conducted dunng the year,

Assessment of the Remuneration Committee

The Board conducted ar assessment of the performanrce

of the Remureration Committee at the April 2027 meeting.
The Chair of the Remureration Committee will be svailable
atthe 2022 Apnaal Cereral Meet:rg to arswer ary qJestiors
about the work of the Rermurerat‘on Committee,

Rernuneration policy for the Executive Directors
Remuperation packages are desigred o attract, retair,
motivate and reward Executive Directors, whilst aligning -
rewards with the business objectives anz performance of the
Croup and the ‘rterests of sharerolders

Link between business objectives and remuneration policy

It s the Croup s policy For performarce-related pay of
Execube Directors =0 be linked to key performance indicators
of the Group. The Group s key objectives include developing
sustainable growtn :n earnings and profits through a
combiratior of orgaric growth, irvestmerts ard ircrease in
share orice. The key performance measures choser 10 2027

to unk executive remuresation to the achieve ment of thase
objectives were profits and a casn-related rarget,

Directors’ contracts and letters of appointment

it sthe Qroup's poucy that Executive Dirgctors should have
concracts with indefinite terms providing for a maxirmum of

"2 marths notice by tre employing Group company or ihe
individual. In the event of termination, the Executive Directors’
conracts provide for compensation up to 3 maximum of the
basic rerruneration package for the notce period.
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The details of the Executive Directors' contracts are
surrrranised as follows:

The EFfective date of contract and Notice period for Julia
Robertser were 3 April 207 3 with "2 morths notice from
elther party. The Effective date of contract and Notice period
For Tim Briant were 1 October 2215 with six months notice
From either party. Non-Execubive Directors serve gnder
letters nf aopointmert, which either party can terminate

on three months wrtten notice. The Non-Executive Directors
have ro right to cormpensaticr or the termination of

their appoirtments.

Annual fees of Directors

The basic annual salary of each Executive Director and senior
maragemrent is reviewed arrdally oy tre Rerroreration
Commuittee. The remuraration for the Non-Exacutive Directors
s getarmined hy the Board withir the arrits set by the Articles
and is based se irformation on fees paid ir sirrilar companies
and the skills and expected time commitment of the individual
corcerred. The fees are raviewed each year as part of the
annual budgeting process. The Nor-Execubive Directors
receive acgitional remureratior for chairing Comrmittees.
Aggregalbe Directors’ remuneratior ‘s set oul P rofe 5.

Annual bonus

The Remuneration Commitres establishes the objectives that
must be met For each financial year if a zash benus s to be
naid to the Executive Directors. Based on the Remuneration
Committee's assessrert of tre performance agasmst those
targets, iLwas deterrined that there was £1.0m bonus
payment for delwery of the financial targets of which £0.4m s
deferred ard made in three equal saymenrts over three years.

Shareholding guidelines

There are no requireaments for Execubive Direczors or senicr
executives Lo ~old sharesn the Company. Details of the
shareboldirgs of Tirectors wro served during the yesr are set
GJt or page 55.

INTERNAL CONTROL

+ The Board has responsibility for the Group's overall system
" of internal controls and For reviewing their effectiveness.
. They recognise that the systerr s designed to marage ard

rritigate, rather than elirminate, the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives. it can arovide only reasonatle and not
zbsolute assurance against material financiat misstatement
or loss, The Boarc has estanlished an grgarisatioral sLiucture

" with clear Terms of Reference that must be adherad o by all

subsidiaries, There 1s a prograrrme of regaiar ieview by the

. Board and executive management. which provides assurance

that the cortrol epvironmert s operating as ‘ntended. A
key elemert of this review is strategic basiress olarning
and subseguert performance moritoring. Each busiress
has defined financial performance plans that are agreed
by the Board at the seginring of each firancial period to
meek Company objectives. These plans contain measurable
performance targets, which are cortinuously moritored o
idertify shartfalls, so that corrective 3ctions car be taker.
ir additior, the Compeny ard 'ts scbsiciaries Tairtair risk

_registers that are updated ragulariy. The Crougp risk register s

. reviewed by the Audit Committee whilst reviewing gereraly

" the effectiveness of the Company's Internal control systam.

. The Croup Finarcisl Cortroller s also resporsible for reporting

to the Audit Committee o nterral audit, stilisirg internal
and externai exsertise. The Group operates ir The Virtuosc
Way', which errbeds 3 corsistent Compary-wide Culture,
based or trasted behaviours, delivered by ertreprenearial
Virtsosao leaders, who can drive competitive advartage ard
deliver or the Croup's commitmerts. The Board s comm:tzec
torrainzairing approoriate standards far a. she Jompary s
busiress activities and ensuring that these standards are set

. out-nwritzen policies Key examoles of such standards ard

policies inclade the 'Code of Busress Corduct’. Tre Compary
Code of Busiress Corduct demorstrates s commament

to mairtaining the ~igh levels of ethical stardarzs ard
behayiodrs, wherever it operates in the world.

DIALOGUE WITH SHAREHOLDERS
The Company remairs committed to listermrg to ard
commuricating operly with s sharebclaers Lo ersure that ofs

. wision, missior, strategy, busiress model ard performance are
¢ clearly understood. The Commpary commuanicates with

- shareholders throogh the Annuat Report and Accounts,

. fullyear ard balf-year anngurcerrerts. the Arrual Cereral

Meeting {AGA) and one-ro-one meetings with 1arge existing
or potential new shareholders The Nor-Executive Directors
will attend the ACM and are avaitabie to arswer ary gquestions

. retevart to the Cormmittees they chair. The Board receives
" reqular updates ar the views of shareboiders through

briefings and reports From the Croup Chief Executive Cfficer
Crief Sinancial Offcer and Company Secratary. Corporate

irformation, ircledirg ail Cormpary annourcements, is

avaliable to shareholders, ipvestors and the public o the
Company's website www.nvesiors.impellsr.com).

o
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Directors’ report

The Directors present their Annuat Report on the affairs of the Croup and the Company. together with the sudited consoldated
financial statements and auditor’s reports, for the pericd ended 31 December 2021

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Group comgrise the provision of staffing sotutions, human capital management and outsourced
peopie-related services in the UK, Ireland, North America, mairland Earope, Australia ard New Zealand. The prircipal activity of the
Compary is that of a holdirg company that provides strateqic planmirg ard managerrent services to its portfolio of subsidiaries.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The audited consolidated financial statements for the period ended 31 December 2027 are set out cn pages 58 to 119, The
Greup profit For the period was £8.3m (year ended 1 January 2021 £21.4m loss). in January 2021 the Board apnounced a reduced
share buyback programme. where it will purchase Ordinary shares i the Cornpany up to an aggregate marketvalue of £C.5m per
calendar month until the next AGM to be held in June 2021 It was approved at the AGM to commencs an updatad programme
whereby the Board can purchase up to 3 maximum of 4,560,263 shares, being 10% of the issued Ordinary share caprtal of the
Corpany (35 at 17 May 202 ") until the earliest of the 2022 AGM or 30 Lure 2022,

FUTURE DEVELOPMENTS

The Croup's futdre cevelopments are cutlired withir the Strategic Report. Xey areas are covered witnin the Strategicre,ew,
Strategic priorities and Looking Forward sections of the Chief Executive Officer's review and within tne Outlook section of the Chief
Financial OFficer's review

CAPITAL STRUCTURE
The Company 'ITmpetlam Group pic has no bmit to its authorised share capital. At 31 December 2021, there were 45311 269 1202C:
45519871 allorred fully paid shares of 1p in issue.

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS
- Betweer rhe end of the year and 22 March 2022 afurther 75 830 Crdirary shares of "p eacr Pave beer repurchased i the market
for total consideration of £0.4m and have been cancelled.

n 24 January 2622 the Crovp announcad that -t has entered into an agreemert to sell the business and assecs of Corestaff its
JS-nasad Light Industrial brand to swipejobsinc., a US private digital staffing company, for zash consideration of approx.mately
£14m ,519m).

The rrarsaction was completed or 7 Febraary 2022 Following completior of the Disposal, the Group used the proceeds of sale
to pay dowr ~et debt to Fund additioral investrrent to further accelerate the Croup's strategy.

POLITICAL DONATIONS
The Croup has made no poiitical donations during the carrert or prior years.

MAJOR SHAREHOLDINGS
Asat 23 February 2022 the Company ~ad been notified of the following disclosable .nterests represerting 3% or more of the
issued Ordirary share capital of the Company:

Lombard Trust ' ’ ) 756.88%
é?aier:&géital Maragemenrt S 7 R3'%
Hendrik M. van Hejst o - 7 - N 33%
Lord Askersfr Y
Schroder I sestrment Managerrert Limited o ao
irsrgerCilssen Bankiers T T ey

Page_=4
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DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the period and up to the date of signing these financial statements were:

Executive Directors
Julia Robertsor Group Chief Executive Officer
Tim Brart Chief financial Cfficer

Non-Executive Directors

Lord Asharoft KCMG PC Non-Fxrecutive Chairman

Argeld Ertwistle Non-Executive Director
Mike Ettling Independent Non-Executive Directer
Michael Laurie Independent Non-Executive Director

Baroress Tira Stoweil Independent Non-Executive Director

Appointed April 2013
Appoirted February 2020

Appointed December 2014
Appoirted September 2072
Appairted Septemrber 203
Appeointed July 2074
Appointed Cctober 2077

To resd all of our Directors’ biographies, see pages 44 and 45

DIRECTORS' SHAREHOLDINGS
As ar 23 Febroary 2022 the followirg Directors held shares in the Compary

Lord Asheroft iNon-Executive Chairman

Julia Robertson (Croup Chief Executive OFficer)
Angela Entwistle (Nen-Executive Birecton)
Mike Ertting (Non-Executive Directon

CONTROL

The Croup has igentified Lord Asheroft as the ultimate controlling party as he »as infloence over more than 50% but less than
75%, of both the shares and voting rights of Irpeilam Croup plc ard together with being Chairrrar of mrellam Crous ploras

significant .nfluence over the Croup.,

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Croun's objectives and policies relating to finang al nsk managerment are fully explamed n ~ote 27

PRINCIPAL RISKS

-

on pages 1C

7o 105,

The Board's assessment of the oarcipal —isks ard uncettainties, the Croup's peiicy ard its mitigations are detated or pages

32 to 35,

ENGAGEMENT WITH COLLEAGUES AND OTHER STAKEHOLDERS

The Directors bave giver mach focys as to how they engage and build relatiorships with colleagaes, suppliers, customers

and other sta<eholders, and how these stakehoiders .nterests are considered when making significant decistons. The Group’s
angagement with colieagues and cther stakebolders s explained in the Stakehoider engagement and Respaonsible busiress

sections of the Strategic Report, on pages 36 tc 41,

we actively ercourage duersity ip the workplace ard nave a wide ard varied colleagae base with a vaniety of sodial ard ethnic

groups represented at atl levals of the busiress. we believe that breakirg down the barriers that rave traditionaily restricted

access to the labour market wmill encourage job opportunities far all wWe see it as ourresponsibility both to understand and to

addrass the root causes of gender pay gaps. We are pleased tnar Impellam is ieading by example by appointing and promctirg

wormen ‘nta senier “owes we are ane of only a small number of AM histed companies te be led by a worman, and in additon, 43%

of our 3oard merrbers ard 50% of our Semior Leadership Tearr are wormen. with this ir mind, we work hard to relp cur clierts

and suppliers achieve their diversity objectives,

The Croup s comrmitted fo providing all our coileagues with a work environment free of ciscrimination relatec to sex. race,
calour. onientation, religior, age, ethricity, ratiorai ongir, disability or ary other inappropriate sasis. Agplications for

ar-paymert oy people with disabilizies are copsidered, like aif others, bearing in mird the aptitudes of the candidat

in the ayert of members of staff hecoming disabled. every effort is made o ensure that their empuoyment withun the Group
centinues and thaz spprogriate adjustments are mace. t1s our solicy that the training. career development and promaouion af
pecple with disapilittes should, as Far as cossible, be the same as for all ocher colleagues,

v

acorcerred,

2L

w
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Directors’ report continued

STRATEGIC REPORT

Infarmat:on e respect of the Group’s approach to Colleague Engagerrert & Communicatiors (inrcluding in respect of Moderr
Slavery), Health & Safety, Ant-Bribery, Community and Ervironment are rot shown withir the Directors’ report because they are
presentad within the Responsible business section of the Strategic Report on pages 39 and 40.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The Notice of AGM, to be held at 3.0Com on Wednesday 29 June 2022 at the Impellam offices, 9 Devorshire Square. London
EC2M 4HP is contained in a separate circular to shareholders, [tis being mailed or otherwise provided to sharsholders. after the
publicatior of the Anruat Repnrt. The Motice of Meeling sets cut the resolutions 1o be proposed at the AGM ard qives detalls
of the voting record date and proxy appointment deadline for that meeting. The meeting may be held virtuady «f Covid-19
restrictions are in place.

DIRECTORS' INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

Caring the year ard to the date of these accourts, the Company had ir force an irdemnity provisior in Favour of one or mere
Cirectors of the Company agamst lisbiity in respect of proceedings brought by third parties, subject to the conditions set outin
the Companies Act 2006.

DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION TO AUDITOR
In the case of gach Director:n office at the date the Directors’ reportis approved and in accordance with Sechion 418 of che
Companies Act 2006:
a. sC faras the Direcior s aware thers s no relevant audit information of wmich the Comepany s auditoris uraware' and
& he/she has taken all the steps that he/she ought to have taken as a Director in order £o make himself/herself aware of any
retevart audit irformatior and [o establish that the Carrpany’s auditor 's aware of that infarmation.

REAPPOINTMENT OF AUDITOR
In accorgance with Secticn 489 of the Companies Act 20C6 a resclution for the reappaintment of BDO LLP as auditor
cf the Company is expected to be proposed at tre Annual Seneral Meeting be'ng held on 29 June 2022,

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
This report was approved oy the Board on 5 april 2022 and 1s sigred on its bebhalf by:

RJwatson
Company Secretary

800 The Boulevard
Capability Green
L_tor
Bedfordshire

.J7 3BA

[t IPES
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Statement of Directors’ responsibilities

The Directors are responsible For preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements in accordance with applicable law
and requlatiors.

Company taw requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the Directors have
etected to prepare the Group financial statements in accordance with UK adopted Internaticnal accounting standards and the
Company financial statements in accordance with Unitad Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom
Accounting Standards and applicable law). Under company law the Directors must net approve the financial statements unless
they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Croup and Company and of the profic or loss
sfthe Group for that perind The Directors are alsu required to prepare financial statements in accordance with the rules of
the London Stack Exchange for companies trading securicies on AIM. In preparing these financial statements, the Directors are
required to:

+ select suitabie accounting policies and then apply them consistently

= make judgements ard accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent:

+  siate whether tney have beer prepared in accordance with UK adopted mternational accounting standards suoject to any
material departures disc'osed and explained in the Financial statements, and

+ prepare the Financial statements on the going concern oasts uniess It Is inappropriate to oresume that the Company will
cortirue ir busiress.

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and axpiain the Company s
transactions and disciose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financal position of *he Company and enable them to
ensure that the financial statements comply with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 They are also responsible far
safeqguarcirg the assets of the Compary ard ence for taking reasorable steos For the preventior ard detectior of fraud 3rd
otherirregolarities.

WEBSITE PUBLICATION

The Directors are responsible For ensuring the Annual Report ard the ®nanciai statements are made available ona website.
Finarcial statermerts are sablisred on the Comoany 5 website in accordarce with legislatior ir the United Kirgdom goverricg
the preparation and dissemination of firanc-al statements which may vary From legislation in ather jurisdictions. The
rrairtenarce ard integrity of the Cormpany’s website 1s the resporsibility of the Directars. The Directors resporsibility also
extands o the ongoing integrity of the hinancial staterments contained therein.

Pare
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of Impellam Group plc

OPINION ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In our opirion:

«  the financial statements give 3 true and Fair view of the state of the Group's and of tne Parent Company's affairs as at
31 December 2021 and of the Group's profit for the 32-week period then ended;

+  the Group financial statements rave been properly prepared in accordance with UK adopted internaticnal
accounting standards:

« rhe Parent Compary financial statements have beer properly prepared in accordanre wath United Kingdun Cenerally
Aczepted Accounting Practice; and

«  :he financial statements have been prepared im accordance with che requirements of the Companies Act 2C06.

We have audited the financial staterments of Impellam Croup pic (the ‘Parent Company’) and its subsidiaries {the Greup’)
for the 52-week period ended 31 Decernber 2021 which comprise;

Lo, ST e ARG ra en k
Croup = Corsolidated Income Statement = Applicable law ard interrational
«  Corsclidated Statement of Corrprehensive Income accounting standards e corformity
« (orsclidated Balance Sheet with the requiremerts of the
- Corsolidated Statemert of Cranges in Equity Cornparies Act 2006

»  Corsolidated Cash Flow Staterment
+  Notesto the consolidated Financial statements
«  Altermative performance measJres

Barent Compary «  Cormrpany 3alarce Sheet = Applicable law and Urited Kingdom
+  Company Staterrert of Charges i Equity Accourting Stardards, ircluding
+ Notesto the Company finarcial statements Finarcial Reporting Stardarag ' 0"

Reduced Disclosure Framenork
iUnited Kirgdor Cereraily Accepred
Arco.rbrg Practice)

BASIS FOR OPINION

we conducted our audit e 3ccordance with internatioral Stardards on Auditirg (UK (SAs (UK)) and appticable aw. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further Jescribed in the Auditor s responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements section of our resort. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained s sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our spiricr.

Independence

we remain independect of the Croup and the Parert Company it accordance with the ethical requirerrerts that are relevart
to our audit of the firancal statements in the Uik including the FRC's Ethical Standard as applied to listed entities. ana we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these reguiremenits.

CONCLUSIONS RELATING TO GOING CONCERN

Conrclusion & key + In guditing the financial statements, we have rorcluded that che Directors” use of the going
obse-sat:ons concern basis of sccounting .0 the preparation of the fimancial statements 15 appropraate.

= Based on the work we have performed we have notidentified any mater al uncartainties
relating zo events or conditions that, individuaily or collectively may cast significant doubt an
the Croup ard the Parert Company's ability 1o cortinue 3s 3 going corcerr “or a pericd of at
least twelve months from when zhe firancial statemerts are authorised For issue
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of Impellam Group plc

continued
Approach Our evaluation of the Directors’ assessment of the Group and the Parert Compary's ability to
continue to adopt the goirg corcern basis of accourting included:

= Reviewing ard challenging, througre erquiry and consideration of historical performance. key
assumpticns apelied by the Directors in preparation of cash flow forecasts, including growth
assumptions ard movements ir beadcount ard base costs, ard the Croup's abibity to meet
working capitai requiremenrts over the going concerr pericd.

»  Reviewirg the Directors’ stress tested forecasts, including the inipact of the 'downside’
scenarios or covenart and cash ‘headroom’ ard consideratior of the likelihood of occurrerce
ard feasible actiors to increase beadroom.

+  Review of the Group's new financing agreement effective 17 December 2021 and :fs key terms
and coverants, Considenrg the adequacy of the disclosure requiremenrts against the associated
accounting standards.

Our resporsibilities and the responsibilities of the Directors with respect to gorg concern are

described in the relevant sectiors of this report,

Coverage’ 73% [2020: 7%, of Group apsolute* adusted aperating profit

69% [2020: 83%, of Croup absolute™ profit before tax
7G% (2020 82%; of Group reverue
2020-86%) of Croup gross assets

T Anso Jne tefars 10 the Tumidiabne vacue ffigutes regatless of whesmer (015 3 005 five o megat ve sawe

Key audit matters

<2y A matter DR LIPS,

Risk of fraud or cut-off arror in revenue recognition on temperary
contractor revenue and complex accounting on managed sarvice

Zontracts v v
Compliance wiitFil;ws ard requlations o v
Coodwill, bfa;d_ ‘\-mangib{es and Parert Company s vestment

recoverability X o
N-e\:'v JCcountirg reatmenrts as 3 re;Jit of Cowvd-19 X v

Coodwiil, rand irrargibles and Parert Compary investment recoverability 1s rat considered to be 3
key audit matter as the risk of ‘mpairment of gocdwill or investments in subsidiaries is significancly
reducad fFollowing a return to profitable growth,

New zccounting sreatments as 3 resdit of Covid-19:1s ~g lorger corsidered to be 3 key augit macter
due to the reduced Jtilisatior of Coverrmert Covid-13 relief schemes from the prior period ard
erharced krowledge for the accourt' ng for these scremes.

Materality

Group financial statements as a whole

£1.45m 12020 £1.10m) based on 5.0% of adjusted operating orofit 12020 3.5% of the average of
adjusted operating profit for last three pericds) A three-period average was used in the prior perod
due to theimpact of the Covid 19 pandemic.

AN QVERVIEW OF THE SCOPE OF OUR AUDIT

Cur Croup 3udit was scoped by obrairirg an urderstarding of tre Croup and its enwirormert, includirg the Croup's systemr
of internal contrai. and assess:ng the risks of material misstatermenrt 'n the finanast skatements, We also adarassed the nisk of
maragermenrt overrice of irtermal cortreis, inrciuding assessing whether there was eviderce of dias by the Directors that may
rave represerted a rsk of matenal misstaterent.

We Zesigred ap audit strategy to ensJre we bave abtaired the reguired audit assurance for each componert for the purposes
of sur Croup audit opirion (1SA 500 (UK. Components were scaped in to address aggregation nsk and to ersure sufficent
coverage was ootaired of Croup balarces or whicr to base cur awdit opinion. The coverage of our audit procedures s
summansed graphically bewow and ther detailed p the followirg tabie.

1T 7TNese are 3reds AnICh Ngve oe

s fullscace auct

T aaTsiel
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Significant components

+  we focused our Croup audik scope prmarily on the audit work at seven significant
components which wers subject to Full scope audit procedures.

+ These significant cemponents contribute 73% (2020:.67%) of the Croup Absclute
Adjusted Operating Prefit, 65% 12020 83%;) of the Groun Absowte Profit before Tax
69% (2020 82%) of tne Croup Reverue ard 35% .2020: 36%) of Croup Gross Assets.

«  Three of the full scope audits of significant components were performed by comporent

acditors under the direction and superyision of the Sen:or Statutory Auditor who issued

decailed mnstructions, raviewed component audi files and atrended locat audit close
meetings, All significant components were augited by 3DO LLP /BDO LK) other than aone
corrporent, which was gudited by 3DC rrre US{BDOUS).

Specified audit procedures

Parert Zompary ard
consolidatior

Remairirg components

- Specified audit procedures were performed te address the nisk of materal misstatement
arising from key balances in non-significant components, with testing performed on all
material balances withie trese components.

« All testing was performed by BDO UK, ather thap for the comporeris o« Austraiia ard
New Zealard, which were performed oy BDO Australia Limitea. All testing was wncer the
directior arg sugervisior of the Senior Statutory Auditor via detailed irstractions ard via
review of selected working papers on significant risk areas.

+  Thisspecfic scope testing was performed on componenis chat contribute 21%

(2020: 11%) of the Croup Absclute Adjusted Cperating Profit 26% (2C20: 3%, of the

Croup Absclute Profit befare Tax, 17% (202£: 9%) of the Croup Revenue and 13%

{2020: 9% of CGroup Gross Assets

« Allother components were scoped in for analytical review procedarss to conform
our conclusion that there were no significant risks of materal misstatement of the
aggregated fnancial information. These were perfarmed oy the teams in BDC LLP
‘BDO UK), BDT US ard BDO Australia.

+  Specified audit procedures were performea on any mater:al baiances from these

componerts.

«  The Parert Company is located in the UK and was 2udited by the Croup audit zeam
{BDO UK. The Parent Company is treated as a sigrificant componenct for the Sroun.

+  The Group audit team bave performed testing of the consslidatior and related
consolidation adjustments posted in preparation of the Grocup financiai stataments.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Independent auditor’s report to the members of Impellam Group plc
continued

Our involvement with component auditors

For the work performed by compenent duditors on sigmficant components, we determined the level of involvemenrt needed
In order £o be able to conclude whether sufficient appropnate audit evidence has been cbtained as a basis for aur opinion

on the Group financial statements as a whole, Qur involvement with compenent auditars on sigrificant components included
the followirg:

we assessed the comnpetence and independerce of the comporent aaditors. Directior and superdsior over their work
performed was atso provided by the Croup audit tearmr. We atterded the comporert enfities’ planning ard coirpletior
meetings. The —omporenrt auditors also transferied documrentatior of their work performed which was reviewed by the Croup
audit team in order to gain comfort over the audit of the significant components, specified audit procedures on specific scope
entities, and reviews over the remaining insignificant components.

Key audit matters

key audit matters are those matters that, -n our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the Ainancial
staternents of the current period and include the most significant assessed risks of material misstatement (whether or not
Zue to fraud) that we .centifed, includ'ng those which had the greatest effect on the overall audit strategy, the allocatior of
resources.n che audit and directing the efforts of the engagement team. These matters were addressed in the context of our
aud:t of the financial statements as a whoie and 'n forming our opinion thereon and we da ~ot provide a separate apimon on
these matters.

e iLdn At Tescr bt s e doressen the e, sudih macterir the i
Risk of fraud or - Under ISA 240 (UK}, there 5 a Temporary contractor revenue
cut-offerrorin presJmed sk that revende may
revenue recognition be ~isstated due Lo proper +  Toacdress the risk around existence and cut-off
on temporary recogmtlo_n whgther From fraud of reverue. ora sampie bags, reverye arourdthe
contractor revenue or error[_ Civen i:"at Feber‘uet isd pericd end was tested agairst urderlyinrg suppaortirg
d complex key performance indicator for the documertation, such as ergagement letters, tmecards,
an . Crodg, the risk of imoroper reverue Dayments o termporary workers and morles receved
accounting on recogrition s elevated. from rhe clients.
Managed Service *  The ~sk of fraudulert ~everue +  Cut-off was further addressed by reviewing tirecards
Contracts recogritior arises from revepoe ir submitted after perod end ard ascertain rg the seriod
relacior Lo temporary contractaors. they relace 2o,
“be 3ccecuntirg Management applies judgements «  The completeness of reverue was tested oy samplirg
policy ard related ard estimates corcernirg the timecards ard tracing therm g the reverue and accrued
disclasares are shown completeness accuracy and zut-off of income and ersunirg they rave beer recognised In tre
Imrokes 2, 3 ard TS, revenue around period end; therefore correct period.
arisk of material misstaterment exists  « A sample of credit rotes rased i Lanaary 2022
This can invore either througn error orir order Lo that relate to FYZ2" were reviewed in order to
complex and meet financial targets or performance assess the validity of the salesirvoices raised
subjective judgements related bonuses. :n the firancizl period.
in determiring +  Therisk of errcnegus reverue
termparsry revende recognit:on arses fram complax Complex accounting on Managed Service Contracts
recogrised around accounting or febates related <o
period end ard the maraged service cortracts. Accounurg «  The pericd erd rebate habilities were tested by assessirg
application of FRS 13 ard potential understatement of estimates against the contacts and/or correspondences
to complex contracts trese rebate agreemerts could resalt The year-erd rebate liabitity was further aralysec agairst
ir amatenal error witnin the reverye the prior peried’s rebate liabilicy in order to understard
stated for the ceriod. key mavements ‘nrebates and form an expectation on
+ This results in the cut-off of temporary the liability positior st the period erd.
revenue and complex accounting + Asamgle of rebates were recalcalared usirg the terms
or Managed Service Cortracts being of the supplier contracts and/or correspondences and
assessed as a significant nsk of volume of placements cbeained from the infarmatior
material misstatement ard a key held on the audited ertity’s system.

audit matter.
Key observations
wWe did rotidentify ary irdications that —emporary or
maraged service reverue were materially misstared.
The judgements and estimates applied were therefore
consistent with our expecrations.
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Compliance
with laws and
regulations

The accourtirg policy
ard retated disclosures
are shown ir note 2
and 20.

Ir gccordarce with
1AS 37 "Prowvisiors,
Contirgert Liabitities
ard Conbingert
Assels’, DrovIsion is
rrade for claims far
potertial and actual
nonr-comrpliance with
laws and regulations
where there s a
oresenrt oblgatior 39 3
result of 3 past evert
that givesrise tc 3
probable payrrert and
when the quartum of
the payrrent car be
reliabiy estirrated.

«  The Group is subject to both localand  »

oy ap oudressed the ey o dit iatzer o bR sudil

inJe held meetirgs with the Croup’s legal counsel to

irternational legal ard regulatory
requirements that vary between the
differant industries and jurisdictions
that the Croup operates. The Croup
has an in-house egal team who assist
management ir the determination of
its Minasnclal obligations.

The Group hoids 3 numper of balarces
ir relatior to its ongoirg obligatiors
to corrply with the regutatory ard
legal erwironment - varying levels of
judgement are required to astimate
the impact of these on the finandial
statements.

The key areas of cemrpliance relate

ko workers rights, such as PAYE
underpayrmert, ratoral minimam
wage, Fair Labour Standards Act (USA)
3rd boliday pay.

Provisionrs Pave beer mmade for the
expected cost of settling these
matters, these are inrherently
judgemental.

« ARy nor-compuanrce may resylt e
Fines, unrecorded Liabilities and
reputational damage to the Croup.

+  The compliance with laws and
regutatiors has beer assessed
as a significant sisk of material
misstatements ard related disclosares
ard a key audit matter

Jnderstard areas of nor-compliance with laws or
regulanion and the progress of any significant ongoing
legal areas. )

«  We circulated legal confirmations to key external
counsel to gan external confirmation of any potential
cialms or areJs of non-wumipliance,

+  The odtcome of prior period claims has been evatuated
against the carrent penod provisions to gain assJrarce
over the Fistorical reliability ard completeress of tre
lability,

« We spec.fically assessed by brand the Croup s policies
and practices in relation to holiday pay, in the cortext
of relevart iegal requirerents. We reviewed the basis
ard appropriateress of Foliday pay accruals ard fevel
of pay-out by sampling contractors ard empicyess o
Jnderlying contracts and system gererated reports,

- we assessed the Croup's control ervironmert arcwed
natioral mirimum wage compliarce ard Tade enguires
te determine areas of poternial exposure, pspecting
ard assessirg assocated correspondence. We avaluated
and challenged maragement's experts competence and
sxposure assessment.

Key observations

we did notidenrt.Fy, aither from external or internal
sources, ary materiat comeliarce issues ol already
ircluded ir the provisions.

Based on the work performed, we aid rotidertfy
any ‘nappropriate judgements or estimates made by
maragement, all provisions fFellwithim our ramge of
potent:al cutcomes.

We did not identify any disclosure deficiencies in relation
to rotes 2 and 20 that describes the degree of irherent
uncertairty in the assumptions ard estimates ysed in

assessirg the value of asscmated ron-campliance provisicns.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Independent auditor’s report to the members of Impellam Group plc
continued

OUR APPLICATION OF MATERIALITY

e apply the concept of materiality both in planning and performing our audit. and in avaluating the effect of misstatements.
We consider materiality to be the magnitude by which misstatements, inciuding omissions could influence the economic
decisions of reasonable users thar are taken on the basis of the financial statements.

in order to reduce ko an appropriately low level the probability that any misstatements exceed matenality, we use 3 lower
materiality level performance materiality to determine the axtent of testing needed. Importantly misstatements pelow these
levels witl not necessarly be evaluated as immaterial as we also take account of the nature of idertified misstaterients, and the
particular circumstances of rtheir accurrence when evaluating their effect on the Finencial statements as a whole.

Based on our professicnal judgement, we determined materiality for the financial statements as a whoie and nerformance
materiality as Follows:

GROUP MATERIALITY

M !

Materiality £145m £1.1Cm

Basis 3.0% of Adjusted Operating Profit 3.5% of Adjusted Operating Profit

Rationale Adjusted Operabing Profit s considerad the mos: appropriate benchmark based on markef practice
and investor expectations. Adjusted operating profit s derived by adding back interest expense
and incame, ‘mpairments, and amorbisation of brand values and client relat:onstups from profit
befcre tax

Sur matenality henchmark ‘Adjusted Operating Profit) has remamed che same from the prior 52-
week pefiod, altrough in the prior pericd we used ar average of the {ast tihree penods o normaise
profits for the impact or Covid-19.

Qur materiglity percentage threstold has beer increased from 3.5% m 2020 t0 3% 0 2027,

we incregsed the percentage ir the carrent nerod, followirg a charge ir berchmark from crree
period average rofits in the prior period. We used sucaitor judgement to ensurs the chosen
sercentage derwed ar appropriate materiality level:n the cortext of the current deriod profits
ard trading activities.

Performance £1015k €715k
Materiality
Measure 70% of Materialiey 65% of Materiality
- Application The applicatior of matenalty at the individuat account or balance tevelis set at ar amourt to

red.Ce LG an appropriately iow ever the probability that the aggregace of Jrcorrected and
undetected misstaterments exceeds matariality.

Tre ircrease from 65% ir 2020 to 70% ir the currert period is due t6 our i proving krowledge of
the Srous, being our third period of audit, and improverent in the Group s financial reporting and
cortrol ervironment over that time, These factors reduce the inherert risk of srmall urcorrecteg or
Jrdetected errers becorring material ir aggregate.

Seesage 1 for Jefn ooy

age_54
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PARENT COMPANY MATERIALITY

Ay

Materiality £1.38m £1.04m

Basis Net assets

Rationale MNet assets s considered the most appropriate benchmark as the Parent Company does rot trade,
and s focused on a share buyback programme that relies on sufficient reserves to achieve this.
This has been capped at $5% of Croup materiality stated above.

Performance £964k £675k

Materiality

Measure 70% of Materiality 63% of Materiatity

Application The application of materiality ac the individuai account or hatarce tevel s set at ar amourt £o

reddJce Lo an appropriately low wevet the srobability trat the aggreqate of urcarrected ard
Jndetected misstatements exceeds maceriality.

Theircrease from 5% :n 2020 to 0% ir he current pericd s due to the ractors roted in oJr
Croup matenality ratiorale above.

Component materiality

We set materiality “or each comporert of the Croup based or a percentage of betweer *1.7% and 95.0% of Croup materiality
cependent on the size and our assessment of the rise of materal misstate ment of that component Signif-cant companent
matariality ranged from £170k to £1.38m. In zhe awdit of each significant component, we further appued performance
materiality levels of 70% of the compenent matenalicy to our testing to ensure cnat the rsk of errors exceeding component
reateriality was appropriately mitigated.

Reporting threshold
We agreed with the Auait Committee that we would report to them all indwvidual sudic differences im excess of £58k {2028:
£22k). we also agreed to report differences below this threshold that, in our view, warranted reporting on guatitative grounds.

OTHER INFORMATION

The directers are resporsible for the otherinformation. The ather irfarmation comrprses the irformator ircluded in the
Annual Report and Accounts other chan the financial statements and our auditor s regort therecn, Sur apinion on the financial
statemencs does not cover the other information and except to the extent otherwise explicitiy stated in our report we de net
exprass any Form of assurance conclusion theraon. Gur “esponsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so. consider
whether the other information is Materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge cbtained in the course
of the audiz, or otherwise appears to be materially misstatea. IF we dentify such maternal inconsistercies or apgarent materia
misstatements, we are ~equired to determine whether this gives rise to a materal misstaterment in the financial statements
tremselves. I, based on the work we have nerformed, we corclude that thereis a rmaterial misstaterrent of this other
irformatior. we are required to report that fact.

‘we have rothirg to reportin this regarg.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Independent auditor's report to the members of Impellam Group plc
continued

OTHER COMPANIES ACT 2006 REPORTING
Based on the responsibilities described below and our work performed during the course of the audit, we are required by the
Companies Act 2006 and 15As (UK} to report or certain ooirions and matters as described below.

Strategjc and In our opinion, based or the work undertaker i the course of the audit:
irectors’ repor _ ‘
Directo port the information gwen ir the Strateqic report and the Directors report for the financial period
for which the financial statements are prepared s cunsislent with the financiai statements; and
+ the Strateqic report and the Directors’ report nave been prepared ir accordarce with applicable
legal requirements.

ir the light of the knowledge ard understanding of the Croup ard Parert Company and its
environment obtained in the course of the audit we have not identified material misstaterments
in the Strategic report or the Directors’ report.

Matters on which  Wehave nothing to report in respect of the followirg matters :n relation 2o which the Companies
we are required Act 2006 requires Js o repors Fo yod of, ir our opinion:

to report by - adeguate accounting records have rot beer kept oy the Parert Company, of refturrs adequate
exception For our audit have not been received from branches not visited by us; or
+  the Parent Company financial statements are not 'n agreement with the accounting records
andraturns: or
«  certain disclosures of Directors remuneration specified by law are not made; or
+ we have not received all the information and explanations we reguire for our audit.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTQORS

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors’ responsibilities. the Directors are responsibie for the preparation of the
financial statemerts and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and For such internai control as the Directors
determine |s necassary to 2nable the preparation of “pancial statements that are free from material misstatermnent, whether due
tofraud orerror

In preparing the financial statements the Directors are respansibe For assessing the Group s and the Parent Company's ability
to cortirce as 3 goirg corcers, disclosing, as applicabte, matters refated to goirg concern and Jsing the going concerr Dasis af
3ccountirg grless the Directors either intend o tiquidate tre Croup of the Parent Companry or Lo C2ase operatiors, of “awe "0
realistic alterratve but to do so.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Dur objectives are to abtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financiai statements as a whele are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, ard to1ssue ar auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reascrable assorarce
15 a high tevel of assurarce by s pot a guarartee that ar audit condocted in accordarce with 1SAs (UK} will always detect a
material misstatement whan it exists. Misscatements car arise from fraud or arror and are considered materal if individually or
inthe aggregate they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial staterments.

Extent to which the audit was capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud

irregularities, ircluding fraud, are irstances of nar-campliarce with laws ard regulatiors. We desigr procecures i ire with
our responsibiities outlined above, to detect matenal misstatements in respect of irregulanties ircluding Fraud The extent to
whick our procedares zre capable of dececting rregulanties, ‘reluding fraud is detailed below:

we cbtaired ar arderstardirg of the iegal ard regulatery frarreworks trat are applicable te Impedam Croup ple. Wwe
deterrmined that the most significant waws and reguiations which are direccly relevant to specific assert:ans .n the financial
statemenrts are those related (o tre reportirg framewcrk (IFRS, UK CAAP ard the Companies Act 2006}, fabcur regaiations and
tax laws in key territories which the Jroup operates.

+  we gnderstood Pow the Croup s <omplying with trose legal and regulatory frameworks by makirg enquines of
maragemert ard those resporsible for legal ard campliarce procedures. We corroborated our enguiries throvagi our
review of board minutes, legal correspondence or corfirmations {where reievant) and specific audit testing witmin signifrcant
comporent ard Full scope eptities.
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+  We obtained an understanding of the sigmificant laws and regulations which the Group is affected by and understood
Row the Group is complying with the laws and regulations. This was corroborated agamst cur review of board mirutes,
confirmations from tegal counsel and audit procedures on provisions and compliance with iaws and regulations

+  We assessed the susceptibility of the Group's financial statements to material misstatement, including how fraud might occur
by meeting with maragemrent to urderstand where 1t 1s considered there was 3 susceptibility of fraud. Our corsideratiors
included erquiries with comporert maragerrent ard comporert aaditors.

«  We also considered potential fraud drivers: including Financial or aother pressures, opportunity, and personal or corporate
motivations. We considered the policies and controls that the Croup has established tr address rislks identifed, or that
otherwise prevent, defrer and detect fraud, and how senior management monitors those programmes and controls. Where
the risk was considered higher. we performed audit procedures to address each 1dentified fraud risk. These procedures
‘ncluded testing manual journals, testing compliance with laws and regulations and key areas of estimation uncertainty or
wudgement, for example: recoverability of trade debtors, valuation of accrued income at period-end, revenue recognition on
temperary contractor revenue and complex contract accounting cn managed service contracts as set out :n the key audit
matters section.

+ We aiso communicated relevant identified laws and regulations and potential fraud risks to ali engagement team members
and the componrert auditars, ard remmained alert to ary indications of fraud ar nor-compliarce with laws and regulatiors
throughout the sudit.

Our audit procedures were designed Lo respond to risks of material misstaterrent in the finarcial statements. recognising

that tre risk of not detecting 3 material misstatement due to fraud is bigher than the risk of rot detectirg ore resultirg from
errer as fraud may .nvolve deliberate conceaiment by far example. forgery, misrepresentaticns or through collusion. There are
inherent limitatiors in the sudit procedures performed and the Surther removed ror-compliarce with laws and regulations is
from the events and transactions raflected ' the finarcial statements the less likely we are to become aware of it.

A Further descrption of aur rescorsibilities 1s avallable on the Firarcial Reporting Council's website af:
www Fre.org.ok/auditorseesponsibiities. This descoiption Forms part of our auditor's report

USE OF OUR REPORT

This report is made sciely to the Parent Compary's members, as 3 body, 10 accordance with Chapter 3 of Part "5 of the
Cormrpanries Act 2005, Our sudit work has been srdertaker so that we might siate to the Parent Comrpary's memrbers thase
matters we are required to state o them in an auditor's report and For no other purpose. To the Fullest 2xtant permittec by law
we do not accept or assume resporsibility to anyore other than tre Parert Corrpary and the Parept Cormpary's members 25 3
body, For oor audit work, for this report, of Far the spiriors we have forred.

Mark Cardiff {Senior Statutory Auditor)

For and on behalf of BDO LLP, Statutory Auditor
Lordor, UK

S April 2022

BDO LLP is a limited 'iability partnership registered i Ergiand ard Wales iwith registered rumber OC305727"
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Consolidated income statement

SCR T AT wik -G EMNDED 3 DRECEMBER 7071

31 December ClamLary
2021 Mz
N o o - ~ ) ke £m o _:}T*
Revenue 3 2,262.4 2,000.5
Cost of sales {1,995.4) (1,772.8
Gross profit 267.0 228"
Adrministrative expanses {244.2) 1239.5)
rrpairment iosses from receivables " (3.3) (3.6)
Operating profit/{loss) 384 19.5 (15.0}
Operating profit before imparments. amortisation of brand value and customer relationships 3 29.3 18.2
Arrortisation of brard value and custorrer relationskips 13 (9.8) (1.0}
impairmert of goodw:!| 12 - 6.6}
Impairmert of other irtarqgible assets '3 - (5.6
Ooperating profit /(loss) 3&4 19.5 5.0
Finance ircome 5 0.2 0.3
Finance expense 7 {4.3} (5.7
Profit/(loss) before tax 15.4 20.4,
Tax charge 3 (7.1) {0
Profit/iloss) for the perad 8.3 21.4;
Profit/(loss) for the period attributable to:
tquity hoiders of the Parent Corrpary 8.2 21.4;
Non-cortroliing irterast 24 0.1 -
8.3 121.4)
Earnings per share 9
Attributable to equity boiders of the Parent Corpany:
- basic 18.3p (456.2)0
- diluted 18.3p 46.2j0

Sage =7
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

TORTHE 52 WEEKS ZMDED 3* DECEVBRR 071

31 December tJaruang
2021 22T
o - Sote s £m o [
Profit/(loss) for the period ’ 8.3 {21.4
Other comprehensive income:
items that may be subseqguently reclassified into wncome:
Foreign currency translation differences — foreign operationrs 23 (1.4) 2.0
Reduction it ror-controlling irterests 24 {0.3) -
Total comprehensive income for the period, net of tax 6.6 123 4)
Total comprehensive income for the period attributable to:
Equity holders of the Parent Corrpany 6.6 23 4)
Nor-controlling interest 24 - -
6.6 123 4)

“AGE_ D7
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Consolidated balance sheet

As AT 3 DECEMBIR 26T

Non-current assets
Property, plant ard equipmert
Right-of-use assets
Coodwill

Cther intargibie assers
Firarcial assets

Deferred tax assers

Trade and other receivables

Current assets

Trade ard other recenvables
Tax recelvable

Cash ard cast equivalents

Total assets

Current liabilities
Short-term borrowings
Lease iabilities

Tracde ard other oajabies
Tax zayabie

Provisiors

Net current assets

Non-current liabilities
_org-term borrowirgs
Lease liahilities
Provisiors

Ceferred tax Labdities

31 December
2021

Total liabitities

Net assets
Equity

issued share capitai
Skare premium account

Other reserwes
Retaired 2arrings

Total equity attributable to equity holders of the Parent Company

Non-controlling interest

Total equity

223.8

The zonsolidated financial staterments of Impetlam Zroup plcregisteraed number: C6511981) on pages 68 to 112 were approved

oy the Board or 5 april 2022,

Tim Briant
Chief Financial OFficer
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity

TGRTHE 52 NEEKS TMDES 37 DECEMBER 202

4 January 2020
Loss for the period
Other corrprehensive income {note 23)

Total comprehensive income in period
Trarsgections with owners. recorded direckly in equity
Purchase and cancellatisn of awn shares {note 24)

1 January 2021

Profit for the per:od

Other campretensive iccome from reducing the
NClcompenent (note 24)

Other comrprerersive ircome fram foreige

casrrency trarsiation (note 233

Total comprehensive income in period
Transactions with owners, recarded diractiy i equity
Purchase ard carcellatior of own shares {noie 22)

31 December 2021

95.9 246.8 (0.3) 246.5

- - (214 (271.40 - [21.4)

- 2.0} - (2.0 - 2.0]
2.0) (21.4) (23.4) - 23.8)

- - 143 @3 - 14.3)
30.8 8.3 70.2 279 0.3} 238
30.6 118.3 70.2 219 (0.3} 218.8
- - 8.2 8.2 0.1 8.3

- - (0.3} (0.3) 0.3 -

- (1.4) - (1.4) - (1.4)

- (1.4) 7.9 6.5 0.4 6.9

- - (1.9) (1.9) - (1.9)
30.6 116.9 76.2 2237 0.1 223.8

Fage 7
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Consolidated cash flow statement

FOR e 22 WEEKS ENDED 31 CEIEMBER 2020

31 December

2021 n:
e B L B o ot - £m .
Cash Flows from operating activities
Profit/(loss) before tax 15.4 120.4)
Adiustments for:

Depreciation of property, plart and equicrent 10 2.4 2.8
Amrortisatior of rigirt-of-gse assets | 17 7.0 8.5
Arrortisatior of octher intargible assets "3 15.1 “75
repairmert of goodwill 2 - ‘6.6
rparrmenrt of other intangible assets 3 - 56
Profit on disposal of progerty, plant and equipment 4 (0.2) (0.2;
Firance ircome 6 (0.2) 03
Finance axpense 7 4.3 5.7
43.8 369
{Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivaples {46.0) 3
‘ncrease intrade and other payabiles 12.1 50.8
ircrease e provisions 20 2.0 1.4
Cash from operations 11.9 97.2
Tax paid (1.7) 2.7
Net cash from operating activities 10.2 4.5
Cash Flows from investing activities
P.rcrase of oroperty, glant ard equipmenrt g (1.5) ("2
Purchase of irtargibte assets 3 (4.3) 2.3)
Receipt from lease dettors 25 1.7 3.2
Increase in other financial assets 14 - 0.
irterest received 6 0.2 0.3
Net cash fram investing activities {3.9) 0.
Cash Flows Frem financing activities
Drawdown of short-term borrowings 25 292.0 167"
Repaymert of short-term borrowings 25 (308.7) (2%3.4})
Increase/(decrease; in overdraft 25 1.0 (367
Purchase ard carcellation of owr shares 22 (1.9} i4.3]
Interest paid or lease liabitities (0.6} :0.8)
Interast paid or borrowings 3.5} 4.6)
Repaymert of lease nabilities 26 (8.9} Y
Net cash from financing activities {30.6) 1103.6)
Net decrease in cash ard cash equivalerts (24.3) 9.2}
Opering cash and cash equivalents 117.9 132,
Effect of foreign exchange rate movements 26 {2.7) 5.2
Closing cash and cash equivalents 5 90.9 SRS

2age 7S
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¢

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

FCRTAL 3¢ WEEKS ZNBGES 31 2RCEMBER 2027

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

The financ:at statements of impellam Group plc and at of its subsidiaries {'the Croup’ for the 52 weeks ended 31 December
2027 were authorised for ssue by the Board of Directors on 5 Apnt 2022 and the balance sheet was signed on behalf of tre
Board by Tim Briart.

The Sroup provides staffing selutions, human capital management and outsourced pecple-related services from offices located
ir the UK, ‘reland, North America, mainland Europe, Austraiia and New Zealand.

Impeltare Croup plc (The Cnmpamt s 3 public irmited contpary ircorporated and registeredin Ergland ard Wales and dormiciled
in the Uk under the Companies Act 2006 with a listing on the London Stock Exchange, trading on AlM.

lts registered office is ‘ocated at.
800 The Baulevard

Capabibity Greer

Luton

BedForashire LU 3BA

Urited <ingdorm

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of preparaticn and geing concern

The zansolidated finarcial stataments have been prepared on a going concern basis in accordance with UK acopted
intermaticnal accounting standards. in coming to their conclusion the Diracters have considered the Croue s orofit and cash flow
plars for the coming period, together with outine projections for 2023 and 2024. The Group nad a net debt position of £15.0m
iexciuding IFRS 5 lease llabilities) and has a further £73.5m available to drawdown o the Group s revolving credit facility 1see
note 27). The amount of borrowing reguired to Fund the Croup s activities is cetermined based on these prejections, together
with expected returns to sharehoiders and planned capital exgenditure. Also considered 1s the projection of compliance with
the fnanc.al covenants :mplied by these plans. In addition. these Sigures are fested for sensitivity to possible changes to the
ECoONOMIC armvirorments it which the Croup operates. Tre Croup =as ro operations :» Jkraine or sarroundirg regions and
therefaore there s no direct ‘mpact or the Croup's tradirg, nowever, ary indirect impact 5J¢h 35 3 worsening ir ecoramic
corditiors, wodid represent such a sensitivity. The irmpact or Croup lquidity and coverants of each of these sersitivities s then
considered together with the likelibood of each of these nccurrirg either irdividually or ' combinatior, Civer this apalysis. the
Diracters nave determired that there 3re no likety dowrside scerarios whicn would cause ehe Croap g concers,

Following the September 2027 assessmert by tre IFRS Interpretatiors Cormmittee of 'Cash recered via Elecrroric trarsfer as
settlernent For financial assets the Croup has reassessed its policy for the treatment of BACs BACS receipts are now recogn sed
on 3 setilemert rather thap rerrittarce basis. The prior pericd comparatives have not beer restated for this charge as the
impact on both trade recervables and cash was rot matenal to the pror zeriod, Farther the charge hashad roimpact o

profic recogrised in either period. and the change has had no significant impact on key performance indicators or on covenant
comoliarce.

The financiat statermnents have been prepared on the historical cost basis except where stherwise :dentified and as modified
Fortme revaluation of certain firancial assets at Fair value through the income statement. The principal accounting podcies
adopted are set out betow. The financlas staterments are presented in Pound Sterling and all values are reunded to che nearest
£C 1 million [£0.1m) except where otherwise indicated. Fereign operat.ons are included in accordance with nate 2/C) below.

Any eferances tc 2021 in thesa statemerts refer to the 52-week financial period ended 37 December 2021, Any references to
2020 these statements refer to the 52-week financial period enced 1 January 2C21.

Basis of consolidation

The consclicated Financial staterments comorise the financial statements of the Croup as at 31 December 2021. The financia:
statemrents of subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as the Parert Company. fach compary, ircsdirg the
parent, uses locally appicable generslly accepted accounting practice {CAAP) for the preparation of thew indvidual financia:
statements Adjsstments are made to bring these into line witn the IFRS policies adopted by the Group as requered. Subsidiares
are consoudated from the date ar which the Croup cbtairs cortrol using the acg.sition method and cease Lo be corsolidated
Fror the date or which the Croup ceases its cortrol. Accourtirg policies have beer applied corsistently.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the consolidated fFinancial statements continued

TCRTHE 52 WEEKE CMEOED 3* DECEMBER 207!

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES CONTINUED

Basis of consolidation continued

A comgonent of the Group's business is classified as a discontinued operation if the aperations and cash flows of the component
can be clearly distinguished, aperationaily and for financial reperting purpeses, from the rest of the Group and If the component
either has been oris classified as held For sale, and:

« represents a separate major line of business or geographical area of eperations:
« s part of a singie co-ordinated pian to dispese of a separate major line of business or geographical area nf nperations or
» isasubsidiary acquired exclusively with aview to rosale.

when an operation s classified as a discontinued operation tne consolidated sncome statement and consolidated cash flow
statement are restated and presented as if the operation has been classified as such from the start of the comparative year.

A) Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
New standards, amendments and interpretations effective in financial year 2021

= interest Rate Benchmark Reform Phase 2 - Amendments to IFRS 3 1AS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 3nd IFRS 18

The above amerdment has ot materially impacted the Crodp’s resdits. The Croup adopted Covid-19-related Rert Corcessiors -
Amendments to iIFRS 16 ir the prior period.

Standards and interpretations to existing séandards that are not yet effective and have not been early adopted by the Group
The following new standards and interpretations to existing standards nave seen published thac are mandatory for the Group's
Future accounting and effective “or the Group as follows, which are ail effective for periods starting on or after 31 December
2021 or later periods:

- Property, Plart arc Equipment: Proceeds before irtended use - Arrendments Lo 1AS 6

«  Refererce tc the Corceptual Framework —Arrendments b0 1IFRS 3

+  Covid-"3 Related Rent Corcessiors Beyond 30 June 2027 - Arerdrrert to IFRS 75 Ledses

+  Definition of Accounting Estimates - Amendments o IAS 8

+  Deferred Tax retated to Assels and L.abilities arising frorm a Single Transaction - Amendments to 1AS 12
»  Onerous Contracts — Cost of Futfilling a Contract - Amendments te 1AS 37

« Apruaalimprovermenrts LG FRS Standards 207 8-2020

»  Classification cf diabilities as Current or Non-¢current — Amendments to 1AS 1

The above standards and interpretations are not expected to matenally impact the Croup’s results.

B) Significant accounting judgements and estimates
In apelying the £7oup s accounting policies, the following jJudgements and estimates have been made that may have a significant
effact on the amounts recognised in the finangal staterrents in the current of future years:

i) Judgements

Agent versus prncipal

“he Croup assesses whether it s actirg as agert or prircipal depending or whether the cliert nas 3 direct rewtionship witr the
Croup, whether the Croup has the primary resporsibiity for providirg the services and whether the Croup cartracts directly
with either the worker placed ar any other recruitmmert agercy. Account 's also made of the degree of tatitade the Croup Pasin
gstablishing the chargirg rates with ail parties.

where the Group orovides a Maraged Service, inwhich it acts s agent for the cliert twhich s mairly Maraged Services
cortracts), the amount of reverae recogrised is limited to the rraragerrert Fee receivable for that service afrer makirg
orovision For ary iosses foreseen, volume rebates and amouris payable under gain-share arrangements rather than the Full
arrocunrt irveiced, Trade recewables and payables related te these sales are recorded at Full irvaice value.

tease end dates

IFRS 15 Leases requires a lessee to determine whether it 1s reasonably certain. to exercise an option to extend the term

of the lease; to exercise an option to purchase the urderlying asset at the end of the lease; or not to exarcise an option o
terminate the lease 2arty. The Group makes this assessment to denve an expected lease term, which rmay noc be the same as

the zantractual term of the {ease. This has led to a level of judgement over the lzases in our portfolio on the expected lease
termenation date. Decerdirg on the circumstances of theirdividual \ease, the Group has taker either the breax date (for those
circumstances where tne Group s reasanably certain to exercise the break). the actual lease end date or an estymate of how worg
the Croup will stay ir a property for those leases which rave Seen held over at the end of the year.
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Ageing of borrowing

The Croup has signed up to a revelving credit facility which 1s committed until at least December 2024 (note 27). Borrowings
made under this facility are over a set period, which is usJally less thar a year, but are available to be rerewed as and when
they fall due. The Croup assesses if any elemment of this porrowing would be due in less thar one vear based upor optirral cash
holdirg positiors ard planred repaymerts of the debt, intotal, over the comirg 2 monrths.

Deferred tax asset recoverability

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets s reviewed at each balanre sheek date and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probahie that sufficicnt taxable profit will be available to allow ail or part of the deferred income tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred income £3x assets are reassessed at each balance sheet date and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that Future taxable profit will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Scftware

Capitalised software costs are airortisad fram wher the -elevant software is ready and available for ase. This requires
judgement over when software has exited the testing phase and s normally determined by how many of the plarred Users have
been migrated to the rew platform. All costs relating to the ‘research phase of the software developmert cycle, together with
costs not separately ‘dentifiable and attributable to particular program develooment. are expensed directly to administrative
axpenses in the incame statement in the period in which they are incurred. Some software can be treated as "Software as a
service” and so expensed as the service is provided rather than capitalised on spend and amortised over the useful econamic tife.
The Croup assesses the treatmert of such software 0n a case-by-case basis with reference to facts .ncluding whether the rigrt to
rrarsfer the software to another platform ar to control the method of operation is within the cortrol of the Croup.

Post year ond disposal of Corestaff

The Directors have disposed of Corestaff to swinejobs Inc. a US private digital staffing cempany and consider this to 5e a post
balarce sheet event. Under (FRS 5. there are certair cr.teria chac are reguired to be met to allow 3 subsigiary to be considered
to he Held for Sale. The Directors ~ave corsidered the criteriz in IFRS 5 a3nd have roted that whilst some of these had beer met
at the year end the saie of Corestaff was net determined to be hignly probable until after the perioc end date. As such, the
Directors have consigerad that the transacticn did not meet the criteria of Heid for Sale in the financal pericd.

{i} Estimates

impairment of goodwill and other intanagible assets

The Croup determires whether goodwill ard otherirtangible assets are Dermarently impaired or ar arpual basis or otherwise
wher charges in everts or sitdations indicate that the carsying value may not be recoverable. This requires ar estimatior of
the recoverable amount of the cash-gereratirg Jrit to which the assets are allocated. Est:matirg the valde-ir-ase requires the
Group to make an estimate of the future cash Flows from the cash-generating urit and also to choose a suttable discount rate
in arder to calculate the zresent value of thase cash Flows. More details of the carrying value and impairment review incluging
sensitivities, are qiver ir notes *2 ard 13,

Legat provision

The Group meascres and reccgnises provisions related to pendirg ligation or other sutstanding claims subject to negoliatec
settlement, mediation and arbitration. A significant level of estimation is reguired to quantify the possible ranges of financial
settlement. Due to the inherent uncertainty n this evaluaticn process, actual losses may be different frarr the originally
estimated provsion (see note 20).

fegse inrerest races

The Crodp has estimated the interast rates impliicit ™ the lease wher calculating the lease liability and related rght-of-use
asset srder IFRS ~ 6 Leases. Urless stipulated clearly wher tak.rg or che liability, the Croup Jses an ircremmenrtal borrowing rate
calculation to determrire the relevarnt race. Consideration 1s taker over the term of the lease, the credit risk of the acguirer and
any specific msks relating to the assets acquirad by an individua! lease

C) Currencies and Foreign currency translation

The furctioral ard gresencatiornal carrercy of the Compary 3rd its LK subsidiaries 1s Pourd Sterting. Foreigr cperations
are ocated mairly in Notth Arrerica, Egroge, Australia ard New Zealard, wrich Jse their local cur-ercies as their
Functional currencies.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

SORTHE 22 wWEIKS THDED 31 DECIMBER 2001

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES CONTINUED

C) Currencies and foreign currency transilation cortinued

Or consolidation, at the reporting date, the assets and liabilities of the Croup's foreign operations are tiarslated into the
presentation currency of the Group at rates ruling on the balance sheet date. income and expense iterns are translated at
average exchange rates monthly during the reporting period, 35 this is considered a reasonable approximation to actual
trarsiatec rates.

The exchange differences ansing from this retransiation are recognised 'n the Consoldated Statement of Qther Comprehencive
ircome and accuralated to a foreigr currency translation reserve i equity.

Transackions in Foreign currencies are imibially recarded in the Functional currency using the rate of exchange ruling at the date
of the trarsactior. At each balance sheet date, monecary assets ard liabilities that are denominated i~ foreign carrencies are
retranslated at zhe rates prevailing on the balance shesat date All differences are taken to the income statement

Non-monetary items that are measurad in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rate
35 at the date of the iritial transactior. ror-monetary iterrs reasurad af fair salue in a foreigr car-ency are transiated using
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determired.

Exchange differsnces on manetary items receivable from ar payanite to a foreign operation for which settiernent is neither
planned nor likely tc occur, therefore forming part of the net investment in the foreign aperation and the tax charges and
credits attributable to the exchange differences on these Salances, are dealt with 'n the statement of comprenensive income
and accerruiated to a foreign carrercy trarslation reserve in eguity.

D) Property, plant and equipment

Property. 3tart and equipment 1s stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and ary impairmert . value, Historcal
cost inctuces expenditure trat is directly attribucable o tne acguisition of the items. Depreciation is calculated an
astraight-lire basis over the estimated useful (ife of the asset as follows:

Freebold property: over 50 years

Short easerold property Improvemenrts over the term of the lease

Furriture Fxtures and fittings: cetween three and ten years or to tre end of the lease whicheverss
shorter at the start of the asser’s life

Cormrputer sguipment: between two and five years

The residual value and estimated useful lives of assets are reviewed and adjusted if appropriate at 2ach balance sheet daze.
The zarryirg walue of property, plant arg equiprmrent is “aviewed for impairmert wher eve-ts or charges in Crcumstarces
irdicate that the carryirg walue may not be recoverable,

Anitem of properzy, plant and equiprrent s derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefics are expected

to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss anising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the ret disposal proceeds ard the carrying value of the itemiis included in the ‘rcome staterent ir the period the item
s derecogrised.

E) Coodwill
GCoodwill acquired 1n a business combination represents the excess of the consideraticn paid (at che date of exchange) over the
Fair value of the Identifiable assets, liabilities and cortingent tiabilities acguired on the date of acquisition

Accuisition-retated costs are expensed fe the income statement as incur-ed.

Coodwill is recogrised as ar asset 'r be corsohdated balance sheet of the Group ard s recorded at cost less any accumulsted
irparrment losses. The carrm,irg value of goodwill s reviewed forirmpairrert annaally or more frequertly sf everts or charges ir
croumstances indicate trac the carrying salue may be impaired. Apy impairment charge is recognised immediatey in the income
statemert ard s nok subsecguertly reversed.

For the purpose of impairmenrt testirg, goodwill acquired in 2 busiress compiration is, from the 3cquistion date. allocated to
each of the Group 5 cash-generating units thusiness segments) that is expected to benefit from the combination Each group of
cask-gereratirg snits to which tre goodwill s 3¢ sllccated represeris che lowest level within the Croup at which the goodwiit
is monitared For interral maragemenrt purposes. IIrpairment s decermired by assessing the recoverable amoart of the cash-
gererating unit to which tre goodwiil relates, where tne recoverable aroont of the cash-gereratirg unitis iess thar the
Carrylrg amoert, an irpalrmert oss is recogrised.
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F) Otherintangible assets

Other intangible assalts represent the carrying vailue of brands and chent relationships, identified on business combinations. and
of comrputer software and licences. Carrying value 1s equal to cost less accumulated amortisation ard impairment or, in the case of
assets acquired through busiress combirations, Fair value at date of acguisition wess accumutated amortisation and impairment.

Brand values

Brands are defined as having finite useful lives and the costs are amortised on a straight-line basis over the estimated ussful
lives of each of the assets iranging between three and twenty years). The exgense s taken o the inconie statement through the
depreciabion and amortisation’ ine willis admunistrative expenses.

Cient relationships

Client retationships are defined as having finite usefui iives and the costs are amortised on a straight-line basis over the
estimatced useful lives of each of the assets (ken years) The expense s taker to the income statement through the depraciation
and amortisation’ lire within administrative expenses.

Software

Externally acquired computer software and licences are capitalised at the ¢osts:ncurred to acquire and bring into use the
specific software, Internally generated computer software programs are capitalised to the exrent thar costs can be separarely
identified and atinbuted to particular software programs measured reliably and wnere the asset developed can be shown to
generate future economic berefits and the Croup intends to and has the techmical ability and suffcient rescurces to complete
development. Computer software and licences are defined as havipg finite useful lives and the costs are amortised i a straight-
line basis over the estimated Lseful lives of each of the assets, considered to be between three and five years. The expanse 1s
taken to the income statement through the 'dapreciation and amortisation’ line within administrative expensas.

Some software can be treated as "Software as a service ' and sc expensed as the service 's provided rather than capitalised on
spend ard amortsed over the gseful ecoromic (e, The Croup assesses the treatment of such software o0 a case-by-rase 2asis
with reference to factsincludirg whether the right to trarsfer the software to ancther platfarm ar to cortrol the metrod of
aperation is within the cortrol of the Croup.

All costsrelating to the research phase of the software development cycle, together with costs not separately :dentifiable and
attrebutable to particular program development. are expensed directly to administrative expenses in the income statemant n
the seriod im which chey are incurred.

impgirment

Allirtangible assets are also reviewed “or mpairment wherever there s ar indication that the carrying arrount may be -rpaired.
or where the assef s not yet available For use. Usafui lives are also examuned on an annual basis and adjustments, where
applicable, are made or 3 Drospective Hasis.

G) lmplementation costs

Costs directly attributable to the \mplementation of a ontract and which can be separately identified and measured reliably
are capitalised when income From thar contract is virtuatly certain and where they relate directly to the specific contract ard are
directly ircremmertal to tre implerrentation. These costs are included within trade ard cther receivables or the balarce sheet sc
long as the estimated Future cash Flows from the concract are not less than the capitalised amount. These capitatised costs are
amrorbised over tre life of the contract or a straighttire basis. If the cortract becomes toss-making, ary uramoriised costs are
written off immediately.

H) Financial assets

Fnancial assets are classified as frarcial assets at fair value through the sncome statement” financial assets at fair value
through other comprenensive income  or as ‘financial assets at amortised cost  as appropriate The Group decermines the
classification of its financial assets at initial recognition and where atlowed and appropriate, re-evaluates this designat.on at
each financiat period end. When Ainancral assets are recognised initially, they are measurad at fair value, eing the fransaction
orice plus i the case of financial assats nat at Fairvalue thraugh the incame statement, directly attributable trarsact-on casts.

D e 77
e
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

SORTHE 32 WEFKE -NRED 3 DECIMBER 20T

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES CONTINUED
H) Financial assets continued

investments

The Croup's investments are classified as held at Fair vaiue through the income statement. They are further classified as non-
current unless management expects to dispose of the investment within 12 menths of the balance sheet date.

These irvestrrents “elate to the deferred compersacior plar detalled ir rote 2{P) below, where the errployee’s eptitierment is
urrited to the market value of the fund, Or this Sasis, the Jse of fair valye rarnugh the incomre statercent s sermitted because ik
elimirates a measJromentincorsslercy (aceountirg rmismatch’) that would otherwise arise from measurnirg assets or labilities
of recognising the gains or iosses on them on a different basis. Subsequent to initial recognition these investments are held

at farr value the fair values are based upon bid prices ruling at the balance sheet date. Fair value adjustments are recognised
throuagh the ircome statemert.

f) Other non-current financial assets

Other non-current financial assets represent security deposits with non-financial institutions that have no fixed date of
repayment and that are not expected o be repaid within the next 12 months. On ininiat recognition these assets are held at cost
ard subseguently at arortised cost.

{mpairment
The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether 3 financial asset 1s impaired by reference to any known evidence
irdicatirg trat the Craup may not be able to callect all amourts due ip full.

JY Trade and other receivables

Trade recevables, which have sarious terms, are ronanterast-beanirg ard are recogrised and carried at fair value ard
subsequently measured at amrortised cost, bemng the criginal invoice amount fess an allowance for arcollectibte amounts, crecit
notes and expected credit icsses.

Supplier Finance Arrargerrerts (SFA) are stilised by the Croup. These arrangements, orgarised by ¢tients of the Croup, are
ror-recourse ard irrevocabie as the trade recervable has been soid to the retevart bank providing the SFA. Tne desigrated
trade receivable is duly derecogrised in accordance with IFRS S, with the associated cash paymert debitec to the Croup's casr
positior. The ytilisatior charge for drawirg dowr on the SFA s incladed rinterest costs and is recogrised rom the Zrawdownr
date ro cthe contractual payment term of the relevart trade receivable subject to the arrangement. Any other trade recenabies
relatad to those clients, which Fave pot been utilised for the SFA, reraim within trade receivables and wll oe paid wher due
under the client payment terms. The cashflows arising from the derecognition of trade recevables under the SFA arrangements
are treated as ‘moverrerts v Lrade ard other receivables ard therefore form part of ‘cash from operatiors’.

The Group applies the IFRS § simpiified approach to measuring expected credit losses using a Lfetime expected cradit loss
provision for trade ~ecewables and contract assers. To measure expected credit losses on a collective basis. trade receivables
and contract assets are grouped based or similar cradit nisk ard ageirg. The contract assets have similar nsk characteristics to
the trade recewables For similar rypes of contracts. The expected loss provision is pased on the Croup's expectation of future
credit losses over the current receivables balance. These expectations are based upen knowr 1ssues affecting specific debrors as
well as general forward-looking informarion on factors affecting the Sroup’s customers as a whole, as well as an awareness of
the economic corditions in the courtries where the Croup operates These risk factars are corsidered bath or initiat recogniticnr
of “he recewable and as part of the ongoing assessment. If there has been a significant incrzase m the credit fisk since the instial
recognitior then ar rereased loss orovsior is recogmised,

Trade and ciber receivabies also ‘nclude cortract assets which primanily arise either as costs incurred when impiemerting a rew
cortract of where services have been provided but the arountincurrad and margin earned kas yet to be irvoicad to the cliert
due totiming of the corrpletion of the performarce obligatior and are considered cortract assets fer disclosures required
Jnder IFRS 15 reverae from cortracts with customers.

K} Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and sboit term deposits in the consolidated batance sheet comprise cash at bark and e bard arg shart-terr depaosits with
an original matunty of three manths o7 less. For the purpose of the consondated cash Flow statement. cash and cash equivalents
consist of cash and short-term deposits as defined above. BAZs and sirmifar electronic cash transfers are recognised or a
settlement basis. Bank overdrafts are used as a form of short term finanang arrangement for the Sroup and are shown within
trade and other payables on the consolidated balance sheet and disclosed as a fimancing activity en the censolidated statements
of cash flows.

P3gs_ T3
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L) Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables are classified as financial liabilities and measured st amortised cast which approximates to the fair
value. The balances are not irterest-bearing.

M) Taxes

Current Eax

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior perods are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from
oroaid 1o the taxation authorities. The tax rates and the tax laws used ro cormpute the amounl d1e those that are enacted or
sugsrartively enacted by the Latance sheet date.

Deferred tax

Deferred income tax s provided, using the liability method. on temporary differences at the balance sheet date between the
tax bases of assets and liabnlities and their carrying amounts for financal reporting purposes. Deferred incorme tax ilabilities are
recogrused for all taxable temporary differences, except:

+  where the deferrad income tax liapibty arises from the initial recogrition of goodwill or of an asset or tiability in a transachion
that 1s not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit
or loss; and

+ in-espect of taxabie temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries. where the timing of the reversal
of the ternporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
Foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax asseks are recognised on an undiscounted basis for ali deductible temporary differences, carry-forward of
unusad tax ¢redits and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxacle profit will be availaple against which the
deduckible temporary differences and the carry-forward of unused rax credits and unused rax losses can be chilised exceph:

+ where the deferred income tax asset relating to the deductibie temporary difference arises from the imitiat recogmition of
an asset or Liability .natransaction that is net a business combination and. at the time of the transaction, affects nerther the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or iess; and

+ nrespect of deductible *femporary differences associated with investments in subsidianes, deferred tax assets are
recognisad anly to the extent that it s probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and
raxable profit will be available against which the tempaorary differences can be utilised.

Deferred :ncome tax assets and liabilibies are measured at the tax rates that are expected te apply t6 the perod when the
asset s realised or the labnity is settied, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substansively enacted

at the batance sheet date. Income tax relating to ikterns recogrised directly in equity is “ecognised .n equity ard not in the
income statement. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabdities and the deferrad taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority,

Deferred rax iabilities are ~ot recognised on unremitted earmings from subsidiaries where the Group can control the timing of
the reversat and the temporary difference is not expected to reverse in the Foreseeable future.

Sales taxes
Revenues, expensas and assets are recognised net of the amount of sales tax except:

+  where the sales rax incurred on a purchase of goods or services of assets Is not recoveratie from the raxation authorsty
0 which case the sales *ax is recognised as part of the zost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item as
applicable  and

- recewvables and payables that are stated with the amount of sales tax includea.

The net amount of sales tax recoverable from, or payable to. the taxation authority is .ncluded as part of receivatles or payables
ir the balarce sheet.

N) Provisions )

Provisions, sech as those over property or ongoirg iegal cases, are recognised wher the Croup bas 3 presert legal or constractive
obligation as a rasuit of past events it s rrore likely than not that an cutflow of resources will be raquired £o settls the obligation'
ard the amount bas been reliably estimrated.

If the effect of the time value of money 1s material, provisions are determirec by discounting the expected future cash flows at
a pre-tax raie that reflects current market assessmernts of the time value of money When discounting 1s used, the in¢crease in the
prowision Jue to the passage of time 1s recogn sed as an interast expense in the income statement.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES CONTINUED

N) Provisions continued

As part of the normal course of business the Group 1s exposed to various claims, Provisions are made for amounts that satisfy
‘the recognition criteria ir 1AS 37 ard accordingly are not recognised when the lkelibood of any claim beirg settled and the
associated settlement amourt carnot be estimated.

O) Financiat liabilities

Financial liabiliies are classified on initial recognition as either financal liakitities at Fair value through the income statement’ or
'at amortised cost’. All Group buttowirgs have initially been recogrised as '3t armortised cost’ and measured at fair value

of the corsideration received less directly attributable issue costs.

Afceriritial recogritior, interest-beanng borrowings are subsequently measdred at amortised cost. This cost s compated

as the amount initially recognised minus principat repayments plus or minus the cumulative amortisation using the effective
incerest rate method of any difference batween the initially recognised amount and the maturity amount. Amortised cost

is calcalated by taking into account any issue <osts, ard ary discount ar premium on settlemert.

Cairs ard losses are reccgrised 0 the income staterent when the liabilities are derecogrised as well as through tre
amortsation process,

A financial uapility is derecogrised when the obligaticn under the {iability is discharged, cancelled or expires.

P) Employee benefits

Short-term benefits — benus arrangements

The Crode operates a ~umber of arnual bonus arrargerrerts for Directors and employees. The cost of these arrangemrerts is
recognised e the income statement when the ertity has ar obligator to make such paymerts as a result of the achieverrent of
Board-approved performarce targets apd wher 3 reliapie estirate of this obligatior car be made.

Defined contribution pension obligations

The Group provides pensicn arrangements for its UK-based Directors and employees through defined conenbution schemes
admiristered by third party providers. The Growp has no further payrrert shligatiors orce the contributiors Have beer made,
Contribution ¢osts are expensed 2o the income statement as they become dus.

Other post-employment obligations

ir the US the Croup operates a deferred comrpensation plar for certair key employees. 7he plan allows the employee to defer
recelpt of 3 porticr of therr emoluments together with, ir sore cases, a cortribution from the Croup The deferred amounts
plus the Croup cortnibution are pard nto an external trust fund. Employees entitlement is limited e the narcet vatue of

the fund; therefore toth the investment and the liability to the employee are marked to market on ar annual basis, with
movements passing through the administracive expenses line (salaries and wages) in the incorne statemnert.

Q) Leases
All leases are accounted for by recognising a right-of-use asset and a tease liabitity except for leases of low-value assets and
ieases with an expected Full term of 12 months or less

Lease labilities are mmeascred at the present value of the wrpaid contractual paymerts over the recognised lease term, with
the discount rate determined by refererce to the cate irherert in the tease urless ‘as is typically the case this s rot reagily
derermirable, in which case the Croup's incremerta borrowing rate ar commencement of the {ease is used.

On nitial recogninicen, the carrying vatue of the lease Lability also includes amounts expected to te payable under any residual
valee guarantee: the exercise prce of apy purchase optron granted in favour of the Group if 1t 1s reascnably certain to exercise
that optior: and any peralties payable for terminating the lease If the term of zhe lease has been estimated on the basis of the
terminatior oprign being sxercised.

Right-of-use assets are iritially measared at che amaunt of the lease liability, redaced For ary lease ircertives recer.ed, ard
roreased Forlease payments made st or before cormmercement of the lease ard initial direct costs incurred. Subseguent 2o
initial measurerert, lease labilities increase as a resalt of interest charged at a constart rate on the balance outstarding erd
are reduced for 'ease payments made. Rignt-of-use assets are arartised ar a straight-line 5asis over the remairieg term of the
lease or over the remaining 2coromic life of the asses of this s judged to be shorter than the lease term.
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When the Group rewvises its estimate of the term of any lease. it adjusks the carrying amount of the lease liability to reflect the
paymerts to make aver the revised term, which are discourted at a revised discourt rate that is implicit in the lease for the
remainder of the lease term. The carrying value of lease liabilities 1s sirrilarly revised if any variable elernent of future lease
payments dependent on a rate or index is revised In both cases, an equivalent adjustment is made to the carrying value of the
right-of-use asset, with the revised carryirg amourt being amaortised gver the remairing lease ferm.

whep the Group reregotiates the contractual terms of a lease with the lessor, the accounting deperds on the nature of the
modification. IF the remegetiation results in one or more additional assets being leased Far an amecunt simidan Lo the standalone
price for the additional rights-of use cbtaiied, the modihication is accounted for as a separate lease In accordance with the
above policy. In all other cases where the renegotiation increases the scope of the lease {whether that 1s an extension to the
lease term, or ore or more additional assets beirg leased), the lease liatality is remeasured Jsing the discount rate applicable

on the modification date, with the right-of-use asset being adjusted by the same amount. if the renegotiation results in 2
decrease ir the scope of the tease, both the carryirg amount of the lease liability ard right-of-use asset are reduced by the sare
proportion to reflect the partiat or Fuil termination of the lease with any difference recognised n profit or loss. The lease liabdlity
s then further adjusted te ensure the carrying amount reflects the amount of the renegotiated payments over the renegotiated
tarm, with the modified lease payments discounted st the rate applicatle on the modification date. The right-of- use asset s
adjusted by the same amount.

Right-of-use assets are reviewed requiarly to ensure that the useful ecoromic life of the assetis still appropnate based or he
asage of the assern, Where the asset has reduced i vatue the Croup considers the situatior or ar asset-by-asset basis and either
treats the reductior as ar acceleratior of depreciation or as ar impairmert urder 1AS 36 Impairrent of Assets. An acceleration
of denreciatior accars ir those cases where there is no opporturity or irtertion to utilise the asset befare the end of the fease.
An impairmeant s recognised in those few cases where the current value-in-use of the asset is significantly less than the carrying
arnguht and there is no intention or oppartunity krowr of that mitigates thisimpairmert.

Far contracts that beth convey a right to the Croup to use anidentified asset and require services to be orovided to the Croup
by the lessor, the Croup has elected to accourt for the entire corcract 35 a lease.

Where the Group acts as a lessor by sut-letting specific ieases, each such lease 1s classed eitner as 3 finance lease f the sub-let
trarsfers schstantially all the risks and rewards of the arderlying asset to the lessee, of an operating lease If not. The Srouo
erdeavolrs Lo ensare that ary sub-lease covers the full rerrairing term of the tease.

o~

Where the Sroup "ecognises an asset from a finance lease such asset replaces the <'ght-of-use asset ansing from the nead lease
ard s recorded as a receivable called ret ipvestment in the iease. Subsequent toirifiai measurerrent, the net .pvestmert in the
lease ircreases as a resuit of interest charged at a constart rate on the balance outstardirg and s redaced for lease payments
made. These assets are reviewed for recoverability Lsing the simplified arrangerrents under the expected credit loss model
creating a lifetime expected credit loss provision.

Wwhers the Group recogrises ar operating lease, lease paymerts received are treated as incomre or 3 straight-iine basis.

R) Revenue

Revenue derived from temporary staffing services « recognised and accrued by reference to hours worked {representing the
service pravided in accordance with submitted authorised timesheets ard pre-agreed charge rates twhich include an elemert
of salary and related cosks) which are together gsed Lo determire the trarsaction price. This appies both wher there s 3 direct
supply as wetl as wher there is supply of a maraged service to the cliert, as the timirg of performarce obligatiors and the
raising of invaices car vary, Timesnests are submitted mainty or a weekly basis, with a umrited number being submitled edber
daily or menthly, s0 any varable aspect of contract assets is limited due to the financ.al periad finsming at the end of 3 week.

The CroJg assesses whether tis actirg as agent or pringipal depending or whether the cliert ras a direct relatorship with the
Croup, whether the Crogp has the primary resporsibiiity for providing the services and wirether the Group has control of or
poids tre inventary fisk aver the worker olaced.

where tre Croup acts as a principal in the supply revenue s recognised as the gross amount due net of applicable sales taxes, rebates
and 2scourts and after elimirating sales made withie the Croup. Where the Croup provides a service ir which it acts as agerc for the
cliert. ire amaurt of revanae recogrised s lirmitea to the maragement fee receivable “or trat service after making provisior For any
losses foreseen, valume rebates ard any other amourts payable rather thar the full amountinvoiced. Trade receivables and payables
retated o these sales are recorded at Full irvoice value. The Croup does corduct business on both a prircipal ard ar agert oasis ana
sach rew cortract is reviewed to identfy the mrost appropnate oasis. Most segments withir the Croup act 3s oeircpals as they Fave
the primary relationship wikh the werker placed and can control when and where they are claced. The examples of the agert-basis
reiztionship are ali found . the Clobal Maraged Services segment, These cortracts tave secordary relaticrships with the

Fage T
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES CONTINUED

R) Revenye cortirued

workers placed and act more as intermediaries For providing services regarding administerirg ard processing rakher thar sourcing
the individual workers. The cortractual obligations around both the billing of clients and payments to suppliers in these cases also
hightight the lack of control over the specific service provided and so remnforces the recognition of revenue on an agent basis,

Revenue derived from permanent placements is recognised ard accrued wher the ermploymert of the imdividual commences
with orovisior made For potertial refunds which can be payabie if the placemert is terminatred wathir 3 set pened raisging from
14 to 100 days. Revenue recognised from a permianent lacement uses a fransaction price typicatly based on a percentage of
the cardidate's remaneration package and is recognised whenr the candidate cormmenrces work with tne cliert, whick 15 the orly
performance abligatior and poirt at which cortrol was transferred involved in the supply.

For revenue derved from both temporary staffing and permanent placements, paymert s due following the completion of

the perforrmarce obligatiors and ar agreed peried of credit deperdert on the agreed cortract with the cliert. Other revenye,
meluding fees recewved For one-off services which are not dependent on hours worked or placed workers, is recognised when all
parties agree the relevant performance obligations have been performed. Interest income receivanle on deposits with financial
institatiors is recogrised or ar accrued basis, Cortract liapiities are recogrised when an invoice kas been raised ir advarce of
the service provisior discussed above.

S) 8orrowing costs
Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense when incurred unless they are qualifying assets under |AS 23 Borrowing costs
wher they are capitalised.

T) Equity instruments
The Ordinary shares issued by the Company are :lassified as equity. They are recorded as the proceeds raceived net of direct
ISSUe COSTS.

Where ary Croup cempanry purchases the Company's equity irstramert (treasury shares;. the corsideratior paid. 'rcludirg ary
directly attrutable incremental costs inet of taxes) s deducred from equity attnbutabie to the Company’s equity sha“ehotders,
LJntil tre shares are cancelled or ressaea. Upor carceliation, a reserve equal to the ~omiral value of the shares s fransferren
from ~etaired earrings ‘rio a caotal rederrprior reserve.

U) Retained earnings
Reraired earnirgs represents all ather ~ef gairs and iosses and trarsachions with owners which are nat recogrised elsewhere.

V) Dividend distribution policy
Dvidend distributions o the Company's shareholders are recognised as an expense in the Group financial statements in the
penod in which the dividerds are paid or approved by the Compary's shareholders.

W) Government grants

Covernment grants are recognised against expenses n the periad in whicn they are ntended te compensate. Grants are only
recogrised when there s reasorable asscrance that any conditiors attached to the grant will be complied with ard that the
grart will be received.

3. SEGMENT INFORMATION
The Zroup s "eporting under 1FRS 8 Operating Segments which requires that the Group firstly

« dentifies its Chief Cperating Decision Maker 'CODMY), which has currently been assessed as the Croup Chief Executive
Officer who. aiorg wich the ‘Leadership Team'. reviews the Group s internal reporting in order 7o assess performance and
aliccate resources; and secordly

« oy reference ko the infarration supplied to the CODM, identify its operating segmerts ard, from these, idercify its
reportabie ségments,

The CODM discusses performance with management of the following reportable segments on arevenue and gross prefit
basis only

+ Tlobal Managed Services

. T

+  Regonal Specialist Staffing
= Healthcare

~sue 22
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There is a change ir segmental analysis from the prior year as Global Talent Acquisition and Maraged warkforce Solutions
changed its name to Clobal Managed Services, and Clobal Specialist Staffing was removed in Favour of STEM to better reflect the
management structures. The new STEM sector inciudes most of what was in Global Speciaust Staffing. an element of Regional
Speciaiist Staffing as well as some other elements transferning to and from the other segments. The prior year segrmental
reporting has been restated oo incorporate these charges.

The CODM does not review halarce sheet reports in detail by segrrert, oriy ir torat For the Group. As such, no .rformatior

relatirg to assets and uabilities o & seqmentat basis bas beer presentaed.
Revenue Gross profit

o o o e £m €m
31 December 2021

Global Maraged Services 838.7 79.2
STEM 759.6 81.8
Regional Specialist Staffing 430.7 62.3
Healthcare 295.3 43.7
Inter-segrrent reverues (61.9) -
Cperating segments 2,262.4 267.0
desfabe h _) -
1 January 2021

Ciobal Managed Services 7458 714
STEM 72,2 657
Regional Specialist Staffing 356 4 458
Healthcare 2373 41.8
Irter-segmenrt revendes (44.8) -
Qperating segments 2.50089 228

The CODM also discusses perfarmance with maragerrert of the foliowing geographbic segments plus an aliccatior of sharec
costs and corporate costs:

« JK & EJrope
North Arrerica
- Asia Paafic

Adjusted
operating
Revenue Gross profit profit
. I —_——— B

31 December 2021
UK & Europe 1,741.4 172.5 24.5
North America 456.3 76.5 1041
Asia Pacific 64.7 18.0 2.2
Operating segments 2,262.4 267.0 36.8

Sg LA
1 January 2021
UK & Europe ,333.5 ac’y 2.
North America 401.5 05 13.4
Asia Pacific 52.9 6.9 TR
Operating segments 2.000.5 228 233
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3. SEGMENT INFORMATION CONTINUED
Reconciliation of segment adjusted operating profit te profic from continuing eperations is as follows:

31 December

2021 e
o o N 1. S
Segment adjusted operating profit 36.8 233
Cornorate costs (7.5) 5.
Adjisted operating profil 29.3 "R.2
Arrortisation of brard value ard custamer relatiorships {note * 3) (9.8) 1100
impairment of goodwill (note 12} - ("6.5)
Impairment of irtangible assets (rote "3 - {(5.6)
Operating profit/{ioss) from continuing operations 19.5 {15.0)
Finarce iIncome (rote &) 0.2 0.3
Finance expense {note 7} (4.3) (5.7]
Tax charge (note 8; {7.1) .0
Profit/(loss) For the year 8.3 (21.4)

Whers the Group places workers between operatioral segmerts, the relevart segrrents each record the gross revenue for
placing the worker on an arm's-iength basis. An adjustrent has been made to remove the impact of inter-segment revenues

from the Croup "esuits.

The Zroup has adopted adjusted operating orofit as its Alkernative Performance Measure to include depreciatior and
amortisation of assets but excluding amortisation of acquired intangibles.

Adjusted operating profitis not defined by IFRS and therefors may not be directly comparable with other companies alternative

profit measures. Itis not intended to be a substitute, or superior to IFRS measurements of profit.

iFRS * 5 requires entities to disaggregare revenue recegnised from cortracts with customers irto retevart categornies trat depict
how the nature amount and cash flows are affected by 2conomic factors. As a result, we consider the following information to

be relevart:

Glabai Regional

Managed Speciatist Inter-segment

Services STEM ° Staffing Healthcare revenues Total
e e Em m____ fM 0w _Em_ Em
Primary geographic markets
UK & Europe 650.9 572.9 332.7 246.8 (61.9) 1,741.4
North America 171.6 186.7 98.0 - - 456.3
Australasia 16.2 - - 48.5 - 64.7
Total 838.7 759.6 430.7 295.3 (61.9) 773,727672:57
Major service lines
Temporary placemerts 828.5 728.4 421.6 286.4 (61.9}) 2,203.0
Permranent placemrerts 3.4 20.3 9.1 8.0 - 40.8
Other 6.8 10.9 - 0.9 - 18.6
Total 838.7 759.6 430.7 295.3 (61.9) 2,262.4
Timing of revenue recognition
Serace rransfec-ed 3t a pointin time 838.7 759.6 430.7 295.3 (61.9) 2,262.4
Total 838.7 759.6 430.7 295.3 (61.9) 2,262.4

Page 34
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+ rler-esinerl

“ethated 3er ILes aizhd —ealts e ST=Ib R Yozl

SUBLES . J - L
Primary geographic markets
UK & Europe 597.2 524.7 284.G EA:] 44.8) ©.539.5
Nofth Armerica 14z 2 "87.5 7.8 - - 401.5
Agstralasia 6.4 - - 53.5 - 59.9
Total 7458 2.2 356.4 231.3 (44 .8} 2,0009
Major service lines
Temporary placements 738.2 697.3 3506 224 8 (448} Y9863
Permarert placements 2.7 3.1 49 6.0 - 22.7
Other 4.9 2.6 0.9 0.5 - 3
Total 745.8 722 356.4 23°.3 448 20009
Timing of revenue recognition
Service trarsferred at a poirtin time 745 8 722 356.4 233 (44 8) 2.0009
Total 745.8 722 356.4 2373 44.8) 2.000.9
The revenye information apove is based on lacation of the Croup ertity directly iwvolved in tre supply.
4. OPERATING PROFIT/(LOSS)
a) Operating profit/(loss) has been arrived at after charging:

31 December T atenT.
2021 .

- - o £m_________
Cepreciation of property, plart ard equiprrent inofe "0} 2.4 2.3
Amornsation of right-of-use assets {rote * " 7.0 G35
Amortisation of irtangible assers inote ! 3) 15.1 TE
Irpairmert of goodwill irote *2; - 66
Impairnert of \ntangble assets .rote * 33 - 5.5
Profit on disposal of fixed assets (0.2) o2
Minimum lease payments recognised as an operating lease expense fnate 11} 0.7 0.3
Charge for bad erd doubtfut trade receivables {note 7 5 3.3 316

Operating profit s stated net of £0.5m {2020 €7 4m) income recewved from governments globally in respect of varicus support

schemes followirg the Covid-19 panderric,

b) Auditor’s remuneration

Foes payable to the Auditer for the audit of the Group’s annual Financial sratements
Fees payatle to the Group's auditor and ther asscriates for other services:
The audit of the Compary’s subsidiaries pursaart Lo legislatior

Total

31 December Tl
2021 ol
- Em T
0.3 0.3
0.9 0.8
1.2

Pge ou
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5. EMPLOYMENT COSTS

a) Employees (including Directors) whose costs are included in administrative expenses
Costs of employment

31 Decembaer ST T

2021
£m -
Wages, salaries and boruses 157.5 134.3
Social security costs 14.4 ‘22
Expenses related to defined contribution plan 2.9 34
Total 174.8 1499

Maonthly average number of employees

31 December

2021
I o o - - L riumt??r ke
UK & Europe 1,894
North America 623
Asia Pacific 179
Corporate staff (:ncluding Directors) 1
Total 2,707 2,743

The tatle above nciudes a monthly average of zero staff who were placed on furleugh durnng the period 120620: 262 staff;. "he
year end number of seaff was 2,900 {2020: 2 300

b) Employees whose costs are included in cost of sales
in addition to the above, the Croup employs some of the staff who are supplied to clients and wnose costs are partafthe
Croup's cost of sales,

Costs of employment

31 December LT

2021

. S M .
Wages, salaries ard boruses 620.3 s57.4
Social security costs 48.8 451
Expenses related o defined contnbution plan 3.0 2.3
Total 6721 599.82

The costs above are ner of government grants -n respect o ;ob support schemes that have been administered for staff supplied
o clierts.

Menthly average number of employees

31 December Laiiar

2021 e
- ) . Number_ Sonibe )
UK & Europe 15,070 270
MNorth Arcerica 6,694 5,474
Asia Pacific 559 353
Totat 22,323 18,544
¢} Information on Directors remuneration
The total erclumenrts for ai Directors durirg the perod were:
31 December TLEmLI,
2021 P
o - ) - ) B £m 3
Ermoluments fincluding benefits} 2,053 102
Contribution to defined contrnbution pension pians 92 9"
2,145 93
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Total emoluments:

Salary and Pension Total fixed Deferred Total
benefits contributions costs Bonus bonus Total variable emoluments
31 December 2021 £000 €000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Lard M Asheroft 50 - 50 - - - 50
J Robertsor 477 68 545 345 233 578 1,123
[ Briant 314 24 338 270 195 465 803
AR Ertwistle 40 - 40 - - - 40
ME Ertlicg 49 - 49 - - - 49
Ml aune 40 - 40 - - - 40
Barcness T Stoweldl 40 - 40 - - - 40
Total 1,010 92 1,102 615 428 1,043 2,145
Jap e T.ta SeaT 1
Srink sis dos Toizl sansclz LAEI IRt Al

jariar, 25e” SO S P [ R L
Lord M Asbcroft a6 - 46 . _ _ 45
J Rabertsor 454 68 522 a0 - 90 62
T Briart 275 23 268 55 28 53 38"
AE Ertwistle 38 - 38 - - - 38
ME Ettlirg 40 - a5 - - - 40
M Laune ' 38 - 38 - - - 38
Barorness T Stowedl 38 - 38 - - - 38
Total 329 N 1,020 145 28 "73 " 193

All pension payments relate to defined contribution schernes,

The total emowments For J Robertson and T 8riant inciude benefits, both non-cash and cash, to the value of £95 C00 (2020:
£95 300) and £37 000 (20201 £36,000) respecrively, The £40.0001202C £38.0C0) pad for the services of Az Entwistle as a Non-
Execubive Director s paid to Deacon Street Partrers Limited. The £49.00C {2020: £40,0C0) paid for the services of ME Ettling as
a Nor-Exacutive Director s paid directly to ME £tthing. No Director has been in receint of either 3 loan from the Group or a long-
rerrincertive plan ir the current or prior periods.

6. TOTAL FINANCE INCOME

2021
L Em___
Bank interesi receivable 0.1 0.2
Interest on tease debtors 0.1 a-
Total finance income 0.2 0.3
7. TOTAL FINANCE EXPENSE

31 December Ll sy
2021 32

el o fEm
Rewcivirg credit facilities 3.4 4.4
Lease irterest payable 0.6 08
Urwirc discodrt on previsions 0.2 03
Cther .nterest expense 0.1 02
Total finance expense 4.3 5.7

Faga 37
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8. TAXATION
a) Tax charge in the income statement
31 December CJarezr,
2021 ESFL
- £m
Current income tax
UK corporaticn tax on results for the period 2.8 08
Adjustrments in respect of previous periods (0.5} (0.9
2.3 Ry
Forewgn tax in the period 1.6 2
Adjustments in respect of previous periods - 0.8%
Total current income tax 3.9 12
Deferred tax charge/{credit) 3.2 0.23
Total tax charge in the income statement 7.1 1.0
The deferred tax credit comprises the following:
3t Dacember TlarLa,
2021 =
£m o e
Urilisation of tax losses brought Farward 2.0 5.4
Recogritior of assets ~ot previously reccgnised (0.9) -
Origination and reversal of other temporary differances (1.5) (7.5
Change in tax rate used For deferred tax carried Farward 31 1.5
Adjustment in respect of previous periods 0.5 0.4
Total deferred tax charge/(credit) {(note 21) 3.2 0.2

b} Reconciliation of the total tax charge

“he standard rate of Corporation Tax in the Uk 15 19%. Accordingly the Group s result from this perod s taxed at an effective
rate of 19.0% 1202C: 12.0%) The tax charge For the period is £7 'm (2620 £1.0m) For the Croup A tax reconciliation explaining
differences from the expected statutory rate s summarnised below:

31 December MUY

2021 i

%
Tax charge at UK standaro rate 19.0 19,0
Differences .ntax rates in other countries 0.9 (1.2)
iincome}/expenses not taxable/atlowabie in determining taxable profits 9.6 (22.8)
Losses ir period carried forward byt not recogrised as assers 0.9 Y2
Utilisation of losses rot previously recogrised inote 2°) (4.8)
Change 10 tax rate used for deferred tax carried forward 20.2 7.7
Ag¢justments to deferred tax in respect of previous oerods 3.5 8
Adjustments e respect of previous periods (3.5} 8.4
Effective total tax rate 45.8 4.9)

Income not taxable in determining taxabie profits is comprised of various adjustments in respect of items not freated as taxable
urder local tax rules tsuch as non-deductible interest and capital costs i administrative expenses) plus expenses praviously
acded back as non-deductitle being treatad as allowed For tax.

Adjustrnents in respect of previous pernods fcurrent and deferrad; anise as a resolt of 3 reduction ir non-tax-deductible expenses
and esomated timung differences in the prior year filed fax returns See note 27 For an explanation of geferred tax balances

= = 24
aye_ 28
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Factors affecting tax chargesin future periods

The Fimance Act 2021 was substantively enacted on 24 May 2021 and included the increase to the UK corporation tax rate from
16% to 25% effective from 1 April 2023, As such, UK deferred tax balances that are Forecast to unwind after 1 April 2023 have
been re-measurad and recognised at 25%. The most significant impact has been to the deferred tax liability carried on intangible
assets. Based on the current net bock value of intangible assets and the related expected Future amortisation charge to 1 April
2023, the deferred tax liabiity has increased by approximately £2.5m.

9. EARNINGS PER SHARE
Basic earnings per sharc ameunls a1 e catculzted by dividing the profic for the pericd attributable to the owners of the Company
by the weighted average nurrher of Ordirary shares cutstanding during the period.

Diluted earnings per share amounts are calculated on the same basis but after adjusting the denaminator for the effects of
dilutive options. The anly ditutive effect relates to 19 841 shares owned by The Corporate Services Group Ltd Employee Share
Trust which hold the shares remaining after vanious historic option ptans lapsed. Excluding these shares, the weighted average
number of shares in 20211is 45,538,563 {202C: 46,208.380) and =he fully ailuted average numbper of shares 1s 45 558,8C4
(2020 46 228 221). The calculations of both basic and diluted earnings per share ('EPS') are based upon the folowing
consolidated income statemenrt data:

31 December Toarns
2021

il el . B
2rofit/lloss) For the period 8.3 21.4)
impairmert of goodwill - ‘6.6
Impairment of other intangible assets (net of tax) - 4.5
Acquired .ntangibles amertisation {met of tax) 1.7 3.6
Total adjusted profit for the period 16.0 8.3

EPS - basic calculation
31 December
2021

Total unadjusted basic earmings per share 18.3
Impairmenrt of goodwiil -
Impairment of other sntangible assets (net of tax) -

Customer relationsnip and crand amortisat:on (net of tax) 17.0
Adjusted basic earnings per share 35.3
CoAddteri el Tosse sta zo.arcs oave see awsenred ¢ooge LoSronwele STerar ot 4 tte tdet, tgse oo md e ol Dhednun Sefore
Msd o et at Jrora Loand 375 T2 asaeTI AN 1T 3T0M Sa0 ¢ BT DLRLIME T e JT S 5T D331 R s
EPS - diluted calculation
31 December SEPLALL
2021
Pence Senee
Total unadjusted diluted earnings zer snare 18.3 {46.2)
impairment of goodwill - 360
Impairment of othe intangible assets (net of tax) - 38
Customer relationship and Srand amaortisation net of tax) 16.9 8.6
Adjusted diluted earnings per share’ 35.2 8.2

Dage Hy
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10. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Ceshcls Srertleassred —ompter

Lrocefts DropRert, g quigeert Tala
Net carrying value ~ 4 January 2020 0.2 1.3 34 1.7 6.6
Cost -4 January 2020 0.2 28 79 6.5 17.4
Additions - 0.2 0o c.a 1.2
Disposals - 0. e (1.8} 2.7
Fareign exchange - 0.1 - 0. G.2
Cost - 1 January 2021 0.2 30 7.3 5.4 6
Accumulated depreciation - 4 January 2020 - 1.5 4.5 4.8 0.8
Charge for the period _ 0.4 3 11 53
Disposais - 0.1 .03 (*.6] 2.7
Foreign exchange - G- - - 0.0
Accumulated depreciation - 1 January 2021 - ] 4.8 43 1.0
Net carrying value - 1 January 2021 0.2 11 2.7 * 51
Cost - 2 January 2021 0.2 3.0 1.5 5.4 16.1
Additions - 0.2 0.1 1.2 1.5
Disposals - - {0.9) {(1.7) (2.6)
“oreign exchange - - - 0.1 01
Cost - 31 December 2021 0.2 3.2 6.7 5.0 151
Accumulated depreciation - 2 January 2021 - 1.9 4.8 4.3 11.0
Charge for the perog - 0.5 11 0.8 2.4
Cisposals - - (0.9) {1.7} (2.6)
Fereign exchange - ' - - 0.1 0.1
Accumulated depreciation - 31 December 2021 - 2.4 5.0 3.5 10.9
Net carrying value — 31 December 2021 0.2 0.8 1.7 1.5 4.2

Inciuded in computer equipment are assets with net carrying value of £6.1m (2020: £0.2m) neld urder a finance lease.
Depreciaticn of £0.1m (2C20: £0.1m) was charged on these assets.

11. LEASES

During the period the Croup accounced Far 125 leased properties (2020: 149) under IFRS 16 across the junisdictions in which

It aperates. In same jurisdictions it is customary for lease cantracts to provide for payments to :ncrease each year by inflation

ar at a fixed rate and 1n others to be reset periodically to market rental rates, whilstin others the pericdic rent s fixed over the
lease term. Some leases have prowisions for early termination (see lease end dates judgements 2(B)i). The Croup also ‘eased 99
vehicles (2020: 125] all of which have a fixed lease fee over the term. The weighted average incremental borrowing rate used to
calculate the lease liabilicy was 2.96% 12020 2.80%).

Ofthe " 25 property legses accourted for srder !FRS "6 durirg the period, " 2% recognised Futare Jpliftsin rert (2020: 10%).
Should tne tease payments on these increase by 5% there could be a result:ng increase in tre right-of-use asset of £0.2m.

Durirg the period, three leases which were sub-let ir ther entirety vere assigred to the oCCepying tenanrt. As 3 resull, there was
an egual and 2ppOosite reduction ir both the legse recevable ard the lease lability positions of the Craup. The last property tre
Croup sub-tet reached the cermiration date during the period and corseguertiaily the Croup bas ro lease receivable at the end
of the period.
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Right-of-use assets

_araard

cuddings Ll et e
Net carrylng value - 3_Eanuary_2020 7 26.6 1.0 276
Cost -4 January 2020 349 1.4 36.3
Additions 5.0 - 5.0
Disposals 14.6) (0.2 14.8)
FTorsign exchange - - -
Cost— 3 January 2021 35.3 2 365
Accumulated deprecuatlon 4 January 2020 8.3 04 7
Charge for the period 3.9 6 9.5
Disposals (2.8 0.2 (3.0
Foreign exchange _ _ -
Accumulated dEDI'ECIEthﬂ—'l January 2021 14.4 0.8 5.2
Net carrymg value -1 January 2021 20.9 0.4 21.3
Cost -2 January 2021 35.3 1.2 36.5
Additions 0.5 - 0.5
Rerreasurerment 1.5 - 1.5
Disposals (4.0} (0.5) (4.5)
rorergw exchange {0.2) {0.1) {0. 3)
Cost - 31 December 2021 331 0.6 33.7
Accumulated depreciation - 2 January 2021 14.4 0.8 15.2
Charge for the period 6.7 0.3 7.0
Disposals (3.8} (0.5) {4.3)
Foregn exchange (0.1) - (0.1)
Accumulated depreclation 31 December 2021 17.2 0.6 17.8
Net carrying vaiue - 31 December 2021 15.9 - 15.9
Lease receivables

= 5r\\l\.:: - i T
Net carryrng value -3 January 20207777 - 7.3 - 3
Ad@ tiors 1.4 - T4
Irterest a3 - 0.1
Receipts (32} - 3.2}
Disposals 1.4) - 4
r—ore|gn exchange 0. - Q.
Net carrymg va{ue -1 January 2021 4.3 - 4.3
Additions - - -
‘rterest 041 - 0.1
Recepis (1.7) - (1.7}
Disposals {2.5) - (2.5}
forevgn exc'ﬂange (0.2) - (0.2)

Net carrying value - 31 December 2021

Cane 11
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11. LEASES CONTINUED

31 December IEIIE LY
2021 EP
——— £m T
Due in year ” _ 35
Dre in year 2 - "3
Due n year 3 - Q0.7
Urdiscourted lease payments - 4.5
Unearned finance income - 0.2}
Total lease receivables {note 15) - 4.3
31 December TiaTLaT,
2021
~ ) im e
Currert - 2.4
Non-current - "9
Total lease receivables {note 15) - 43
Lease liabilities
Net carrying value - 3 January 2020
Additions
Irterest
Paymerts
sposals
forewgn exchange
Net carrying value = 1 January 2021 = -
Additions 0.4 - 0.4
Remeasuremenrt 1.3 - 1.3
Interest 0.6 - 0.6
Payrments (9.0) (0.2) (9.2}
Disposals (2.7} - (2.7)
Fereign exchange {0.4} - {0.4)
Net carrying value - 31 December 2021 16.4 0.1 16.5
31 December taEta g
2021 '
£Em Ehe
Current 51 3.2
Non-currert 11.4 3
Total lease liabilities (notes 27 and 28) 16.5 26.5
31 December R
2021
imi -
Due ip yjear” 5.5 9.3
Dueiryear2tos 9.2 14.0
Due after year 5 3.0 4.5
Undiscourted lease paymerts 17.7 728.4
Unearned fimance income (1.2) ("9
Total lease payables {notes 27 and 28} 16.5 263

S3ge 42
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included in operating lease expenditure for 2021 are expenses relating to leases which have not been recognised under IFRS 16,
The vatue of expense recegnised for low-value ieases for the period is £0.7m (2020 £0.3m) and for short-term leases s £01m
2020: Enmil).

12. GOODWILL
RS NI N
-t MEsir—e-g PR
Opening balance at 3 January 2020 158.2 (10.2) 148.0
Impairmert in the period (16.6) 6.6
Foreign exchange and other movements 2.3 - (2.3}
Closing balance at 1 January 2021 "55.9 {26.8) 29
Foreign exchange and other movements {0.2) - (0.2)
Closing balance at 31 December 2021 155.7 (26.8) 128.9

Coodwill acguired trroagh business combirations bas beer atlocated for impairmert testing nurposes to rine principal cash-
gererating Jrtt (CCU™ groups as Follows:

+  Education

«  Engineering
Healthcare

+  rforrration techroiogy

+  Qrlire platform

«  Scierce ard clinjcal
LK Ceneral staffing

» S Staffing

+  Verdof procuremert

Foreign exchange and other movements to goodwill arises from the retranslation of goodwill balances ~eld in fore:gn currencies
relating to the acquisition of Bartech Holdings Corporation, in the US Staffing CCLUL

No mpairments were recognisad over goodwillin tre current period (262C: £16.6m across the Information techrelogy
Engineering and Online platform CCUs;. There was also no impairment against other intangible assets {2020: £5.6m against the
brard value of the Zducation CCU).

The carrying amount of goodwill and other sndefimite assats allocated to cash-generating units at the period end is.

31 December Cart o,

2021
L . . . e fm L
Heatthcare 7.9 79
Information techrology 11.4 1.4
Science and clirical 8.5 8.5
Uk General staffing ‘ 28.6 285
JS Staffing 72.5 727
Total 128.9 “29-

Apy CGL ot shown above bas no goodwill in the c.rrent or prior seriod The Croup rests this ard other assets {ncte 13} for
dTpAirTeEnt o ar anrual basis, ard otherwise when changes ir events or situabiors Indicate that the carrving value may rot be
racoverable IFsuch a tesoindicates that the carrying amourt s tog high, 3 recoverable amount s established for the asset, whicr
is the higher of the fair vatue less costs to selt and the value -n use

The recoverable amourt for each of the above CCUs has beer delermired based gpon a value-ir-use calculatior. Value-ir-ase 1s
established by discounting anticipated future cash flows attributable to each CGU that goodwilt has been allocated to, Pre-tax
cash flow orojections are basad on financial sudgets approved by the Board covering the next financial period and high level
maragerrert forecasts far the Following four years with 3 perpetuity “actor applied to the iast forecast year.
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12. GOODWILL CONTINUED

Key assumptions

The key assumpticns are based upon a combunation of market data temperad by our own histancal experience. The calculation
of value-in-use is most sersitive to the followirg assumptiors:

+  Gross profit - this takes the average gross profit achieved in the two years preceding the start of the five plan years and
adjusts, as appropriate. for antizipated changes to business mix and market conditions over the five plan years and range
From 3.5% to 100.0% depending on the CCU

«  Discount rate —this reflects tho Directors’ estirmnate of an appropriate market rate of return taking into account the relevant
risk Factors: this has been adjusted to reflect current and expected Future economic conditions as well as to account for
geagraphic influences (see table below for rates);

+  Crowth rate used to extrapolate beyond the plan year and terminal values are based upon the long-term average growth
cate of the UK ard US ecoramies ard range from 1.0% 0 9.0% depending or how long it is anticpated the CCU will take to
recover from the ‘mpacts of Covid-19. Management recognises that the staffing and support services market growth rates
Fluctuate both above and beiow this rate; and

«  Terminal value growth -ace - the cash flow prajections include growth rates that are niot expected tc excead the long-term
growth rates of tre UK ard US econaomies, currertly 2.0% (2020: 2.0%).

Sensitivity to changes in assumptions

The impairrert calcslatior is sersitive to charges in the above assumptions. Sersitivity aralyses were performed over each
subsidiary CGU to model the effects of adverse changes in the Foracasts and growth assumptions, The tabie below shows

how the resuits of the imparrment tests for each significant COU (being those subject ta impairment, having limited excess of
recoverable amourt over carrying 3mount, or representing a substartial amourt of the total goodwill) woutd be ‘mpacted pwith
all other varables being equall by ar increase .n discount rate of 0.5% ar a gecrease of 0.5% i the long-term growth rate. The

£

impacs of all of the scenarios together has alse been considered and s disclosed in the firal column.

Zaroire LT et

. I ZoaEnaT, L L

- il ¢ als = - . -

Fducation 1.8 "3.9 (0.2} 1.2 .3 -
Healthcare 9.2 "33 1.5} (7.4 (8.4} -
informatiocr technoiogy 24.4 "3.9 (3.9 6.9 i10.2) -
Sdence ard clirical 15.8 13.9 (2.5} {37, i55) -
UK General staffing 13- "39 (6.2 19 o7 4.0
L/S Staffing 75" 6.5 (4.2) ("4.8) (20.6) -

The post-tax discount rate used for management’'s best estimates in 2021 was between 11.3% and 12.0%. Maragement
coptirues to monitor closely the perforrarce of all CCLs ard considers the mpact of any changes to the key assumptions.

Ir zonclusior, managemert beliewes that, other than shown apove, there is ro reasonable possible charge ' the unaerlying
assumptions that would result in a Further significantimpairment charge in the zonsolidated income statement,

Page 34
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13. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Chert
actbware draed | sues retabicrebIps Tt
Net carrying value - 3 January 2020 17.4 7B 22.6 177.8
Cost -4 January 2020 34.7 846 547 174G
Additors 2.3 2.3
Disposals 1.3 - - ("3
Impairment - (5.6} - (5.6}
Foreign exchange (0.2} (0.5 0.5 .2
Cost - 1 January 2021 355 785 54.2 ‘682
Accumulated amortisation — 4 January 2020 7.3 6.8 327 56.2
Crarge For the period 5.6 6.1 4.3 i6
Disposals (1.3 - - 7.3
Foreign exchange - 0.2 0.3 RS
Accumulated amortisation - 1 January 2021 z22.6 12,7 367 72.q
Net carrying value - 1 January 2021 2.9 63.8 5 96.2
Cost — 2 January 2021 35.5 78.5 54.2 168.2
Additiors 4.3 - - 4.3
Dsposals (3.6) - - (3.6)
Foreign exchange {0.1) - - (0.1)
Cost - 31 December 2021 36.1 78.5 54.2 168.8
Accumulated amortisation — 2 january 2021 22.6 12.7 36.7 72.0
Charge for the period 5.3 5.9 3.9 15.1
Disposals (3.6) - - (3.6)
Foreign exchange {0.1) 0.1 - -
Accumutated amortisation - 31 December 2021 24.2 18.7 40.6 83.5
Net carrying value - 31 December 2021 11.9 59.8 13.6 85.3

Inciuded ir software additiors for the 52 weeks ended 3 December 2027 are internally gererated software development costs
of £0.6m (2620: £0.7m) which have been capitalised at cost. These costs have been assessed as having a finite (ife of between
three and five years (2020: three and five years) and are amortised from the date the software s available for use on
astraight-lire basis over this penad.

Client relationships have resulted from business combinations and have been assessed as having 8 bnite life of ten years. They
are amortised, from the date of acquisitior, or a straight-line basis over this periad. Brard values have resulted from busiress
combinaticns ang have been assessed as having a finite (ife of between three and 20 years depending on the prominence of the
brard. They are amortised on a straight-ire basis over this period.

A sammar, of the amourtsir brard values and cliert relatiorships. together witr the ~emaining amrortisatior cerod is below:

Sy et 3

LIS B TP R PO SRS DI Ea | seEhi b LRI
Educatior "2 3.3 - -
Healthcare 9.6 59 3. 156
Informratice technology HY; 0.9 4.5 2.3
Uk Ceneral staffing 3.8 6.9 - -
45 Staffing "33 6.9 6.0 4.0
Verdeor procuremenrt 5.7 59 -
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13. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS CONTINUED

These assets are all reviewed for impairment wher there are changes in everts or situations that indicate the carryirg value
may not be recoverable. Details of the sensitivities over such impairmenrt reviews are included ir note 12, No immpairment was

recognised in the current period (2020: £5.6m against the Education brand value),

14, FINANCIAL ASSETS

31 December fara
2021 b
e - Em -

Financial assets - non-current
Marketable investments designated at market value through the income staternent 1.5 1.2
Other financial assets {loans and receivables) - non-current
Deposits with non-financal institutions 0.2 0.4
Totat 1.7 16

Firancial assets include:

«  The marketable imvestrrents at market value through the income statamert represent irvestments held ir trust or bekalf
of certair US emmployees (see note 2(PY. The olan allows certain key employees to defer receipt of a portior of their
compersation. These deferred compersation liabilities are funded by making contributions into a trust. The employees’

eptitlerperts are limited to the rrarket value of the fFurd. Investments ir the trast comprise sharesim US mutuai

funds. At

31 December 2021 these investments have been adjusted to the market value of £1.5r 2020: £*.2m). This movement s

marched by an equivalent movement in other sayables as disclosed in note 17- and

«  Deposits with non-financial institutions represent amounts held by suppliers, chents and landlords as security for provisien of

facilites ard services,
Informatior or fair values and credit risks is giver in notes 27 and 28,
15. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Current assets
31 December

2021
- o £m
Trade recevables (note 2¢J)} 539.2
Cther receivables 3.6
Lease debtor rote "7 -
Brepayrmrents 5.0
Cortract assets 57.7
Total 6§05.5

~

0
NIV RN
PR

¥l

B
BN

w
v
G
[¥s]

Trace receivables also include gross recewables of £268.5m 12020 £274.7m) under mastervendor agency arrangements n
the UK and US where the Croup only recognises the management fee element of the receivable as revenue -~ note 2(R);

«  (Contract assets comprise accrued income and cosks incurred +n the imelementation of new contracts; and

» The above trade and other recewabies fall into the 'loars and recevables’ category of the Group's financial assets

Non-current assets

31 December

2021
£m

Contracs assers 0.9

Lease debtar (~ote " 1) -

Total 0.9

IrForrration or fairr values and credit risks s grerir roates 27 and 28,
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Contract balances

Torbrant s

31 December

2021
Ll —— LI A
At Lhe beginnirg of the period 55.8 52.2
MNet amounts recogrised as revenue .n the pefiod 1.9 36
At the end of the period 57.7 55.8

Contract assets are included within ‘trade and other recewvables’ on the face of the statement of firancial position. Contract
assets compnise accrued ircorre and costs ircurred in the implementatior of rew contracts (mote 200V,

The Group applies the IFRS 9 simplified aporeach to measuring expected credit losses using a liferime expected credit toss
orovision for trade receivables and contract assets. Ta measure expected credit losses on a collective basis, trade recawvables and
contrack assets are grouped based on simitar credit risk and ageirg. The contract assets bave similar risk characterisiics to the
trade receivabies for sirrilar bypes of cortracts.

The expected loss provisien is based on the Group s expectation of future credit losses over the current recevables paw@nce
based on an anaiysis of the aging and sector of the receivable. These expectations are based upon known i1ssues effacting
specific debtors as well as a combination of tustoric and general forward-looking informaticn on facters affecting the Groun s
customers as 3 whole as well 35 an awareness of the ecoromic corditions in the countries where the Croup operates. These risk
Factors are cersidered both or inital recogrition of the raceivable ard as part of the ongoing assessmenrt.

The lifetime expected ioss provision for trade receivables s as “cilows:

Jatusr 4 -
Expected loss rate (%) 0.3% 4.5% 3% 5.3% 0%,
Cross carryirg ameunt 4285 51.0 8" 16! 5007
Loss provision 1.4 2.3 c.4 1 3.7
<60 days 60-120 days >120 days
Current past due past due past due Tokal
Zegemipen DL £m £m £m ) £m £tm
Expected loss rate (%) 0.4% 1.9% 6.3% 54.2% 1.2%
Cross carrying amourt 449.6 84 .1 6.4 5.9 546.0
Lass provision 1.6 1.6 0.4 3.2 6.8

All ror-caerert receivables are due within three years of the end of the period.
Moverrerts in the provision for impairment of irade recevables were 3s Follows:

31 December

2021
£m :
Bslarce at beqinring of periog 5.2 2.2
Charged/ireleased) far the period 1.3 35
Utilised for the seriod {(1.7) 0.5}
Foreign exchange - 0y

Balance at end of period " 6.8 5.2
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15. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES CONTINUED
The creation and release of provisions Forimpaired trade receivables have beenincluded in 'administrative expenses’' In the
income statement. Amounts are generally written off to the provision account where there 15 no expectation of recovery.

Ircluded i the Croup's receivables are the following balarces deromirated in Foreigp currercy:

31 December tlarLan,

2021 6o

S 7 o £m =h
Trade receivables inrote 2{J)} 313.7 312.9
Cther receivables ) 2.6 39
Lease debtors - 41
Prepayments 2.5 2.3
Accraed ircome 12.5 5.8
Total 3nsg 339.0

16. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Forthe purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise the forlowing:

31 December Claruan,

2021
) S £m =7
Cash 90.9 1173
Included within cash is £8.5m '202C; £2.5m) of cash which *s restricted For use on specf c clients.
Informiation on fair vatues, credit nisks and interest rates is gwer ir rofes 27 and 28.
17. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Current liabilities
31 December BRSPS L
2021 e
e . e )
Bark overdraft 3.9 29
Trade payables 376.7 375.2
Other tax and social securnity costs 63.9 86.5
Accruals 77.3 4.7
Cortract liabilities 0.5 0.6
Other pavables 46.4 38.1
Total 568.7 558.0

Trade payables include £332.5m {2028 £341.0m) of amounts payatle under master-vendor arrangements in the Uk and US,
~hich are related to certar of the trade receivables — note 5, Arrargements are such that the payable amounrt is not due by the
Croup untit a few davs after receipt of the receivable.

Other tax and social security costs include £9.1m (2020: £48.Cm) of taxes deferred under government schemes across
various jurisdictions.

included ir cther payables and accruals are

3. £1.4m (2020 £1 2m) ir respect of iabilities accruing to cartain LS empicyees in respect of a deferred compensation plan.
These armounts are payable to members of the olan on retirement {note 14);

b, £6.6m (2020 £3 5mi for conenibutions due to be made to aefined contribution pension schemes on behalf of certain

employees of the Group:

£3.6m (2020: £4.2my For customer unclaimed paymerts; and

d. Remaimrg arrounis withir other payables are iargely payroli-related creditors.

.

“3g5e 39
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17. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES CONTINUED
Terms and conditions of the above financial liabilities:

e. Trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally settled within one month from the end of the manth of inveice:
F. QOther tax and social security costs are non-interest-bearing and are normally settled within one to three manths; and
g. Other sayables and accruals are non-interest-bearing ard Fave ar average term of three morehs.

Irformeatior or Fair vatues ard credit risks is given ir rotes 27 ard 28.

18. SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS

Finarcial liabilities measured at amortised cost:
Revolvirg credit borrowings - secured
Hire purchase - secured

Total

2021
£n'|7
0.1 G-
0.1 0

Informmation on fair valaes, risks and terms are greenier notes 26, 27 and 28

19. LONG-TERM BORROWINGS

31 December

2021
ol _ £m

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost:

Revolving credit barrowirgs - secured 101.9 '"B.5
Hire purchase — secured - 0:
Total 101.9 9.0
!nFormatioﬁ or Fair values, risks and terms are gven in notes 26, 27 and 28.

20. PROVISIONS

mCThers
et SITperst Ln &l

Carrent — 1 Jaruary 2027 1.4 0.2 5.6 n2
Non-currert — 1 Jaruary 2021 33 - - i3
AL 1 January 2021 4.7 .2 3.6 0.5
Additiorsin the period 0.3 - 2.4 2.7
Remeasurementir the period /N - - 041
Utilised during the period {0.9) - {0.5} {1.4)
Urwind of discourt 0.2 - - 0.2
Foreign exchange (0.1} - 0.1 -
At 31 December 2021 4.3 0.2 7.6 12.1
Currert — 37 December 202 1.1 0.2 7.0 8.3
Nop-currert - 31 Decemrber 2027 3.2 - 0.6 38
Total 4.3 0.2 7.6 12.%
Property

Property nrovisions relate to the Full expectad cost of dilapidations and have been discounted o a present value using the

relevent lease interest rate,

Rage 3%
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20. PROVISIONS CONTINUED

Workers' compensation

The US operations maintain, of maintained, insurance policies with significant excesses, below which claims are borne by the
operatiors. Provisior is made for estimated costs of claims or losses arising from past events.

The level of provision made 1s based upon independent actuariai estimates These estimates take irto accourt the altimate
cost, less amourts paid to date, in respect of acciderts occurring betweer the inceptior of the policy and the end of the currert
period, the period covered by these self-irsurance arrargements. An allowance 1s made for rlaims nearred but rolieported in
lire with standard actuanal practice

Claims are expected to be settled within one year

Legal & contractual

The CGroup holds a provisian for expected legal and zontractual costs that are protable to cause an cutflow of resourcas

over an extended penod. Management exercises judgements to determine the amount of this provision on a case-by-case
basis Provision is made For known issues based on past experience of similar items and other known Facters. Each provision is
considered separatély, and the amount grovided reflects the best estimate of the most likely amount, being the single most
likely amount in 3 rarge of passible outcomes. Owirg to the irherert Jncertainty within mary legal proceedings, the amount
and timings of such outflow could differ significantly from the amount and ageing provided.

with reference to the prajudicial exemption in IAS 37, the Group will not disclose any further infarmation about the assumptions
For the provision, including any detalls about current and the expected number of lawsuits and settled claims. The disclosure of
such informarion s believed to be detrimental ts the Group in connection with the ongoing confidential negotiations and could
inftict fFinancial iosses on the Troup and its shareholders.

Contingent liabilities

The Croup s aware of a contingenc liabiiity in relation to late Fiing penalties within the US which may become due To date no
penalties have been raised for any company in the US due to this issue and all relevant documents nave 2een filed. This has not
been accounted For 3s a provision as there are significant uncertainties over the financial impact as wel! as the likelihood and
timing of any potertial outflow.

21. DEFERRED TAXATICN

31 December

2021
£m

Nan-current deferred tax assets:

Total deferred tax asset — Uk 1.9

Total deferred tax asset — overseas 6.4

Total deferred tax asset

8.3

31 December

2021

£m B
Deferred tax liabilities:
Non-current deferred tax liabilities 18.7 =
Total deferred tax liabilities 18.7 "8
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Deferred tax lab:lities primarily relate to fair value adjustments on acquisiticns.

Sropert. RN ol

plart srd o able [ dererred

Elo{Wivhaat=Inly 5.8t ERER N Tall ;:f"‘.‘f-:f yarads iAo

At 4 January 2020 - ' 14 (20.0} 3 76 7.9)
Recogrised inincorre 01 2.0 3.4 (5.4) 2
Foreign exchange - 0.2 0.2) 0.3 0"
At 1 January 2021 *5 {18.7} 6.3 2.5 {7.8)
Deferred tax assets ~ 1 January 2021 *5 - 6.3 2.5 0.3
Deferred tax liabilities — T January 2021 — 8. - - (8.
15 118.1) 6.3 2.5 (7.8

At 2 January 2021 1.5 (18.1) 6.3 2.5 (7.8)
Recogrised in ircome {0.3) (0.7} {0.6) (1.6) {3.2)
Foreign exchange - 0.1 - 0.5 0.6
At 31 December 2021 1.2 (18.7) 5.7 14 (10.4)
Deferred tax assets — 31 December 2021 1.2 - 5.7 1.4 8.3
Deferred tax liabilities — 31 December 2021 - (18.7) - - (18.7)
1.2 (18.7) 5.7 1.4 (10.4)

The Croup has gross deductible temporary differences relating o provisions and deferred capital allowances of £29.8m
(2020: £33.0m). Deferred tax assets of £8.4m (2020: £7.8m) have been recognised in respect of these temporary differances
leaving £7 2m (202C: £4.1m) as unrecegnised differences. They have no expiry date.

The Group has gross tax (osses that arose 1n the UK of £32.8m (2020: £33.5m) and tax losses that arose cutside the UK (mastly
in the US; of £3.0m (202G £13.5m) that are avalabie for offset against futura taxable prefits of the right type ansing in the
companies in which the (0sses arose. The reduct:on in tax losses in the US st the end of the current period compared to the
arevicus period s due o the utilisation of these losses against taxable profits in the current period. There is no expity dats on
the UK losses, but the LS losses expire between 2028 and 2033, The Group has performed sensitivity analysis on the ubilisation
of US losses looking at forecasts of profitability and these show that the fax iosses will be Fully utlised by the end of 2522 well
:nadvance of thewr expiry. All osses are sLbject to legislation restricting the right to offset them. Deferred tax assets of £1.4m
{2020 £2.5m) have been recognised as they relate to companies that are trading profitably orcan expect to have taxable orofits
i the foreseeable future Deferred tax assets nave not been recognised in respect of UK [osses of £32.6m {2020 £33 5m) and
cutside the Uk of £2.7m (2020: £1.8m) as they may not be used o offset taxable profits elsewhere in the Group and they have
either anisen in subsidiaries where Future use s uncertain, or are capital (osses For which there is limited scope for future offset.

22.1SSUED SHARE CAPITAL

Saeer of csiegchare  AbrT reraner otz

sled shzres apital WLt Jae samt:

4 January 2020 473 0.5 307 306
Shares repurchased .4 - - -
1 January 2021 45, 0.5 300 30.6
2 January 2021 459 0.5 3041 30.6
Srares repurchased {0.6) - - -
31 December 2021 45.3 0.5 3041 30.6

Transactions with shareholders
In 2027 608,602 Crdinary shares of 1p each (2020 1 413 789 representing 1.3% (2020 3.0%) of the opening number of ssued
shares were repurchased in the market for consideraticn of £1.9m {2020: £4.3m), and cancelled.

On 25 June 2021 the shareholders approved a new share purchase pian allowing the Compary to purchase up to 4,560,363
Ordinary shares up to the earlier of the date of the Company s next Arnuai General Meeting or 30June 2022,
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22_ISSUED SHARE CAPITAL CONTINUED

impellam Group plc

The Company has ~o imit to its authorised share capital. The above nurmber represerts the number of allotted, fully paid shares
of Tpnissue.

23. OTHER RESERVES

4 January 2020 ' - 9.0 972 g 120.3

Currency translaticn 4/fferences - - 2.0 203
_;_J;;nuaryi{k! - - T 7.1 183
2Janvary2021 - 190 %22 71 1183
Currency translation differences - - (1.4) (1.4)
31 December 2021 - - 190 22 57 1169

Merger reserve

The merger reserve arises urder Sectior 6 2 of the Comparies Act 2006 as a result of the acquisitior of Bartech Holding
Corporation and Loren Limited using the issue of shares as part consideration. The axcess of fair vawe over norminal vatue of
shares is transferred to 2 merger reserve rather thar share premiury. This reserve s pot distributable,

Other reserve

The other reserye comprises £%2.2m contrnibuted surplus arising on a historical demerger transaction (2028 £92.2m). 1t also
contains £41.000 contributed surplus arsing on a historical demerger transaction and a special reserve ansing from the
capital reduction in December 2012 (2020: £41 COC): and £47 00C capital redemption reserve ar'sing from the purchase and
cancellation of treasury shares (2020 £47.0CC). This reserye 1s not distributable,

Foreign currency transiation reserve
The foreign currency translaton reserve is used to record exchange differences arising from the transiation of che financial
statements of foreigr sypsidiaries,

24. NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST
The followirg table symmarnises the informatior relating to eack of the Group's subsidiaries that has martenal rer-cartroltirg
irterest ({NCI'. before any irtra-Croup eliminatiors.

individuat
immaterial
sybsidiaries Total
o &m0 Em
31 December 2021
Net assets attributable to NCI 01 0.1
Profit allocated to NC| 01 0.1
Other comprehersive ircome allocated o NCI -
Otrer comprehersive income from redaang the NC cormponenrt 0.3 0.3
it 2
r" ;\r oL
1 Janyary 2021
Net assets attributable to NCI 0.3 0.3

Loss allocated to NCI - -
Other corrprehensive incorre aliocated to NC - -
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The individually wmmatenial subsidiaries inciude the share of results For Barpellam Inc and Bartech Belgium NV (2020: Barpellam

Inc, Bartech Belgium NV and Younif: Limited) which are not wholly owned by the Croup {note 25). During the year the Group
purchased the mincrity interest of Younifi Limited for a nominal value.

25. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

The consolidated financial statements include those of the helding company. Impellam Group ple, and all of its subsidiaries. All

subsidiaries have the same period end as the Croup and are wholly swned at the period end unless stherwise specified

800 Tht Boulevard
Capability Creen
Ldtor

LL " 3BA

Urited Kingdom

Lezel 2

14 Martin Place
Sydrey

NSw 2000
Astralia

St aatsaurgdok Noordkaaw 3
ZCaO APtWDrp Belgium

Blue Arrow Fmamcwal Serwces Limiteg*
Blue Arrow Holdirgs Limited

Blue Arrow Limited

BMS Limited

Carbor60 Limited

Career Teachers 2006 Limited (Formerly Career Teachers Limited)
Career Teagchers Limited (Formerly Celsiar Croup Limited)

Carlisle Cleaning Services Holdings Limited*
Carlisle Events Services Limited®
Carlisle Croup Limited

Carliste Neminees Limited™

Carliste Staffirg olc

Carlisle Staffing Services Holdings Limited
Carlisle Staffirg Services Limited
Chadwick Nott (Holaings) Limited
Chrysalis Community Care GroJp wimiced
Comenscra Limited

Doctors Or Call Limited

Flexy Corooration Limitec

Clebal Croup (UK Limited

Clobal Medics Limited

Cuidant Clobal-Europe Lirited

irrpellam Holdings Lirmiced

‘mpettam UK wimited

Laybnidge Limited*

Uitmus Workforce Solutiors Limited
Lorien Limited

Lorlen Resgarcing Limited

Medacs Clobal Croup Limited

Medacs Healthcare Australasia Croup Limiteg

Medacs Heaithcare ple

OneTrue Limited

DRN Recruitrment Limited

Scence Recryitrrent Group Lirmiced
Younifi le ited

Allied EffploerEPt Cwm Pty Limited
Carbonbd Pry Linmted

Comersara Pty Limited’

Flexy Services Pty wimmited

Clobal Medics Pty Limited ™

Litrrus wWorkforce Solations Py cod -
Medacs Healthcare [Pty Lirrited
Medacs Healthcare Australia Poy Lirmited

(73% owned)

Bartech Belguum NV~
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25 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES CON FJNU&D

PO Box 7"E Road Town
Tortola v 110
Brttlsh Virgin \siaﬁds

= Sabeftooth Services L\m\ted

250 Howe Street
20th Floor Varcouver
BC V6L 3RE

Fabada

- Bar ech Teckrical Services of Carad& L\mted

- Carada Corporate Employment Resources ULC
—  Clobal & Medical Recruitrment Consultarcy ne.
- Guidart Group Canrada ULC*

Arna-schneider-Steig 24
306 8Cologr~e Cermany

Beethovenp{atz 2
80336 qusc Cermany

57/63 Line Wall Qoad GJbraJtaJ

Block 9, Blackrock Busmess Park
Blackrock
Co. Dubilin, A94 Z4X2
Ireland

ia Filippo Turac 29
70*21 Miian, Itai

Rio Tiber 40 162
Col Cyauhtemoc 06500
CJauhternoc Dwstrwto Federal Mexico

98 Alicia Street
Cotory Cuadalupe Tepeyac.
Mexico C!ty CPC?BdD Mexico

Level 5, 3 Ferr croFtStfeet
Crafr, Aucklard 1010
New Zealand

Criental Center, Sute p’
254 Munoz Jnhoz Rivera Avenue San Juan
PR 009" 8 Puerto Rico

—  Guidart Global Germary CrrbH

- Impellam CFT;'bH

- Kmafd 1mestrrerts L ;mted

- Cart sle Security (Holdirgs) L\rmtedf
-~ Carlisle Security Limited™
Carlisle Staffing Services lreland Limited”
— Irish Recruitment Consultarts Limited®
- Litmus workforce Solubiors irelard Limited
—  Medacs Clobal Croup Llrmted

-  Cuidart Global Italy SRL -

- Baytech Mexnco 5.de RL de CV

- Guldant Clobat Mexico S.A. de TN,

- Cloba Medlcs NZ Limited
—  Hestthlink New Zealard Group Limited”
Medacs Healthc:re Lamwted

- Cmdantflobal%erto Rico \Pc

133 New Sridge Road
#*0-05, Chiratowr Poirt
Sargapore 059413

Martin-Disteli-Skrasse 9
4606 \,H:en Switzerland

271 'enceere Roac Suite dCO
wilmirgtaor

Delaware *9808

UsSA

17799 N Laural Park Drive
Sulte 224 (ivonia
Michigan 48157 USA

- Cui dant Glooal SC Pre Lt 7
— Latitudes Croun Internatioral Maragement Pte Limited -

 Carbon0 AC -
- GudantGlobal:wwtzer‘amdAu-

- BarpeHam inc 149% owned)

- CER Carada Foldirg Inc.-

- Impellam NA Support Services Inc (Formerly Corestaff Support Services inca
- Corporate Employmenrt Resources nc.

- Carporate Services Croup Holdirgs inc.

- Cuidart Clobal £arada Holdirg nc.

- Cuidart Clobal Holdirg Corporatior

—  Cuidart Clebal irc

- Cudidart Group Inc.-

- Ba{ a2ch Mexico Hcldmg L
- Bartech Techrical Seruices LLC‘
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Companies marked with a * above are exempt from the Companies Act 2006 requiremeants retating to the audit of their
individual accounts by virtue of Section 480 of the Act relating to dormant companies.

all subsidiaries are indirect holdirgs of the Compary other than Impellam Heldings Ltd. Impellarm UK Lid and the Medacs Ciabal
Croup Ltd which has its registered office in the UK.

Shares for all companies are classed as Ordinary and a nominat value of £1 per share except as disclosed telow.

{a) ‘A Ordinary shares of £1

(b} Ordinary shares of AS1

{¢} Commaonr stock with ro par value
{d} Ordirary shares of 1000 CHF

(e} Ordirary sharesof £€°.27

(A Ordinary shares of NZ$1

(g) Ordinary shares of SG57

(hy Ordirary shares of £°

The Sroug cwns 49% of the issued stock of Barpellam Inc but exercises control of the company 1In accordance with the
definitions of power and exposure to vanability in returns required under IFRS 10 Consolidated Financiai Statements.

The subsidiary undertakings listed below are exempt from the Companies Act 2006 requirements relating to the audit of
their indnidual accounts by virtue of Section 479A of the Act as this Company has guaranteed the scbsidiary company under
Section 479C of the Act :

ILY e )
2eqisd e Tazsi 31December  ar_o,
Comner LT ald 201 ToT
Career Teachers 2006 Limited 05743154 QOrdinary 100% 100%
Flexy Corporation wimitec 09524785 Qrdinary 100% 100%
Guidart Clopal-Europe Limited 0730836  QOrdinary 100% 100%
Medacs Healthcare Australasia Group Limited 0312099° Qrdirary 100% 100%
OneTrue Limited 0'"89888  Ordirary 100% 100%

Compensation of key management personnel of the Group

The Directors have considered the levels of resporsibility delegated to serior management of the Grodp and bave corcluded
that, in addition to the Directors themselves, disclosare should include the Serior Leadership Team which comprises tre
Portfolio CEO and Group Seneral Counsel and Company Secretary. the Chief Executives of STEM, Clobal Managed Services,
Impedam North America and Impetlam APAC as well as the Chief Technology Officar, the Group Director of Corporate
Developrrent and the Croup Director of investmert & innovation, The total rurrber of positiors incluced in the disclosare is °53
{20207 '7). The Directors receive dividerds in proporfion to ther sharebaldirgs held during the carrert and orior perods.

31 December CLoare

2021 o

£m .

Short-term employment benefits 6.8 43
Post-employment benefits 0.2 0.2
Total 7.0 4.5

Lord Ashcrorft Ras ar irterest ir Purma Irterratioral Foldings Lrmted. The Croup paid Purra interratioral Holdings Limited
£425,000(2020: £nili for the provision of zonsultancy services, Nothing was owed to or by Puma Internatioral Holdings Limited
at e start or erd of the perod. Angela Eptwistie s also a Director of a corrpary called Deacor Street Partrers Limited. The
Croup pays Deacon Street Partiers Limited For iks provision of Angeia Entwistle’s services as a Mon-Executive Director - £40 200
(2029 £38 0001, The Croup owed £4,000 to Deacon Street Partners Limited at the end of the perniod 12028: £4,0C0). Also, 8
compary withir the .mpellam Croap provides a payroll bureau service to Deacon Street Partners Lirmited for which ro charge s
made as the arm's-iength cost of such sersice s regligible.
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25. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES CONTINUED

In 2016, a company within the Group advanced a lcan of $1,300,000 to David Barfield, a Director of vanious Group companies.
This loan was due For repayment on or before 25 January 2021 and $nil was cutstanding at the period end (2026: $725,00C).
Interest accrues ak a rate of 1.81% per annum and during the period $nil (2020: $14.000) interest had been accrued. David
Barfield s also a significant shareholder in Bartech Acquisition Corporation LLC. At the end of the period the amount owed to
or by the Group was 57l [2020: $nil). Bartech Acguisition Corporation LLC is a shareholder in Techeentral LLC and the Croup
provides accourting ard pregramme managemenrt services at an arm's iength rate to TechCertral LLC. Duning the period, the
Group charged TechCentral $116.00C (2C20: $175.000) for these services. At the pad of the period, TechCentral LLC owed the
Group $116,000 (2022: 5155 GO0,

Durng the period the Croup entered intc the following transactions with related parties who are not 100% owned by the Group.

Sale of Purchase of Ameunts owed Amounts owed
services to services from to related by related
related parties related parties parties parties
L Em .. &m ™
31 December 2021
Barpellam Inc - 37.5 30.0 2.5
Bartech Belgium NV - 0.1 0.9 -
Total - 37.6 30.9 2.5
UL St
AN
1 January 2021
Barpellam Irc - 365 26." ‘8.8
Bartech Belguum MY - 0.2 - 0.2
founifi Limited 0. - - 4?2
Total o 367 26, 23.2

Sales to rewated parties relate to expenditure transferred at cost to encourage the expansion of the ~elated party. As these
companies are controtled by the Group. no allowance has heen made for bad and coubtful debts Tramsactions with Younif
Limited cover the penod whep there was a mirority owrer.

26. NET DEBT

1 January Cash tnterest Interest Foreign 31 December

2021 Flow charged paid  Drawdown exchange 2021
S gm  £m £m L e€m _ Em _Em_ 7£_m_
Cash ard shorcterm deposits irote 16 117.9 (24.3) {0.2) 0.2 - 2.7} 90.9
Bark cverdraft inote * 7Y (2.9) {1.0) - - - - (3.9)
Revolvrg credit (notes '8 ard " 9) (118.9) 16.7 (3.4) 34 - 0.3 {101.9)
Hire purchase {(rotes "8 ard " %) (0.2) 0.1 - - - - {0.1)
Lease dabilities (noge ') {26.5) 8.8 (0.6) 0.4 1.0 0.4 {16.5)
Lease debtors rote " 1) 4.3 (1.7) 0.1 (0.1) (2.5) (0.1} -
Net debt (26.3) {1.4) (4.1) 3.9 (1.5} (2.1} (31.5)
cear E 1 e gr L [
. e R LR T ol
Cask and short-tern deposits inoie ' 4] "32.3 9.2 - - - 5.2; 175
Bank overdraft (rofe 177 139.08 36 - - - - 2.9)
Revolving credit (notes 18 and 19 653, 46.2 {4.4) 44 - 0.2 (8.9}
Hire parchase (nctes "B ard ' 9) 0.3} G - - - - 0.2
Lease liabiibies ‘rote '3 i33.9) i g c.8 08 13.9; 03] 126.5)
Lease debtors irote 175 7.3 {3.21 G." 0.7 - 0.2 43
Net debt 198.8) 875 (5.0 5 3.9 5 i26.3)
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The Croup takes advantage of a sumber of nen-recourse financing agreerments arganised by clients of the Group to allow for
the acceleration of payment of the Group's recevables (see nate 2{J)), At the end of 2021, these amounted to £8.2m (2020
£6 3m) These agreements accrue interest at between 0.65% and 1.75% over SONIA and interest of £0.1m was charged during
the period {2020 £0.7m) and is included in other interest in note 7.

27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group s principal financial liabilities comprise bank overdrafts, revolving 2redit faclicies. lzases and trade payables
Dverdrafrs and ~evolving credit Facilities are used to satisfy short-term cash flow reriarements. The main purpose of these
Financial iabilities is ro raise finance for the Group s trading operations. The Group also has various financial assets such as
investimenrts, trade receivables, cash and short-term depesits which arise directly from trading operations.

The main risks ansing from the Group's financial instruments are set out below. The Soard reviews and agrees policies for
maraging each of these risks ard these are summarised below.

It1s. and has been throughout the peried under review, the Group s policy that no trading in financial instruments such as
derivatives shall be undertaken. The Group's policy with regard to interest rate and foreign exchange contracts 's to only hedge
speafic risks with a determinable date that arise from operations of financing.

Interest rate risk

None of the Group's borrowings are at a fixed rate of interest, All borrowings are subject to changes in market :ncerest rates
primarity the revolving credit Facility which is subject to floating rates. The floaning rate borrowings are not exposed to charges
i Fair value' however the Group is sxposed Lo inkerest rate risk as costs increase If market rates rise or cash “iow opportunity as
costs decrease if market rates fail,

The Sroup also sarns nterest on credit bank balances at a floating rate of interest, The Croup’s policy is to manage its interest
rate cost by the use of varable rate debts while rates are low

Interest rate risk table

The foliowing table dermonstrates the sersitivity to a reasonabiy {based upon market exoectations For the rext 12 months;
possible change to interest rates, with ail other vaniabies held constant, of the CGroup's profit before tax ithrough the impact of
Floating rate borrowings).

Effect on
increase/ profit EFffect on
decrease in before kax equity
basis poipss o 77£m77 . _E_n'_l__
31 December 2021
Pourd Sterlirg +75 {0.9) (0.7)
-25 0.3 0.2
US Doliar +75 {0.1) {0.1)
-25 - -
1 January 2021
Pound Sterlirg ~-50 0.6] 0.5;
25 G3 072
S Dollar ~50 onmn 0.
25 o 0.t

Liquidity risk

The Groun's funding strategy s to maintain Funding flexibilicy through the use of cash deposits revolving credit facilit-es,
overdrafes, supplier financing arrangements and .easing contracts. The Croup aims to ensure thatst has committed borrowing
fac:lities \n place in excess of ts peak Forecast borrowings for at least the next 12 months. Shert-term flexibility s achieved by
the use of deoosits and revolving credit Facihities and supplier Bnancing arrangements,
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27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES CONTINUED

The Croup renewed its revolving credit facilities on 17 December 20271 for a Further three years with an optien to extend for a
further two years; £182.5m was available for drawdown (2020: £240m} which includes an overdraft Faclity of £5m. The amount
utilised at 31 December 2021 was £103.8m (2020: £114.9m). This Facility includes an accordion elernent of an additional £4Cm
which could be added to the faclicy. There are ro restrictions to the free transfer of funds between fully owred subsidiaries. The
Facilities cover all territories the Group operates in. The revelving credit faality includes financial covenants finked to the Group s
debter cover, teverage cover and interest cover using adjusted EBITDA (before separately disclosed itemns and share-based
payment) — note 3. At 31 December 2021, and throughout the period. the Group was in campliance with its finasusl covenants
and expects Lo continue o he so.

The Group takes advantage of a number of non-recourse financing agreements arganised by clients of the Group to allow for
the acceleration of payment of the Group s recevables (see nate 2(J)) At the end of 2027 these amounted to £8 2m (2620
£6.3m). These agreements accrue interest at between 0.65% and 1.75% over SONIA and ‘nterest of £0.0m was charged during
the period (2020: £6.1m) and is included in other interest in note 7.

The tabie below summarises the maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities at 31 December 20271 and 1 January 2021
based on contractual andiscounted payments.

iess than 3 3-12 1-5 S years
On demand manths menths years ar more Total
o o £m £m o ql___m__ E@ ,,.__ET___E_ Emr
31 December 2021
Revolving credit Facilities (notes *8 ard 1) - - - 101.9 - 101.9
Trade and sther payables (note " 7) 3.9 490.6 10.3 - - 504.8
Frnarce lease liabilities (notes "8 and 19; - 0.1 - - - 041
Lease liabilities incte “ ) - 1.4 4.1 9.2 3.0 17.7
Total 3.5 4921 14.4 1114 3.0 624.5
r _esg bFar - 3
SR o | Srmiarths [ £ar
:\E’-I-flﬁ”____ S ,i <t . _{*—____ B -
1 January 2021
Revclving credit facilities (notes 18 and 19} - - - 1135 - 189
Trade and other pavables (rote * 7) 2.9 4465 221 - - 471.5
Finarce lease liabilizies (rotes “8 and 19) - ~ 0 0" - 0.2
Lease liabilities (note "1} - restatad - 2.5 74 14.0 45 28.4
Total 25 4493 296 133.0 4.5 £°80

The lease Habilities have beer restated for the prior year as the onginal disclosure was the cortractual discounted value of
£26.5m.

Credit risk

The risk of financial lass due to a counterparty’s failure to hanour 1ts abligations arises orincipally in relation to transactions
where the Croup provides services on deferred terms (nate * 54

Croup policies are armed at mimirrising such losses. Itis the Croug's policy that all clierts who wish to trade or credit termrs are
subjec: to credit verfication procedures In addition, receivable balances are ronitored on an ongoing basis with the result that
the Group's exposure to bad debes s kept to a rrunimum. The maximum exposure :s the carrying amount as disclosed

innote 15, The Group has a crecht risk policy that zovers ail clients except public sector local government and pay when paid
congracts. There is @ £50C 000 aggregate first lass and maximum policy fabitity of £44 5m This policy was renewed in February
20227 forthree years,

With respect to credit rsk from other financial assets of the Group, which comprise cash and cash eguivalents and investments,
the Croup s exposufe to credit r sk arises from the default of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying
amount of trese assets. These risks are prirmarity mirmised by restricting deposits and irvestrents te those available from
weil-established reputable. fimapcial institutions.

Sage 10A
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At 31 December 2027, the maxirnum exposure to credit risk for trade and other receivables by gecgraphic region was as follows.

31 December Carlary
2027 kDM

_ gm_ T
UK 275.0 228.4
North America 290.5 295.0
Cafope 20.5 20.0
Austratasia 20.4 238
Total 606.4 367.2

Foreign currency risk
The Croup has a significant investment in 1ts ogerations in Narth America with some smaller interests in Europe and Australasia.

“he Group’s consolidated balance sheet can be affecred significantly by the movements 0 the US Dollar exchange rate;
however, movements in the exchange rates for Euro, Australian Dotlar, Canadian Dollar, Swiss Franc, New Zealand Collar or other

cdrrencies have only a margiral impact on the Croup's resulis and balarce sheet.

The Croup does not hedge aganst the impact of exchange rate movements on the transtation of foreign currency deneminated
prefits. Transactional currency exposures across the Group are minimal.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in the exchange rates:

Effect on profit

Percentage change before tax Effect on equity
e o o inrate o e Em
31 December 2021
JS Dailaers +10 0.7 -
-10 (0.9) -
1 January 2021
US Dotlars +10 03 o3
-1 {1.0) 10.4)
Price risk

The Croup has investments in Marketable securities and as such Is exposad to price risxk. These securities are held i trust
on bebalf of certain US errployees ard the underlyirg risk s borne by those employees. The Croup's liabitity s Imited (o the
market value of the securities (note 14).

Capital management
Capitat corsists of the total equity attnibutabie to the equity holaers of the Parent Company.

The primary ohjective of the Graup's capital management is to safeguard the Croup s ability to continue as a going concern, to
ensure that it mamtamns a good credit rating in order to support ‘ts business and maximise shareholder vatue. No changes were

made to the objectives, policies or processes during either period.

The Croup corsiders capital 'ess any net cash as comporerts of Furdirg. It moritors funding by reference to its ability to borrow
and Lo satisfy debi covenants. The prircipal measwre s the EBITDA ratio, wrich s calculated by dividieg the furding of the Group
by the Troue’s adjusted sarnings before .nterest, tax. adjusted depreciaticn and amortisation.

The revolving credit Facility ncluded a financial covenant linked o the Group's leverage. :nterest cover and debtor caver.
Al 3" December 2021, and throughout the period the Group was ‘n comphlance with these financial covenants whilst this facility

wWas ‘i place.

Cage 0%
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28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Set out below is § comparison by category of the carrying amounts and fair values of all the Group's Financial instruments that
are carried in the corsolidated balance sheet.

31 December 2021 tJELary 2027
Ca;'_ryi_l-'lg B Fair err_,WE____ o _;
amount value LT cale
£m £m T .o
Financial assets
Investments {(note 14) 1.5 1.5 1.2 *.2
Other financial assets (non-current) tnote 14; 0.2 0.2 3.4 0.4
Crher debtors - - 0.5 0.3
Cash ard cash equivalents (note "6} 90.9 90.9 1°7.9 "rs
Financial liabilities .
Bark overdraft frote * 7) 3.9 3.9 2.9 239
Short-term borrowings (note 18) 0.1 0.1 0. 0.t
Long-term borrowirgs (note 19) 101.9 101.9 9.0 9.0

The carrying value of frade recevables less impairment and trade payabies are assumed to approximate Fair value and are
excluded from the above table.

Fair valee estimatior heerarchy:

«  Level 1 -Quoted prices funadjusted) In active markets For identical assets or Hapilities:

- Level 2 -Inputs other thar quoted prices included within level * that are observable for the asset or labiity. either directly
ithat s, as prices) ar indirectly (that is denved from prices); and

+  Level 3-Irputs for the asset or liability that are not based o observable market data that is, arobservable irputs).

The followirg table oresents the fair value hierarchy of assets messared at rair valae:

Level1 Level 2 Level 3 Tatal
£m £m £m £m

31 December 2021
Investments (ncte 14) 1.5 - - 1.5
Cther debtors - - - -

1 January 2021 )

Investments (note 14) *2 - - '2
Other debtors 0.5 - - 0.5
Level 1

Market values, based or published prces, have been ysed to determire the Fair valce of the marketable ipvestmerts included in
ather Financial assets

Fair value For short-term borrowings are eguat to book value as they are repayable on demand and are subject to churn over a
period cfless thar three maorths.
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28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS CONTINUED

Interest rate risk

At 371 December 2021 and 1 January 2021, ncne of the Group's borrowings are at fixed rates of :nterest. The following table sets
out the carrying amount. by maturity, of the Group's financial instruments that are exposed to interest rate risk.

Within 1-3
1 year years Total
£m £m £m
31 December 2021
Floating rate
Cask and short-ferm deposits ‘note "6) 90.9 - 90.9
Bark overdrafts ‘rote 17) (3.9) - (3.9)
Reyolvirg credit facilities (rotes 18 and 19} - {101.9) (101.9)
Hire purchase ‘rotes 18 ard "G} (0.1) - (0.1}
Aebar
1 January 2021
Floating rate
Cash ard short-term depasits (note 16] 179 - 179
Bark overdrafts (pote 17) 2.9 - 12.9)
Revolving credit fFacilities ‘notes 18 ard 19 - {*"8.9 189
Hire purchase (notes "8 and 19) 10 0.0 0.2

The effective ntacest rate on bank baiances and other short-term deposits was tess than 0 3% (202C: less than 0.5%] US deposit
interest rates wera less than 0.5% (2020: less than 0.3%).

Bank overdrafts ard revoiving credit borrowings are secured by a guarantee and debenture with a fixed charge over certain
assets of the Company and the subsidiary undertakings concerned plus a fleating charge over all other assets of the Cempany
and chose subsidiary urdertakings, supperted by 3 cross-guarantee given by the Campany and the L anous sabsidiary
urdertakirgs. Borrowirgs urder these facilities incarred inkerest {including margiri between " .90% and 2.70% over SONIA rate
(7020: betweer " 35% ard 2 30% over LIBOR rate}. Allinterest s charged monthly 7w arrears \rote 271

Collateral pledged
The seif-insared workers' compersation liability described in rote 20 1s covered by insurers or the basis that collaterat s
provided sufficient to cover all potential claims. This collateral takes two “orms:

« E30m-4%4.0m (2020 £3.2m - 54 4m) in the form of ietters of credit drawn upon the revolving credit faclity n the US: and
. £0.2m-50.2m 2020 £0.4m = 50.5m) 'n the Form of cash deposits, shown on the Balance sheet as non-current other financia
assets (note 143,

The Group has also ssued various indemnities totalling £2.1m relating to sent guarantees mainly 1in Australia. "hese expire
in 2022,

29. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS - SHARE PURCHASE AND CANCELLATION

Bebween the end of the year and 22 March 2022, a further 73,830 Ordirary shares of "o each bave beer repurchased i the
market for tetal considesation of £0.4m and have been cancelled.

Bage 1
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30. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS - DISPOSAL OF CORESTAFF

On 24 January 2022 the Group announced that it has entered into an agreement to sell the business and assets of Corestaff, its
US-based Light Industrial brand to swipejobs Inc., a US private digital staffing company, for cash consideration of approximately
E14m 519 my,

In the year ended 31 December 2021, Corestsff reported in the Group's Regional Specialist Staffing portfolio, generatad
revenue of £98m and gross profit of £12.8m and had an operating profit of £1.2m. Net assets at 3" Decemper 2021 were
approximately £6.9m.

The details of the sale were completed and agreed after the vear erd ard the transactior was corrpleted an 7 Febraary 2022,
Following cormpletion of the Disposal, the Croup used the proceeds of sale to pay dowr net debt to fund additional irvestrent
to furtrer accelerate the Croup's strategy.

31. CONTROL

The Group has identified Lord Ashcroft as the ultimate controlling party as he has inflience aver more than 50%. out less than
75%. of both the shares and voting rights of impellam Croup pic ard together with beirg Chairrar of 'mpellam Croup plc has
significant influence over the Group
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Company balance sheet

ASAT 3 DECEMBER M2

31 December

2021
- o e £m_ ~ 7777‘
Non-current assets
Investmenrts ‘ 3 150.1 150"
Other receivables 4 242.2 2338

392.3 38359

Current assels
Ctherrecevables 4 13.8 16.3
Cash at bank and ir hand 0.6 t2

14.4 ’.7.5
Other payables amounts Fallmg due wuthln one pertod 5 {211.1} “78 2,
Net current liabilities , {196.7) (60.7)
Totalassets 1ess current llabllsttes 195.6 2232
Other Dayaales amour ts Fa iling due ir rmore than ore Derlod [ {101.9) 189

Net assets 93. 7 1C4.3

Capltal and reserves

Called-up share Lap|tai 5 0.5 C.3
Share prermium account 8 3041 36
Merger reserve 9 19.0 6.0
QOther reserves g
Retained proftt g

Total shareholders’ funds 10 93.7 104.3

The accompanying rotes are ae irtegral part of this balance sheet.
The loss dealt with in the financial statements of che Company For the 52 weeks ended 31 December 2021 was £8.7m (2020
£5.9m). Dividends totalling £nit {2C20: £nil) were declared and paid during the period. As allowed by Section 408 of the

Companies Act 2006, no separate profit and loss account is presented for the Parent Company.

The financial statements on pages 113 to 119 were approved by the 8oard on 5 Apnil 2022 and are signed on ‘ts behalf by

Tim Briant
Chief Financial Officer

Registered rumber: 0651194"

=3ze 1
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FOR THE 52 WhEKS -NDED 37 2FCTMBER 200

4 January 2020

Slare Capitn

Loss For the period
Purchase and cancellation of own shares (note 8)

1 January 2021

2 January 2021
Loss for the pericd
Purchase ard carcellation of own shares {note 8

31 December 2021

e Zenzired ioral
ot ERIP
306 9.0 68.9 1"8.5
- - {9.9) (9.9)
- - 4.3 (4.3
306 15.0 547 104.3
30.6 19.0 54.7 104.3
- - (8.7) (8.7}
- - {1.9) (1.9)
30.6 19.0 44.1 93.7

The Cempany has considered the profits available for distribution to shareholders. At 31 December 2C21, the Company had

-etainec earnings of £44.1m which were ali available for distribution.

The Croup also has retained profits in its subsidiary compamies which are expected o flow up to the Company in due course o

Farther supplermenrt its distributable reserves positior,

Page_1"4
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
A) Basis of accounting

Impetlam Croup plc ('the Corrpany ) is ¢ compary incorporated and registered in Erglard ard Wales and domicied ir the UK.

In preparing these financial statements the Company applies the recognition. measurement and disclosure requiremeants of UK
adopted international accounting standards and has set out below where advantage of the FRS 101 disclosure exemptions has
beer taker.

Summary of disclosure exemptinns

in these financial statements, the Company has applied the exemptions available under FRS 1071 1n respect of the following
disclosures:

+  Acash Flow statement and related notes,

«  Disclosures in respect of fransactions with wholly owred sabsidiaries.

«  Disclosures ir respect of capital maragerrent,

+  The effects of new but not yet affective IFRSs.

+ Disciosures ir respect of the commpensation of key maragerrert personrel.

As the consolidated Fnancial statements of Impetlam Group pic include the equivatent disc.osures, the Company has also taken
the exemptions Jnder FRS 101 availlabie in respect of the Following disclosures:

«  Certair disclosures required by IAS 36 impairment of Assets in respect of the impairment of invesimenrts.
«  Certair disclosures required by IFRS * 3 Fair Value Measurement and the disclosares required by IFRS 7 Finanaial
instruments Disclosures.

The Company proposes ta continue to adopt the reduced disclosure framework of FRS 10110 1ts next financial statements,

The accounting poficies set aut below have, unless othenwise stated. been applied corsistertly to all years presected e these
financial statements.

Aseparate profit and loss account dealing with the results of tre Comnpany only bas not beer presented as permitted cnder
Section 4CE of the Companies Act.

Changes in accounting policy
None of the standards, interpretations ana amencments effective far the first time from 1 Zanuary 20271 have nad a materal
effect on the financial staterments.

ACcounting sciicies have beer applied consistertly.

B) Investments

Shares in subsidiary companies are hetd a5 fixed assets and are stated at cost less provision for impairment. Impairment reviews
are corducted when crarges ip events or situatiors irdicate that the carryirg value may rot be recoverable. More detalls of the
impairment methodologies are giver i pote * 2 of the corsolidated accounts,

C) Other receivables

Other recevables include amourts cwed by Group commpanies which are assessed for irmpairment based upor the cuirert
Financial position and expected furure performance of the subsidiary to which they relate. The transactions with Group
companies are interast-free demand ioans. The Company assesses the expected recoverability period of recewvables and, if they
are not expected to be realised wikhin the following twelve months, are assessed as Non-current.

The Zompany applies the IFRS § general approach to measuring expected credit losses. This aporeach requires ar assessment
at the -mibiation of the loan as to the risk of default and a further assessment when the credit risk profile of the loans change.
IFRS 9 applies a three-stage model that is applied when calculating the expected credit losses:

+  Stage 115 defined as having ne Significant Increase in Credit Risk (' SICRY -3 12-month expected credit toss 1s recognised at
this poirt.

+  Stage 2 is defined as having a SICR - a lifetime expected credit loss I1s recognised at this point.

+  Stage 3isdefined as being credit impaired - a Jifetime expecred credit ioss is recognised at this point.

There s ng impactin relaticr o nkerest as he armounts cwed by Croup cormpanies are interest free and repayadle or demrand.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES CONTINUED
C) Other receivables continued
The Company defines the following:

- Defininon of a default - Alocan s considered to be i default when there s evidence that the borrower is in significant
Fnancial difficulty such that it will have insufficient assets to repay the loan on demand.

»  SICR assessment —the risk that the borrower will default on a demand loan depends on whether the subsidiary has sufficient
cash or other assets to repay the loan immediately (meaning that the risk af default is very low and the lean s in Stage 1); or
does not have sufficient casli o1 ather assets to repay the loan immediately tmeaning that the risk of default is higher and
the ioar codld be in stage 2 or stage 3).

- The Company perfarms this assessment qualitatively by reference to the borrower's immediate cash flow and asset position.

«  Credit-impaired indicators — A loan is considered to be credit impaired if it meets the definition of a defauited loan.

D) Deferred taxation
Deferred income tax 1s orovided, using the bability method, on temporary differences at the salance sheet date between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amaunts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred ‘ncome tax assets are recognised on an undiscounted basis for all deductible temporary differences carry-forward of
unused tax credits and unusad tax losses, ko the extent that it s probable that taxable profit will be avallable against which the
deductible temporary differences and the carry-forward of unused tax credits and unused ax lossas can be utilised except:

- where the defzsrred income :ax 3sset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the intial recognition of
anasset or lability 10 a trarsaction thatis not a business combinat:on and, at the time of the transaction. affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxabie prefic or less; and

+inrespect of deductible temporary differencas associaced with investments in subsidianies deferred tax assets are
recogrised anly £o the extent that it 1s probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeabie Future and
taxable profit will be availabie against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets s reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent chat it 1s no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available o allow all or part of the deferred incorme tax asset to be

utilised. Unrecognised deferred income tax assets are reassessed at each balance sheet date and are recognised ta the extent
that .t has become probable that Future taxable proft will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred inceme tax assets and Labilities are measured at the rax rates that are expected to apply 2o the period when the asset
15 reatsed or the liability 1s settled, based on tax rates {and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the
balarce sheet date Income tax relating to items recognised directly in 2quity 15 recogrised In eguity and not in the

imcome statement Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if & legally enforceable night exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

E) Employee benefits

Short-term benefits - bonus arrangements

The Compary operates 3 rumber of arrual bonus arrargements for Directors and employees. The cost of these arrangements is
recogrised ir the income staterert wher the entity has an obligatior to make such payments as 3 result Or rthe achieverment of
performance targets and when a reliable estimate of this obhigation can be made.

Pension obligations
The Company provides pensicn arrangements for its UK-based Directors and employees through defined contriburion schemes.
Contrnbution costs are expensed zo the income statement as they become due.

2. OPERATING COSTS

+  The amount payatle to the auditor ir respect of the audit of the Company is £20.000 (2020 £20,00C). ail of which 15 payable
0o BDO LR
Details of emoluments for Directors can pe found in note 5 of the consolidated financial statements.

+ Monthly average staff numbers fincluding Directors) for the Company duning 2021 was 31 eight Directors/Company
Secretary nine managers and 13 adrunistraters (2028 28, eight Directors/Company Secretary nine managers and
11 admiristraters).

+  The total amount of emnployee costs charged to the Company’s income statementin the period s £7.9m (2C20: £4 5m).

Page 113
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3. INVESTMENTS

Subsidiary

undertakings

- e o o o £m

Cost -2 January 2021 150.1
Cost - 31 December 2021 150.1
Impairment provision — 2 January 2021 -
Charge for the period -
LIsposals -
Accamutated amortisation — 31 Decerrber 2021 -
Net carrying value - 31 December 2021 150.1
Net carrying value — 1 January 2021 150.1

Details of the principal subsidiary undertakings are given in note 25 of the consalidated financial statements. All of these
companies are anlisted.

Subsidiary undertakings

The carrying values of investments were tested agamnst discounted Future cash flows during the period using a Jiscount rate of
between 13.9% to 16.5% (2020: between 14.0% to 18.0%) which include a country msk premium. The forecasts were based on
pre-tax cash flows derved from approved budgets for the 2522 financiat pernod {2020: 2021 financial period).

4. OTHER RECEIVABLES

31 December

2021
etrecensbles . . o . . L. £m
Amourts owed by subsidiary undertakings 4.7 4g
Other receivables 9.0 W09
Prepayments 0.1 0.5
Total 13.8 6.3
31 December PRI
2021 K
Serelorres i tecel skies £m Sl
Amounts owed by subsidiary urdertakirgs 242.2 2338
Total 242.2 2338

Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings are ursecured, repayable or demmard and are rot interest-bearirg. These bave
been reviewed For any expected credit ioss and a charge of £6.1m {2020: £0.4m) has been recorded in the perniod, bringing
the cumulative charge to £1.8m (2020: £1.7m). Arnounts owed by subsidiary undertakings have been restated to show the
pertion that ‘s not expected to be realised in the following twelve morths as a non-current recewable The vailue of the prior
year recaivapies which have been classified te non-currentis £233.8m. The impact of this or the 2020 apening palance is that
£2392.0m of receivable palance of £246.2m was restated as non-current.
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Notes to the Company balance sheet continued

FOR 7% o0 WSIKS EMDES 21 DECEVRER 2021

5. OTHER PAYABLES: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE PERIOD

31 December Carear,
2021 o

e - o _ o £m i
Bank averdraft 39 29
Amodnts owed 2o subsidiary undertakings 198.4 76
Conrtract liabilities 1.5 13
Accruals and other payables 7.3 2.4
Total 2111 "78.2

Aamo.rts owed to subsidiary underzakings are srsec.red, repayable on demard ard are rot interest-bearing. Contract hiabilities
relate to ammounts recharged to subsidiary undertakings for which che service has rot beer completed.

6. OTHER PAYABLES: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE IN MORE THAN ONE PERIOD

3t December

2021 S
__ I - _ o fm 7
Revoluing credit Facilities 101.% 183
Cetails of secunity given over these liabilities are gescribed in notes 27 and 28 to the corsolidatad accounts.
7. DEFERRED TAXATION

31 Decemnber Clat.,

2021

. L . R o Em
Operirg balance - _
Charged to prafit and oss account in the period - -
Deferred tax asset - -

The rotal recognised and Unrecognised deferred tax s as foilows:

Recognised Unrecognised
31 December 31 December . B
2021 ol T

2021
e . e fm B
Losses - 0.1 - 0.2
Other short-term timing differences - - - -
Total - 0.1 - Q.2
8. ISSUED SHARE CAPITAL
~elmber or
w2 alAd iar e pramiLs z
b arme o711} SLIGLIT I"ale i3
. ~ il g T - i
3 January 2020 473 0.5 30. 30.6
Purchase and cancellation of owr shares .4 - - -
1 January 2021 45.9 0.5 301 30.6
Purchase and carcellatior of own shares (0.8) - - -
Total - 31 December 2021 45.3 0.5 301 30.6

Impeliam Group plc
The Company has no limit to its aathorised share capital. The above number represerts the cumber of alotted, fully caid shares
of 'pirigsue.
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Transactions with shareholders
In 2021, 6CB.602 Ordinary shares of 1p each (2020: 1 413,785}, representing 1.3% (2020: 3.0%) of the opening number of 1ssued
shares were repurchased in the market for consideration of £1.9m (2020: £4.3m). and <ancelled.

On 25 June 2021 the shareholders approved a new share purchase plan allowing the Company to purchase up to 4,560,363
Crdinary shares up to the sarlier of the date of the Company's next Annual General Meeting or 30 June 2022.

9. RESERVES
Merger Retained Tatal
reserve profit reserves
o S - - 7 o £m £m ____£m
* January 202° ) 19.0 54.7 13.7
Loss for the period - (8.7) (8.7)
Purchase ard cancellaticn of gwn shares - (1.9) (1.9)
31 December 2021 19.0 441 63.1

Merger reserve

The rrerger reserve arises under Section 612 of the Companies Act 2006 as a result of the acquisition of Bartech Holdirg
Corporation and Lorer Limited using the 1ssue of shares as part consideration. The excess of “air value over the nomiral value of
shares is Lransferrad to g merger reserve rather thar a share premium, This reserve is rot distributable.

Other reserves
Other reserves comprise the followirg:

- £47.200 contributed surplus arising on 3 ustorical demerger transaction and a special reserve arising from the capital
reduction in December 2012 (2G20: £41,3C0;, and
»  £53,000 capital redemption reserve arsing from the purchase and canceltation of creasury snares (2020: £47.2C0).

These ~eserves are ~or-distribdtable. all other reserves are distributable.

10. RECONCILIATION OF MOVEMENTS IN SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS

31 December BEEETRI AT

2021

£m . s

Loss For the financal pericd {8.7) i5.9;
Purchase ard zancellatior of own shares (1.9} 4.3
pening shareholders Furds 104.3 M85
Closing shareholders’ funds 93.7 164.3

11, RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
The Board 1s nok aware of any related party transactiors other thar those disclosed r rote 25 ¢ the corsolidated

financial statemenits.

12. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS ~ SHARE PURCHASE AND CANCELLATION
Betweer the end of the year and 22 March 2022, a furtber 75,830 Ordinary shares of “o each ~ave been repurchased i the
market for total consideration of £0.4m and have been cancelled.

Sage 19



[
} BAPE L AM ORCUP PLC_ANNUA L REPORT AND AZCOUNS_2021
i

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Alternative Performance Measures

ALTERNATIVE PERFORMANCE MEASURES

Certain discussions and aralyses set out in this Arnuasl Report
and Accounts include measures which are not defined by
generally accepted accourting principles such as IFRS,

We bedeve this informatior, along with comparable IFRS
measJremenrts, Is useful to investors because It provides

3 basis for measurirg our operating performarce on a3
comparable basis. Qur manageament uses these finandal
measures, alorg with the most directly comparable (FRS
Financiat measures, In evaluating our operating performance
and value creation. Non-IFRS financial measures should not be
considered .nisolat:ion From, or as a substitute for, Financral
information preserted in compliance with IFRS. Non-iFRS
financial measures as reported by us may not oe comparable
with similarly titled amounts eported by other companries,

ADJUSTED OPERATING PROFIT

Definition: The Group calculates adjusted ocerating profic as
aperating profit before amortisation of acguired intangibles
ard impairmrent,

Closest equivalent IFRS measure: Ooersting profit.

Rationale for adjustment: The Directors betieve that
adjusted operating profit is the most appropriate appreach
For ascertaining the arderlying tradirg performarce and
trends as it reflects the measures used nterpally by senior
maragement For all discussions of performance, ircluding
Direczors remuneration ard also reflects the starting profit

measure used when calculating the Croup's banking coverants. !

All discussiors withir the Croup on segmertal and individual
brand performance refer to adjusted operating profit,

Followirg the adoptior of IFRS "6 in 2079 the Croup Pas
moved from adjusted EBITDA o adjusted operating profit as
its atterrative perfarmance rmeasare, to ircluce depreciatior
and amortisation of assets but excluding amortisaticn of
acquired intangibles.

Reconciliation of adjusted operating profit to operating
profit/(loss):

The amertisatior of acquired irtangibles {brand value and
customer relationships) charge due to its size and nature is
disclosed separately to give a cormparable view of the
year-cn-year trading financial performance.

The impairment charge due toits size is disclcsed separately

"togive a more comparable view of the vear-or-year underlying
- financial performance.

ADJUSTED EBITDA

Definition: The Croup calculates adjusted ERITDA as operating
profit before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation.

Closest equivalent IFRS measure: Operating profit,
Rationale for adjustment: The Croup cortinues to meascre

EBITOA which s used For barking cavenants and irterral
performance measures Itis also used externally for valuation

. PUrDOSES, -

Reconciliation of adjusted operating profit to operating

. profit/{loss}):

2021 :
o R _Em .
Adjusted EBITDA 37.0 276
Arrortisation of software {5.3) '5.68)
Depreciatior {2.4) 2.8
Adjusted operating profit 29.3 82

Amortsation of brand value and
customer relaticrships ‘ (9.8) 1.0)
impairment of goodwill ard ietargibie assets - 222
Operating profit/(loss) 19.5  {°5.0)

SPEND UNDER MANAGEMENT ('SUM’)

Definition: Total amount of client expenditure which our
managed services brands mardged or behalf of their ciepts.
This equates o reverue earred where impellam acts as
prircipal plus gross billings to customers where Irmpellam acts
as agent.

Closest equivalent IFRS measure: Croup revenJe.

' Rationale fFor adjustment: The Croup uses this measure
“ast reflects the total value of the client spend to the Croup

2021
i S £m -
Segmental adjusted operating profit 36.8 233
Corporate costs (7.5) 5.7
Adjusted operating profit 29.3 8.2 ¢
Arrortisatior of brand valae and
castomer relaniorships (9.8) 1.0}
impairmert of intargible assets - 227)
Operating profit/(loss) 19.5 (501

not just the revenue generated
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CONTINUING ADJUSTED EARNINGS PER SHARE
(‘EPS’)

Definition: Continuing adjusted profit divided by the weighted
average rurrber of Ordinary shares outstarding durirg the year.

Closest equivalent IFRS measure: Cortinuing basic earnings
per share.

Rationale for adjustment: The Group gses this ireasare
aiengside the basic EPS calculation as it reflects the underlying
trading performance of the busiress.

Reconciliation of adjusted EPS to basic EPS:

NET DEBT EXCLUDING IFRS 16 ‘LEASES'
Definition: the Croup calcutates ret debt as the total of cash
ard short-term deposits, revolving credit and hire purchase.

Following the adoptior of IFRS 16 the calculation also includes
lease liabilities and debtors.

Rationale For adjustment: the Croup bas used this measure
to mairtain aligrment to the coverart reporting dunirg 2020.

Reconciliation of net debt excluding IFRS 16 to net debt:

2021 N2
- S Em_ o

Cash and shart-term depaosits 50.9 179

Bank overdraft {3.9) 2.5
Revolving credit (101.9) *18.9}
Hire purchase {0.1) 0.2}
Net debt excluding IFRS 16 (15.0) (4.1
Lease liabilities {16.5) i26.5)
Lease debtors - 4.2

Net debt {31.5) 26.2%

2021 i
7 - £m 3
Continuing profit/{loss) fFor the

period 8.3 (21.4}
‘ropairment of goodwill - 6.6
impairment of other intarqibles

{net of tax) - 4.5
Custorrer relationship ard brand

value amerosstion (net of tax) 7.7 8.6
Continuing adjusted profit 16.0 8.3
Weighted average number

of shares 45,538,963 16,208 380
Unadjusted continuing EPS 18.3 (46.2}
Adjusted continuing EPS 35.3 18.2

Py 1zl
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Glossary

Adjusted EBITDA EBITDA before separateiy disclosed items and mpa\rment oF goodwwlt

Adjusted EBITDA Conversmn Ratio Adjusted EBITDA divided by NFI/g ress proﬁt

Adjusted Operatlng Proflt Operatmg proFlt before amortisataon of, and am,oa\rment in, acquured |ntai‘ag|bies

Beautiful Basics Every brard in impellam makes a semple promise o 1ks custorrers and
cardidates ard then backs that promise up with whatever activities are needed
to Fuifil, sustain and deliver the brand prormise. We call these promises the
Beautiful Basics

Busaness Process Qutsourcing (‘BPO ) Solutions which help busmesses address back office ruaecﬁs straing\catly and
ncrease operat\onal efficiency

Cash Convers:on Net fash ‘rorn operatmg achivities divided f“y oaeratmg pront

Constant Exchange Rates Caﬁcalated by ITMJIUDUWQ the prior year Farctional currency amourt by the
current year Fore\gn currency exchange rate

Contingent Labour Tempcrary and (ontract waorkers

Cross-sell All \rnDellarF people are encouraged to rﬂfpr rew fosiness leads to ore another.
This happens when a consultant ident:fies an opportumty that is cutside the
scope of the brand spedialism and it will be referred to a brand within the Croup
wh|ch is aligredto *he equarenﬂer“t

CRM fustor“er relat\or‘s‘wp ranagement

Days Sales Outstandlng (DSO) Totalt rade recewames divided by average da ty | mvowced >ales

EBITDA Earnmgs beFore interest, tax depreuat\on and amortisation

Facilities Management Prawdm cleamng secdrity, euents and etaw Fa[sl\tles support >erwces

GDPR Feneral data Drotect\or' feu_ﬂatloe“ whsci‘ cameirte force or 3 May 90 >3

Group Fill The percentage of Spend Urder Management supplied From our Croup brands
nto our rmaraged servIces programmes

ngh Road mpelkam provides gooc work for pecple and Deople for good work, we focus or
partnerlng with organisations that value engaged *fuifilled people which serves
to drive clear market 3egrrentat onarda mmpeihng pnce point

Hybnd Vendor Assignments are filled by a combination of suppliers that we manage for
the client and are filled directly by the Managed Services grovider {including
Group supplyJ

IFRS lnterhat\onai Fmar‘ma RGDOFUF‘Q Standards

Ignlte CRM {cJstomer ’nlatrons ip ’r‘anagemem noJr recrunter operat ng System

Independent Conl:ractor Solutlons Helping to red uce EI“E' risk and cost of worker mssc‘asswﬁcatlon

Managed Services These deWES:EbOCquSE‘ the product\wt, of peaple by desngmng,
implementing. coordinating and reperting on the whole staffing process They
provide matti-disciplinary workforce solutiors, irctading all Forers of partial ard
corrpiete Outsourcing

Managed Serv:ces Programme ('M5P7} The oulsourcirg of conti rgent [ [abour

Master Vendor The rnc:jor ity of assignments are F\l ed by the Managed Services Drowder
(ircludirg Croup sdpply) and secord-tier agerces are ssed when the Maraged
Serwces provider s snable to upply

Net Debt Totat debt of J“e Croup {ess cask ir hcsr*d

Net Fee Income ( NFI ) Equivalent to gross profit

Neutral Vendor Assignments are fitled by suppliers that we manage For the client, where hhe

\Aanaged Services provider joes rot ?orm part of the wpplv ham
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Non-UK

Orqgm

AH comtﬂes \mDeilan’* operates in outside of the UK Thls is the s, Australama
and Europe fexcluding the Uk}

Cur irnovation hub that acguires, rvestsin and partners with disruptive start
ups P our market; aswell as backmg our Y \rtuosos \deas

Payroll Services

Prowde access to a fully compliart rraﬂ"e\.vork For maraging and paying
comt ngentstaff

Productlwty

Gross pmnt dwsded by Full Time Equivalent ¢ FTC} Heads

Recruitment Process Outsourcnng {RPO"

where a cliert outsources the maragement of the recruwtment furction {in
whoie or paft\ to a third party expert

ShiftWise

Specialist Staffing

Spend Under Management ('SUM"}

Statement of Work {'sow )

Value Chaln

endor Management System ('VMS’)

Virtuosity

Virtuoso

prmopa plus gross blengs to custor"ers where tmpellam act> as ageﬂt

Techr‘olog\, sot d[IOF‘ forthe NHS to build our ! Managed Ser\ ices capability

Dedicated brands which provide expert recruitment services and skilied workers

for permanent ternporary. contact and F\xed price work

Totat amount of client ex;,endwtura Wh1ch our Managed Services arands managed
or bebalf of their clierts. This equaces "o revenue earned where Impeliam acts as

Solutions For spend in complex catzgones of service which include supplier
management, reguisitior facilitatior, contrack writirg, regotiatiors and .nvoicirg
and settlerrent :upport services

Different parts of our busmess share the belief that meanlngrul work really
matiers to individuals, communrities, societies and ecoromies so they car work
together to Lreate \,a ue that is greater than the sum Qf rhe parts

VMG *edmomgy enables the FLll procare-to-pay process, wmle providing robust
reportmg and aralytics

Cur brands which have speoahst focus and expertise deiwermg sector ar
Function staffing solutions

Virkuosity 15 the art of seeirg possibilities wrere others see nore. It isa mmd:er
that enasle; aur peopleto adapt mth ageht; Lo changmg market conditions

People «vho see possibilities and <an ture in Lo the needs oFour castomers
and candwdates

Virtuous Circle

Avirtuous i rde is at the core of our higk-retertior r“ocle thro\,ldes the
cortinucus loop of rraking and keeping promises, which engerders Lrust and
Etlmatety Duilds foyalty

Virtuoso Way

Our carsistert. collaborative Group wide Ldlture based oo trusted behawour;
delivered oy entreprereurial teaders. At the beart of building trust is the
everyday practice in which people make promises to each other to bripg about &
future thatbeneﬁtsa
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Company information

Our Managed Services businesses are enabled by talent-focused Specialist Staffing brands with deep heritages, vertical sector
expertise and loyal candidate nebwaorks. Clients across the world trust us to deliver Managed Servicas and Spedialist Staffing in
the Uk. North America Asia Pacific and Europe

working with them are 2 500 Impellam people. bringing a wealth of expertise through cur 13 market-leading trands across 7C
locatiors. Every vear, we correct carefuily chosen candidates with good work at all levels. They include technology and digitai
specialists. scientists, clinical experts, engineers. nurses, doctors, lawyers, teachers, recepticrusts, drivers, chefs, administrators,
warebouse ard call centre operatives.

Underpinning everything we dois our Virtuoso strategy which recognises it is our people who make the difference. Virtuosos
make and deliver on promises, and grow with their customers through sector service or international expansion which ensures
there is never a reed for a castorrer or candidate to leave Impellarm. Irmpellar is the largest Global Talent Acguisitior and
Managed Waorkforce Solutions provider inthe UK, and 8th* ir the world,

Far more informrador about Impellarr Croup, please visit: www.irpellam.cam

Nominated adviser and broker Independent auditor

Caraccord Cenuity Limited
88 Wood Street

Londor

EC2V 70OR

Principal solicitors
Aller & Overy LLP
One Biskops Square
Lardor E1 8AD

Registrars

Link Group

*Qtkh Floor, Certral Squdre
29 wellirgtor Strest
leeds |51 401

Principal bankers
Barclays Banx plc
* Churchill Place
London E14 SHP

23ce_'Zd

BDO LLP
55 Baxer Street
Lordon Wl TEU

Registered address
‘mpetlam Group plc
200 The Boulevard
Capability Creen
cJton

Jedfordskie LU 38A

Registered number
06511967

LSE symbol
IPEL
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